
 

 
 
701 Atlantic Avenue  -  Alameda, California  94501-2161  -  TEL:  (510) 747-4300  -  FAX:  (510) 522-7848  -  TDD:  (510) 522-8467 
 

 
IF YOU WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD: 

   
 1. Please file a speaker’s slip with the Executive Director, and upon 

  recognition by the Chair, approach the rostrum and state your name; 
  speakers are limited to 5 minutes per item. 
 
  2. If you need special assistance to participate in the meetings of the City of 

Alameda Housing Authority Board of Commissioners, please contact (510) 
747-4325 (TDD: 510 522-8467) or dconnors@alamedahsg.org 

   Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City of Alameda 
Housing Authority Board of Commissioners to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

 
   
 
AGENDA REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE & TIME Wednesday January 18, 2017 - 7:00 p.m. – CLOSED SESSION 6:45 

p.m. 
 
LOCATION Independence Plaza, 703 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda, CA 
 
Welcome to the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda 
meeting.  Regular Board of Commissioners meetings are held on the third Wednesday of 
each month in the Ruth Rambeau Memorial Community Room at Independence Plaza. 
 
Public Participation 
Anyone wishing to address the Board on agenda items or business introduced by 
Commissioners may speak for a maximum of five minutes per agenda item when the subject 
is before the Board.  Please file a speaker’s slip with the Housing Authority Executive 
Director if you wish to address the Board of Commissioners. 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
1.  ROLL CALL - Board of Commissioners  
 
2.  Public Comment on Closed Session Items (in Open Session) 
 
3.  CLOSED SESSION – 6:45 p.m. – Adjournment to Closed Session to Consider: 
 

1 of 154

mailto:dconnors@alamedahsg.org


3-A.  Conference with Real Property Negotiator – (Gov. Code Sec. 54956.8) 
Agency Negotiator: Victoria Johnson, Director of Housing and Community 
Development 
Property: APNs: 070-0156-021 
    070-0156-002 
    070-0156-023 
    070-0156-044-04 (portion) 
Negotiating Parties:  Housing Authority of the City of Alameda and the Murphy Trust 

 
 
4.  Adjournment of Closed Session 
 
5.  RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING – 7:00 p.m. 
 
6.  Announcement of Action Taken in Closed Session, if any. 
 

7.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
 Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or accepted 

by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is 
received from the Board of Commissioners or a member of the public. 

7-A.  Approve Minutes of the Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting held December 21, 
2016. Page 5 

7-B.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report – Page 10 
7-C.  Accept the Budget Variance Report for November 2016– Page 24 
7-D. Approve Outside Employment of Executive Director, Per 2014 Employment Contract 

between the Board of Commissioners and Vanessa Cooper – Page 41 
7-E.  Approval of Goals for the Executive Director’s 2017 Performance Evaluation– Page 44  
7-F.  Accept Revised Holiday and Office Closure Schedule for 2017 – Page 47 
 

8.  AGENDA 

8-A.  Accept the Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Actuarial Valuation Report for 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016 – Page 50 

 
  Presentation by Nicolay Consulting Group (NCG) for Other Post Employment Benefit 

(OPEB) Actuarial Valuations (30 Minutes) – 
 
8-B. Accept the Annual Review of Investment Policy – Page 107 
 
8-C. Accept the Five Year Cash Flow Report – Page - 119 
  
8-D.  Rosefield Village Project Update; Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the Submission of an 

Application to the State of California Veteran’s Housing and Homeless Prevention 
Program; Authorize the Commitment of up to $4.3 million in AHA loan funds; 
Authorize the Executive Director to Execute Related Documents – Page 126 

 
8-E.  Adopt a Resolution to Adopt the Revised Schedule of Authorized Positions– Page 141 

2 of 154



 
8-F. Accept a Schedule to Create a Strategic Plan: Create an Adhoc Committee of the 

Board to Support the Creation of the Strategic Plan; Nominate Two or Three Members 
to Serve on the Strategic Plan Adhoc Committee - Page 148 

 
8-G. Discuss and Provide Direction to Staff Concerning Information About the Development 

Activities of AHA and Island City Development (ICD); Discuss Additional 
Commissioner Responsibilities in 2017 Including  the Formation of a Standing 
Development Committee; If approved, Direct Staff to Return with a Proposed Scope of 
Work for the Development Committee No Later than the March Board Meeting. If 
Approved, Nominate Two or Three Members to Serve on the Development Committee 
– Page 152 

 
9.  ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment) 
 
10.  COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the Commissioners) 
 
11.  ADJOURNMENT 

* * * 

Note  
 

•     If you need special assistance to participate in the meetings of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda  Board 
of Commissioners, please contact 510-747-4325 (TDD: 510-522-8467) or dconnors@alamedahsg.org. Notification 
48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda Board of Commissioners to 
make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

 
• Documents related to this agenda are available for public inspection and copying at the Office of the Housing 

Authority, 701 Atlantic Avenue, during normal business hours. 
 

• KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE Ralph M. Brown Act: Government’s duty is to serve the public, reaching its 
decisions in full view of the public.  The Board of Commissioners exists to conduct the business of its constituents. 
Deliberations are conducted before the people and are open for the people’s review. 

 
• In order to assist the Housing Authority’s efforts to accommodate persons with severe allergies, environmental 

illnesses, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other 
attendees may be sensitive to various chemical based products. Please help the Housing Authority accommodate 
these individuals. 

 

3 of 154



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

4 of 154



Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda
701 Atlantic Avenue - Alameda, California 94501- 2161 - TEL: ( 510) 747- 4300 - FAX: ( 510) 522- 7848 - TDD: ( 510) 522- 8467

DRAFT MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

HELD WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 21, 2016

The Board of Commissioners meeting was called to order at 7: 11 p. m. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. ROLL CALL

Present: Commissioners Allen, McCahan, Rickard, Shipe, and Vice Chair Tamaoki

Absent: Commissioner Kay and Chair Kurrasch

3. CONSENT CALENDAR

Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or accepted

by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is
received from the Board of Commissioners or a member of the public. 

Commissioner Rickard requested that the November 16, 2016 Minutes, ( Item 8- B), 

be corrected to say that he is in agreement to purchase the property because we have
the funds and we expect to get a positive return on the investment. 

Commissioner Rickard commented that the Internship program is great and he is very
excited about it. 

Commissioner Rickard said that we were supposed to get comparison of returns from

the LAIF versus the funds the financial management company is managing for us Tess
their fee. He was hoping to see that in this report. Executive Director Cooper said that
she would be meeting with PFM tomorrow and the Investment Policy would be
covered. She will ask PFM to include this in the annual report due in January. 

Commissioner McCahan commented on the Policy Report. 

Commissioner Shipe moved to accept the Consent Calendar with the amended

minutes and Commission Rickard seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 

5 of 154



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners December 21, 2016

Page 2

3- A. Approve Minutes of the Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting held November 16, 
2016. Page 3

3- B. Amend the Property Management Policy — Page 8
3- C. Accept the Holiday and Office Closure Schedule for 2017 - Page 13
3- D. Approve A Short-term Internship Program to Provide Research and Analysis Support

for Housing Authority Projects and Programs and Offer Professional Development
Opportunities to Undergraduate and Graduate Students — Page 16

3- E. Accept the Quarterly Investment Report — Page 18
3- F. Accept the Quarterly Police Report — Page 40

4. AGENDA

4-A. Accept Changes to the Administrative Plan Revisions — Page 45

Lynette Jordan, Director of Housing Programs gave a brief overview of changes in the
Administrative Plan. Ms. Jordan said that the changes were made to implement

changes made by HUD. 

Commissioner Tamaoki asked if we have any discretion in what rules we use. Ms. 
Jordan said a notice was given to us in September from the federal registry and we
must accept the whole notice. Sometimes HUD may say you " may" adopt, but not in
this case. 

There was more discussion about changes to specific regulations. 

Commissioner McCahan moved to accept the staff recommendation on page 48 and

Commissioner Shipe seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 

4- B. Presentation of Summary of Rent/ Income Study at Independence Plaza — Page 83

Ms. Cooper said a few small changes have been made to the presentation based on
the resident' s feedback. Ms. Cooper said no decisions would be made tonight, and
that we really wanted to report on the outcome of the rent study. 

ZeeLaura Page, Management Analyst, and Lisa Caldwell, Director of Property
Operations, gave a presentation on Independence Plaza 2016 Review of Income, 
Assets and Rents. 

Ms. Page gave an overview of the process to complete the income certifications. 
There was some discussion about Regulatory Restrictions on Income and the Key
Findings. 

Ms. Caldwell reviewed Rent Levels and answered questions from the Board. Ms. 
Caldwell said that she would come back in 2017 with a proposal. Board members said

they would be interested in seeing the capital improvement numbers. 

6 of 154



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners December 21, 2016

Page 3

4- C. Adopt the Resolution to Adopt the Revised Housing Authority' s Employee Policies and
Procedures Handbook - Page 98

Janet Basta, Director of H. R. & Operations, gave a brief overview of the changes and

reformatting to the Employee Handbook. Of significance she noted the addition of a
Change Log at the end of the handbook. This Change Log will be maintained going
forward. 

Vice Chair Tamaoki introduced speaker, DeeDee Adeosun. Ms. Adeosun is an
employee of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda. Ms. Adeosun shared her
concerns about the Layoff and Outside Employment language in the Handbook and
requested an amendment. There was discussion about the language. 

Commissioner Rickard moved to accept the staff recommendation on page 101 now, 
but to have staff come back in January with alternatives to the language related to
Layoff and Outside Employment. 

Roll CaII: Commissioner McCahan No, Commissioner Rickard Yes, Commissioner
Shipe No, Commissioner Allen Yes, Vice Chair Tamaoki No. 

Commissioner McCahan moved to accept the staff recommendation on page 101 with
an effective date of January 8, 2017. 

Roll Call: Commissioner Shipe Yes, Commissioner McCahan Yes, Commissioner
Rickard No, Commissioner Allen No, Commissioner Tamaoki Yes

This motion was passed, but not unanimously. 

4- D. Report to the Board of Commissioners on 2016 Pay & Benefits Survey - Page 185

Ms. Basta gave an update on the 2016 Pay & Benefits Survey. This information is
presented for review and discussion only this month. A revised Schedule of
Authorized Positions will be brought to the Board for approval in January. 

4- E. Approve Out -of -State Travel - Page 189

Ms. Cooper talked about the out-of-state travel conferences coming up in 2017 and
requested the Board recommendation. 

Commissioner Rickard moved to accept the staff recommendation on page 189 and

Commissioner Allen seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non -Agenda ( Public Comment) 
None

rT 7 of 154



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners December 21, 2016

Page 4

10. COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATIONS ( Communications from the Commissioners) 

Commissioner Rickard thanked staff for the Presentations. He said in the future he
would like to be ahead of the game with regards to development. He is looking
forward to seeing our development sites early and not be driven by financing
considerations. 

Vice Chair Tamaoki thanked staff for all their work and noted receipt of a thank you
card received from a tenant. 

11. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, Vice Chair Tamaoki adjourned the meeting at 9: 12
pm. 

Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director/Secretary

Kenji Tamaoki, Vice Chair

8 of 154



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

9 of 154



Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda
701 Atlantic Avenue - Alameda, California 94501- 2161 - Tel: ( 510) 747-4300 - Fax: ( 510) 522-7848 - TDD: (510) 522- 8467

To: Honorable Chair and

Members of the Board of Commissioners

From: Vanessa M. Cooper
Executive Director

Date: January 18, 2017

Re: Monthly Overview Report to the Board

BACKGROUND

This memo provides a high level overview of agency activities in the prior month. Data is
submitted by each of the key areas of operation. 

Operations/ HR

Recruiting for the Asset Manager position began in December; we hope to have this
position in place by the end of February. Temporary staff is being utilized to provide
customer service at the front desk and property management services at Independence
Plaza until permanent replacements can be secured for these positions. Additionally, the

rental programs work is being conducted primarily with temporary staffing; once we know
the results of the RFP process, we will look to fill those positions with regular staff
positions should AHA be awarded the contract. 

Our annual Fair Housing Training was completed in December, with a well- received three
hour session provided by attorney Terry Kitay, followed by a holiday luncheon for staff
and guests. 

The new AHA website launched in November. Staff is continuing to work with the
developers to ensure content and functionality is working well. 

Benefits Report

Open enrollment for 2017 benefits has concluded. The following is the report on the
cost to implement the new benefits structure which was approved by the Board for
2017. As anticipated, staff (with one exception) that were enrolled in Kaiser elected to

stay with Kaiser. As a result, little was seen in the way of changes in plan enrollment or
costs. The following enrollment changes occurred: 

One employee elected a more expensive plan but dropped a dependent, 

resulting in a net savings to AHA
One employee (with employee+ 1 coverage) opted for a more expensive plan

10 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 2 of 12

One employee, who previously had employee only coverage, added 1 dependent
and opted for a more expensive plan with some out of pocket costs

One employee changed to a less expensive ( non -Kaiser) plan to reduce out of
pocket costs; this likely would have occurred regardless of benefits structure

The annual cost to the agency to make these changes to health insurance will be
19, 709. 74. This is offset this year by the reduction in Kaiser ( AHA benchmark) rates; 

when these reductions are factored in, the net annual cost increase is $ 9, 412. 92. 

By combining the dental and vision employer contribution, 30 employees ( who have only
themselves or themselves + one dependent covered on the dental plan) were able to

have their vision insurance premium covered by the AHA dental/vision contribution. The
annual cost to do so is $ 3, 736.08. 

Overall, the restructuring was a success. Employees appreciated the added flexibility, 
even if they didn' t access it this year, which we were able to provide at a very reasonable
cost to the agency. As benefits were budgeted at the full level of coverage in the current
budget, it is anticipated that we will be under budget for the current fiscal year. 

Information Technology

During November, the e- mail platform for the Housing Authority was changed from G - 
mail to a different platform. The new platform allows for integration with our Yardi

database and Laserfiche imaging system. It also allows for more control over user access
afterhours and off-site. This was one of the recommendations from the IT review

conducted a couple years ago. This is requiring on- site staff to learn to use Outlook rather
than Google Chrome, but should increase efficiency over time as staff learn the additional
functions in Outlook. 

Staff is also working on implementing eLearning through Yardi for all staff, which we will
kick- off in January by utilizing eLearning for staff training in the recently approved
Employee Handbook, using Laserfiche Forms to allow for online forms completion starting
with the employment application form, implementing Yardi Rent Cafe to allow participants
in the voucher programs to complete their annuals online, and preparing for the major
Yardi upgrade to 7S. 

11 of 154



Honorable Chair and

Members of the Board of Commissioners

PROPERTY OPERATIONS

VACANCY — November

Property Unit Vacancies

end of

November

Rate

Anne B. Diament Plaza 65 4 6% 

China Clipper Plaza 26 0 0% 

Eagle Village 42 0 0% 

Esperanza 120 3 3% 

Independence Plaza 186 4 2% 

Parrot Village 50 0 0% 

Rosefield Village 46 1 2% 

Combined Smaller Sites * 37 1 3% 

Total 572 13 2% 

January 18, 2017
Page 3 of 12

Lincoln House ( 4), Lincoln/Willow ( 5), Parrot Gardens ( 8), Senior Condos ( 7), Sherman Street (9) and
Stanford House ( 4) 

In November there were three ( 3) units at Rosefield that were permanently offline due to
the upcoming rehabilitation of the property, these units are not included in the vacancy
number & rate listed above. 

VACANCY — December

Property Unit Vacancies

end of

December

Rate

Anne B. Diament Plaza 65 1 2% 

China Clipper Plaza 26 0 0% 

Eagle Village 42 0 0% 

Esperanza 120 2 2% 

Independence Plaza 186 4 2% 

Parrot Village 50 0 0% 

Rosefield Village 46 1 2% 

Combined Smaller Sites * 37 0 0% 

Total 572 8 1% 

Lincoln House (4), Lincoln/Willow ( 5), Parrot Gardens ( 8), Senior Condos ( 7), Sherman Street (9) and
Stanford House ( 4) 

In December there were four ( 4) units at Rosefield that were were permanently offline

due to the upcoming rehabilitation of the property, these units are not included in the
vacancy number & rate listed above. 

12 of 154



Honorable Chair and

Members of the Board of Commissioners

RENT COLLECTIONS — November

January 18, 2017
Page 4 of 12

Property ABD

China

Clipper

Eagle

Village ESP IP

Parrot

Village Rosefield

All Other

Sites* 

GPR 78, 997. 00 33, 302. 00 81, 837. 00 269, 536. 00 256, 893. 00 119, 144. 00 73, 025. 00 48,588. 00
Collected 82, 035. 00 33, 153. 00 82, 308. 00 271, 283. 00 286, 605. 00 119, 973. 00 59, 324. 00 43, 834.00

Collection

Rate 103. 85% 99. 55% 100. 58% 100. 65% 111. 57% 100. 70% 81. 24% 90. 22% 

Lincoln House ( 4), Lincoln/Willow ( 5), Parrot Gardens ( 8), Senior Condos ( 7), Sherman Street (9) and
Stanford House ( 4) 

These numbers include the permanently offsite units as the income was budgeted for. 
Rosefield Village fell below 90% collection due to the units being offline for the upcoming
rehabilitation. 

RENT COLLECTIONS — December

Property ABD

China

Clipper

Eagle

Village ESP IP

Parrot

Village Rosefield

All Other

Sites* 

GPR 78, 997. 00 33, 302. 00 81, 837. 00 269, 536. 00 256, 893. 00 119, 144. 00 73, 025. 00 48,588. 00
Collected 76, 612. 00 37, 129. 00 80, 640. 00 271, 757. 00 287, 135. 00 129, 956. 00 61, 212. 00 45,058. 00

Collection

Rate 96. 98% 111.49% 98. 54% 100. 82% 111. 77% 109. 07% 83. 82% 93. 73% 

Lincoln House ( 4), Lincoln/ Willow ( 5), Parrot Gardens ( 8), Senior Condos ( 7), Sherman Street (9) and
Stanford House ( 4) 

These numbers include the permanently offsite units as the income was budgeted for. 
Rosefield Village fell below 90% collection due to the units being offline for the upcoming
rehabilitation. 

MAINTENANCE

The Maintenance Department continues to work on the scheduled HQS preventative
maintenance program, 58 units were inspected at Parrot Village / Gardens during the
month of December. In addition follow up repairs for the HQS generated work orders at
Anne B. Diament were also completed. 

The Alameda Housing Authority has now vacated the City storage area at 397 Orion
Street in Alameda. The storage area has been used by AHA for many years to store
public surplus equipment, used appliances, discarded office desks, chairs and cabinets
that are no longer serviceable. The City of Alameda recently rented out this location to a

13 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 5 of 12

private contractor, and gave AHA one month' s notice to find an alternative space. We are
currently using a 1, 000 square foot container located at Parrot Gardens. 

Repairs have been made to the exterior lighting in the parking areas at Independence
Plaza, Eagle Village, Rosefield, Esperanza and Parrot Village. Whenever possible old
fixtures are being replaced with energy efficient LED equipment. 

Replacement Batteries are being installed in all emergency exit Lights and emergency
backup lighting at Independence Plaza, during the winter storms it is important to ensure
that emergency lighting is available in case of power outages. 

Improvements have been made to the directional signage at Independence Plaza, 3 new
You are here" signs have been installed in strategic places to help visitors find their way

around the complex. 

The work order report below shows the work orders completed calendar year to date. 

Name Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
1000 AHA OFFICE 15 10 20 23 30 27 21 20 28 19 12 6 231

1110 SHERMAN STREET 4 2 13 17 6 5 1 2 0 6 0 1 57

1120 LINCOLN HOUSE 1 2 2 8 1 1 1 0 3 1 0 0 20

2100 ESPERANZA 41 56 59 136 114 109 68 85 59 58 30 21 836

3100 PARROT VILLAGE 62 61 38 23 27 54 29 29 42 24 45 11 445

6010 ANNE B DIAMENT PLAZA 23 22 20 12 19 24 17 31 23 101 23 4 319

6020 ROSEFIELD VILLAGE 16 24 89 26 23 21 20 22 24 21 12 6 304

6030 PARROT GARDENS 1 18 4 4 0 3 7 5 2 2 3 1 50

6040 STANFORD HOUSE 2 0 3 9 1 1 4 0 2 2 0 1 25

6050 LINCOLN/ WILLOW 1 1 9 12 1 2 1 0 2 2 0 1 32

6060 SENIOR CONDOS 2 0 4 8 1 0 2 1 0 0 3 0 21

6070 CHINA CLIPPER PLAZA 6 28 19 5 5 7 8 8 14 9 6 0 115

6100 EAGLE VILLAGE 8 11 13 15 21 7 18 19 68 52 23 2 257

8100 INDEPENDENCE PLAZA 55 53 62 46 104 101 65 56 48 49 46 10 695

Total 237 288 355 344 353 362 262 278 315 346 203 64 3, 407

HOUSING PROGRAMS

In November and December 2016, HPD worked on the following projects: 

OWNER OUTREACH AND INCENTIVE PROGRAM

The landlord leasing incentive program has been extended to May 1, 2017. In August
2016, a Landlord Incentive Program was implemented to encourage landlords currently
participating in our Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher ( HCV) program to add additional

14 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 6 of 12

housing units for our voucher holders on our program. This outreach was also targeted
at landlords currently not participating in our program, but who currently had available
rental units in the City of Alameda. 

Since the Landlord Leasing Incentive Program was launched, we have successfully
added 10 additional units, expanding our lease up rate for the Section 8 program. 
Originally, the Landlord Leasing Incentive Program was approved through November 1, 
2016, but with Executive Director Approval has been extended until May 1, 2017. 

Hopefully, this program will continue to generate interest in the program and new units
for voucher holders. The rules for payment are: 

A $ 500 leasing bonus for additional or new Section 8 units under contract and moved
in by May 1, 2017. 

This must create new section 8 units, an existing landlord in our program would need
to be adding to their number of section 8 tenants as of June 30, 2016. 

The bonus would be paid within 15 days of the move in. 

the landlord must sign a 12 -month contract and the unit cannot have been in the
Section 8 program in the last 4 months. 

This is first come first served, as funds are available. AHA reserves the right to cap the
number of bonuses paid so landlords are encouraged to fill the units earlier rather than
later to be eligible. • Current PBV, Mod Rehab/ SRO and Shelter Plus units are excluded
from this offer. 

Rent Increase Workshops

In an effort to expend our HAP funds and educate our owners on the rent increase
process we held rent increase workshops to offer information on how an increase impacts
the landlord and the tenant, and the paperwork needed to make a request. Our final

workshop for the year was held on Wednesday, November 2, 2016- 3: 00- 4: OOPM. 

Since implementing these educational rent increase workshops owners now have a better
understanding of the payment standards and how and when they are applied, and the
rent reasonable process. Owners are also submitting complete rent increase requests
with all pertinent documents, which allows staff to process rent increases timely. 

Outreach Activities for FSS Program

Active recruitment efforts have continued year round as we approach the end of our 2015
grant cycle year in the FSS program. Final interviews are scheduled for December 15, 

2016 in an effort to increase our enrollment to compensate for the many graduates we
had this year. Our FSS funding requires us to maintain a minimum enrollment of 25
participants. In November we had one FSS graduate and two new participant enrollments, 
which brought our current program enrollment to 24 participants. 

Though we are actively recruiting new participants each month, we have lost participants
as they complete their 5 -year program. We are happy for our graduates; however, each
graduate leaves a vacancy that must be filled through our constant outreach efforts. 

15 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 7 of 12

FSS Year End Survey

We are currently compiling our end of the year FSS survey results of program participants
which gathers data from our participants on the effectiveness of our FSS program. This
data will be used to complete our FSS E -Logic Model which will be due to HUD on January
30, 2017 for our 2015 grant funding cycle. 

Bay Area Directors Meeting
On Monday, December 5, 2016 the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda ( AHA) 
hosted the first roundtable meeting of Section 8 directors in the Bay Area. Our goal is to
develop a network of section 8 directors and policy staff working on the section 8 program
so that we can collaborate on new regulations or notices from HUD, exchange ideas about
current issues & best practices and have frank discussions about the challenges in this
current market and regulatory environment. 

The meeting was held at Independence Plaza and hosted by Lynette Jordan, Director of
Housing Programs, and Tonya Schuler, our Senior Management Analyst. The agenda
had specific topics that were relevant to all PHA Directors across the bay area such as: 

Managing your payment standards to maximize leasing but staying within your
financial constraints

Managing the program in times of falling or stabilizing rental rates
Landlord incentive and retention techniques

The first meeting was well received with over thirty Directors and Analysts in attendance, 
coming from as far away as Monterey, Santa Cruz, and Fresno. We agreed to continue
the meetings with a different PHA hosting each time. I' m pleased AHA led the way and
established this very useful group. 

HPD Department Statistics

The HPD department processed the following work in the month of November. 

Statistics October November December

Annual

Re-examinations

Processed

106 124 129

Rent Increases

Processed

87 96 69

Interim

Re- examinations

Processed

24 44 27

HOS Inspections

Conducted

44 non- AHA

76% pass rate

59- non AHA

71% pass rate

46- non AHA

53% pass rate

AHA Owned 44 Eagle

57% pass rate

2015)- 43% 

Jack Capon & 

Park Alameda

100%- pass rate

ABD-83% pass

rate

None

New Admissions 2 3 3

Port Move -In 1 2 3

Vouchers Issued 7 ( HCV) 

0 FUP

13 ( HCV) 

1 FUPY

22

4 FUPF

HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

16 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 8 of 12

Capital Projects

738 Eagle Avenue Substantial Rehab Project - Efforts to transform 738 Eagle Avenue
from a single family home into two separate one bedroom units are ongoing. The project
manual is complete and the invitation to bid has been posted. Replies are due early
February. Construction will begin following bid review, Board approval and contract
execution. Construction is projected to start on/ around March 1, last approximately 12
weeks and allow for a late June tenant move in date. 

Eagle Village Sub -Meter Installation - Staff is presently coordinating the installation of
water sub -meters at Eagle Village. The purpose of the project is to conserve water by
transferring the financial responsibility of the water supply from the Housing Authority to
the individual tenants. Over time, the goal is for all tenants to be responsible for their own
water bills and State law may require this. Tenants who participate in the voucher
program will have their utility allowances and rents adjusted according to program rules. 
The service providers have been vetted and contracts executed. Scheduling efforts are
in process. 

1825 Paru Street — The home was purchased by AHA and a 12 month fixed term lease
is in place. Staff is presently engaged in a renovation to the newly acquired property at
1825 Paru Street. The scope includes: ADA upgrades, window maintenance, plumbing
upgrades, new paint and new floor installation. Work is projected to conclude on January
29. 

Capital Improvement Projects: Three -Year Work Plan - The previously approved Capital
Improvement Project (CIP) schedule has been revised to include priority items to ensure
building integrity and address ADA and HOS matters. Please refer to attachments A & B
for specifics on projects by property, as well as by activity ( certain items have been
bundled across properties in an effort to reduce costs and streamline administration

services). Please note that the items listed were collected from the commissioned Capital
Needs Assessment reports, as well discussions with executive staff, property managers, 
resident managers and the maintenance crew. Each of the current projects falls within

the previously approved budget. 

Attachment A: Project Summary by Property and Cost
Attachment B: Project Summary by Phase and Schedule

Inclusionary and Below Market Rate Programs
Alameda Landing: All 16 BMR homes have been sold. Thirteen homes have closed and
the remaining three are scheduled to close within the next month. 

Marina Shores Single -Family and Condos: Six homes have closed to date and the
remaining ten homes are under contract. 

The next homes to be sold in late 2017 are the seven homes at 2100 Clement including
the four units that will be purchased by the Housing Authority. 

Real Estate Development
17 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 9 of 12

The Housing Authority has made separate pre -development loans to Island City
Development on behalf of three development projects. The original loan amount and
unexpended balance as of November 30th, 2016 is shown below. 

Sherman And Buena Vista ( Del Monte) 

Pre -development Loan $ 1, 000,000

Usage through November $ 850, 085

Balance $ 149, 915

Everett And Eagle ( 2437 Eagle Ave) 

Pre -development Loan $ 1, 000, 000

Usage through November $ 851, 663

Balance $ 148, 337

Rosefield Village

Pre -development Loan $ 1, 000, 000

Usage through November $ 165, 338

Balance $ 834,662

Portfolio Projects — Development and finance staff have prepared a long and short- term
cash flow forecast that reflects prior Board direction regarding investment in new and
rehabilitation development projects. A separate report is included in this agenda. 

Stamen Commons - Staff continues to attend the monthly draw meetings. The project
structures are nearing completion. The exterior building envelope is just about
completed. Interior finishes are close to completed in most units and common areas, 

including flooring, cabinets, and appliances in some units. Site work is also in process
but is somewhat behind schedule. Per the latest construction schedule, it is anticipated
the project will be complete around the end of March 2017. 

Del Monte Senior — The loan closing occurred on December 14th and all readiness
documents were submitted to TCAC on December 19th. The notice to proceed was
issued to Brown Construction on December 14th. Mobilization will occur the week of

January 2, including the delivery of the project trailer. Construction is scheduled to be
complete in 395 days, including 15 budgeted weather days. Beginning next month, a
separate construction progress report including budget details will be provided to the
Board. 

2437 Eagle Avenue — Staff has received and is reviewing four responses to the RFP for
a General Contractor from Arbor, Cahill J. H. Fitzmaurice, and Nibbi Brothers. The TCAC
Carryover Allocation Agreement and supporting documents to update the status of the
Everett and Eagle Project was submitted. TCAC has granted a blanket 60 day extension
to 2nd round projects due to market disruptions, which extends the readiness deadline
from March 15 to May 15 for Eagle Ave. The RFP for investors and lenders was re- 
issued the week of January 2nd There is still a fair amount of uncertainty related to tax
credit investor pricing and staff is evaluating how to fill any funding gap that may occur if
submitted prices are well below the projections. For example, if the corporate tax rate
drops from 35% to 25% ( all other factors equal) there would be a funding gap of

18 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 10 of 12

approximately $ 1 mm. Staff has spoken with Alameda County HCD staff about the
possibility of securing County Housing Bond funds if needed. On January 23rd the Board
of Supervisors will consider a proposal to make ` emergency' gap funding available to
projects that are otherwise ready to close. The proposal will be based on the assumption
that the emergency funds will come from each City' s allocation of the total Housing Bond
funds available. If this is approved, the local agency or the developer will need to provide
short-term ( construction phase) funds and the County funds would come in at conversion
to permanent financing. Over the next few weeks staff will remain actively engaged
working on this issue and will bring the Board an updated report next month. 

North Housing — Staff continues to work with the Navy, City staff and consultants in
preparation for conveyance of the AHA parcel. The draft parcelization plan has been

approved by the Navy. The surveyor has drafted legal descriptions for the conveyance
parcel as well as the AHA and Habitat parcels. Staff expects a new schedule for the
auction of the publicly available parcel. The insurance broker for the City has provided a
quote for a Pollution Legal Liability policy. The Navy has issued a draft public offering of
the auction parcel and staff will work with the Navy and City Staff to review and provide
comment. 

Rosefield Village — Staff continues to work with Landis Development LLC, our third party

real estate development consultant. Dahlin Group Architecture Planning was selected as
the Rosefield architect and hosted a discussion in December to receive preliminary
design direction on the redevelopment project. A separate report on the Rosefield project
is included in this agenda. 

RENT & COMMUNITY PROGRAMS

Rent Program: 

The December monthly program report is available to the public on the Rent Program
website at www.alamedarentprogram. orq. In the News and Notices Tab there is a reports
section. The monthly report includes a detailed program update narrative, data chart and
trend charts. Timely payment has been received for the all billing to date. 
City Request for Proposal for Rent Program Administration: The City released a request
for Proposal which is due on January 19th. The following is the schedule for submission
and award of contract: 

RFP Issued

Proposals Due

Selection and Notification ( tentative) 

Award of Contract (tentative) 

November 22, 2016

January 19, 2017, 4: 00 p. m. 
February 9, 2017
March 7, 2017

The response will include the following statements: 

AHA reserves the right to withdraw the application if funding does not support
program administration of all activities required by the ordinance or as requested
by the City. 

19 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 11 of 12

The AHA administration office has reached its office space capacity and will no
longer be able to host the rent program due to its service level requirements for
office space. The Rent Program will need to seek a new office space within the

City of Alameda. It is essential that the office space be accessible to the public
and near public transit. Establishing a new office space will require set up costs
such as office furniture and cubicle set up, Information Technology, 
telecommunications and additional office equipment such as copiers. Costs have
been estimated for the RFP submission. AHA expects that all actual costs will be
reimburse accordingly. 

AHA is requesting the presence of the City Attorney's Office at each RRAC
meeting to support the staff, the RRAC members and the participant landlords and
tenants. 

Outreach Strategies

Ongoing efforts include: 
18 attendees at informational workshops or fair housing trainings
Announcement in Alameda Sun " Local Happenings" for informational

workshops and fair housing trainings
Walk- in inquiries accepted at Program Administrator' s office

If a workshop is cancelled due to enrollment of 5 or less people, staff will
contact registrants to offer a 1: 1 appointment to provide information and
answer questions as needed. 

Rent Increases

RRAC case summary for December cases that will be heard at January RRAC meeting: 
45 cases filed

41 cases resolved before RRAC meeting
5 cases on RRAC agenda ( RRAC meeting rescheduled for 01/ 11/ 16 due to
Holiday) 

A Special meeting has been scheduled for 01/ 12/ 16 to provide the RRAC an opportunity
to comment on the Ordinance and how it applies to the RRAC process. 

Terminations of Tenancy

December notice submissions: 6

Two ( 2) Invalid submission

Four (4) total valid submissions

One ( 1) " Owner Move -in" 

Two (2) " Notice to Vacate ( No Cause)" 

One ( 1) " Withdrawal from the Rental Market" 

Capital Improvement Plans ( CIP) 

December CIP filings: 0

CDBG/ HOME Programs: 

20 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 12 of 12

January 3, 2016 Council approve the annual objectives and priorities for the Annual
Action Plan FY 17- 18. This will set the priorities for the Notice of Funding

Availability/ Request for Proposals ( NOFA/ RFP) which will be released in January. 

FINANCE

Please see the Budget Variance Report. 

RECOMMENDATION

For information only. 

Respectfully submitted, 

auuy CaK, 
Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director

VMC/ all

Attachment

21 of 154



AHA AHA Office

ABD Ann B. Diamond

CC China Clipper

ESP Esperanza

EV Eagle Village

IP Independence Plaza

PV Parrot Village

RV Rosefield Village

SHM Sherman House

Attachment A: Project Summary by Property

Property- Project Descrip on Prior

pproved. 

Identified

Identified ( Not yet

approved) approved) 

AHA ADA Automatic Door Installation 5, 000

AHA PVC Roof Installation 40,000

ABD `° Roof Repairs_ 1200

ABD Radiator Replacements " ` . 150,02) 

CC ADA Automatic Door Installation 5,000

CC Unit Entry Door Replacement 42.E

CC Cabinetry Replacement (Bath & Kitchen) 100,000

CC Electrical Panel Replacement 60,000

CC Water Heater Replacement 30,000

CC Pool ( Remove, Fill & Stabilize Soil) 100,000

CC Soft Story Assessment/Structural Report 50,000

ESP Clean Out Heater Vents `' 40, 000' 

ESP Gate Valve Replacements 20,000

ESP Breaker Panel Replacement 325,000

ESP Landscaping 200,000

ESP Guardrails/Deck Repair 100,000

ESP Furnace Replacements 350,000

ESP Exhaust Fan Replacements 100,000

ESP Roof Repairs 450, 000

ESP Furnace Replacement ( Community Room) 4, 000

EV Interior Trim & Finishes 100, 000

EV IMEP Repairs 200,0001

EV Exhaust Fan Replacements 25,000

EV Vantiy/Sink/Countertop Replacements 100,000

EV Electrical Repairs 25,000

EV Roof Repairs 170,000

Its
IP - 

Fire Alarm Panel & A/ C Condensing Unit Replacement
Wall Heater Replacement (Partial) * 

29,000

200,000

IP ADA Automatic Door Installation (x6) 30,000 I

IP Exhaust Fan Replacements 50,0001

IP Roof Repairs 1 255,000

IP Water Heaters Replacements 10,000

1 1, 000,000IP ADA Compliance Upgrades

PV Angle Stop Replacements 50, 000

PV Wall Heater Replacements 210,0001
PV Water Heater Replacements 54, 000

RV Interim Repairs , 111. 60,000

SHM Conduit Replacement (Sump Pump) 26, 000

50,000SHM PVC Roof Installation

45,000SHM Wall Heater Replacements
20,000SHM Water Heater Replacements

1

Property Code

1, 112,0001 1, 535,0002,353, 000) 
5, 000, 000

22 of 154



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

23 of 154



Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda
701 Atlantic Avenue - Alameda, California 94501- 2161 - Tel. ( 510) 747-4300 - Fax: ( 510) 522- 7848 - TDD: ( 510) 522- 8467

To: Honorable Chair and

Members of the Board of Commissioners

From: Vanessa M. Cooper
Executive Director

Prepared by: Marie Wang, Finance Director

Date: January 18, 2017

RE: Budget Variance Report for November 2016

BACKGROUND

On May 18, 2016 the Board of Commissioners approved a two-year operating
budget for all programs covering the fiscal years July 1, 2016 through June 30, 
2018. This Budget Variance Report covers preliminary unaudited financial
operating results compared to the budget approved on May 18, 2016, for the five- 
month period of July 1, 2016 to November 30, 2016. Although the year- end
financial data is accrued, the month- to- month financials are on a cash basis. 

The format of this budget variance report is different from the report presented in
FY 15- 16. It is more compatible with the format of the FY 16- 17 approved budget. 
It now presents a Housing Assistance Payments ( HAP) Pass- through Budget
and the HCV/Section 8 Operations Budget separately. 

Please note this is for the period ending November 30, 2016. Financial reports
going forward will report one month after the month end to allow for improved
reporting. 

DISCUSSION

Overall operating income is more than the year-to- date budget by $ 233,316
4%), mainly due to the higher year-to- date tax increment that we received from

the City ($ 158, 069) compared with the budget. The vacancy loss is $ 122, 310
Tess than the year-to- date budget due to better than projected occupancy. 

The operating revenue in the HCV Program is higher than the year-to- date
budget by $ 109,451 ( 16 %). This is mainly due to the higher HUD' s disbursement
of the Administrative Fee revenue comparing with our budgeted revenue. There
will be a year-end reconciliation to determine if there is any over or under
payment to adjust at the end of fiscal year. 

24 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 2 of 7

The other income including the professional service revenue is $ 263, 122 less
than the year-to-date budgeted revenue. This is mainly due to a time lag of billing
for the CDBG program, and the services payment from ICD ($ 100, 000), which
has been paid in late December. 

Agency -wide operating expenses are lower than the year-to- date budget by
801, 769 ( 18 %). This is mainly due to the lower salary and benefit expenses by
561, 166. There are currently 10 funded positions that are vacant ( of these 5 are

in the Rent Program. Both in the Rent Program and elsewhere, temporary staff
has been utilized to provide assistance until permanent staff being placed to
those positions. The other administrative expenses including the supplies, 
training, and administrative services are also lower than the year-to- date budget
by $ 170, 125. Generally these expenses, especially training, catch up later in the
fiscal year. 

Please note that the budgeted year-to- date salary expenses are calculated
based on the 12 months basis, and the actual year-to- date salary expenses are
calculated based on 26 payrolls. At the end of November, the year-to- date
budgeted salary is 42% of the budget, and the year-to- date actual salary is 38% 
of the annual salary. The difference due to the time lag will be erased as time
progresses. 

Effective January 1, 2017, AHA will start contributing to the health insurance
premium for the maximum of employees plus 2 dependents. The annual budget
for the new benefit contribution is averaged out for 12 months since July 1, 2016. 
So the differences in between the year-to- date budgeted benefit expenses and
the year-to- date actual benefit expenses will also be caught up by January 1, 
2017. 

The Net Operating Income ( NOI) before Debt Service is $ 2, 319, 075, which is
1, 077,729 ( 87%) higher than the year-to- date budget. The Net Income is
1, 848, 141, which is $ 1, 062,753 ( 133%) more than the year-to- date budgeted

surplus. 

Capital Improvement Project

CIP' s totaled $ 383, 738 for year- to- date through November 2016. The FY 16- 17
annual capital budget is $ 3, 771, 718. The total budget for ABD 504 Project is

505, 000, but it overlaps FY 15- 16 and FY 16- 17. The project is now complete. 

CIP expenditure from July to Nov, 2016

1120 Lincoln House - ADA Modifications

2100 Esperanza - Replace shower units

6010 A. B. Diament - Section 504 Projects

6020 Rosefield - For 738 Eagle Ave & 727 Buena Vista Project

6100 Eagle - Replace tub & surrounding area

12, 420

7, 580

335, 974

4, 184

23, 580

Total CIP Projects YTD November, 2016 $ 383, 738
25 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 3 of 7

HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS ( HAP) PASS-THROUGH

The Housing Assistance Payments ( HAP) Pass- through budget includes all the
Housing Choice Voucher/Section 8, Shelter Plus and Bessie Coleman ( SRO) 
programs. The year-to- date revenue is $ 1, 194,939 ( 10%) less than the budget. 

The HAP payments to landlords are $ 1, 125,794 ( 10%) less than the year-to- date

budget, resulting a net loss of $ 69, 145 as of November 30, 2016. This amount
will be recouped. From HUD The AHA staff submitted a request for additional
HAP funding in October. HUD granted staffs request of additional $ 237, 000. 

A project reserve ( or HAP funds Held by HUD reserve) whereby AHA can draw
additional HAP funds if our HAP costs exceed any year' s HAP budget has been
established by HUD in lieu of significant RNP ( Restricted Net Position) cash
reserves held by AHA in the past. This HUD held HAP reserve has a balance in
excess of $ 3. 9 million dollars as of November 30, 2016. As the payment
standard increases effective April and September 2016, and with the issuance of
50 new vouchers, the HUD held HAP reserve balance is expected to be fully
utilized in the future. 

Our November lease rate based on units is at 80. 4 percent due to the tight

housing market. The year-to-date lease rate is at 80. 4 percent for the fiscal year
ending November 30, 2016, and 81. 3 percent for the HUD calendar year 2016
annual funding cycle, which began in January. The November utilization rate
based on funding) has increased to 98. 3%. The year-to- date utilization rate of

actual HAP expense has slightly increased to 96. 0% of the HUD Budget Amount
for the fiscal year ending November 30, 2016, and 93. 8 % for the HUD calendar
year 2016 annual funding cycle. This is due to the rising payment standards
designed to help increase leasing. ( See Attachment 2) 

HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM OPERATIONS

On May 26, HUD sent a letter to Executive Directors increasing the
administrative fee proration for calendar year ( CY) 2016 from 80 percent to 84

percent. The Department has allocated previously unused funds towards the
administrative fee as the FY 2016 Appropriations Act allows it to do. 

The operating ( or administrative) portion of the Housing Choice Voucher program
presented at this report also includes the administrative tasks of the Shelter Plus
Program and ROSS/ FSS Project Coordinator Programs

The operating revenue is higher than the year- to- date budget by $ 109,451
16%). This is mainly due to the higher HUD' s disbursement of the Administrative

Fee revenue comparing with our budgeted revenue. There will be a year-end
reconciliation to determine if there is any over or under payment to adjust at the
end of fiscal year. The operating expenses are lower than the budget by

187, 966 ( 20%), mainly due to the lower year-to- date salary and benefit
expenses ($ 133, 341) and lower other administrative expenses ($ 39, 879). 

26 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 4 of 7

Voucher administrative fee currently has an operating surplus of $ 38, 019
compared to the year-to- date budgeted deficit of $ 259, 398. 

PROPERTY OPERATIONS

PARROT VILLAGE AND EAGLE VILLAGE

Total operating revenue for Parrot Village and Eagle Village properties is slightly
over budget by $ 70, 295 ( 7%). This is mainly due to the lower actual vacancy
loss than the year-to- date budget by $ 32, 239. The net tenant rental revenue is, 
therefore, $ 65, 163 higher than the year-to- date budget. 

The operating expenses are under budget by $ 82, 591. This is mainly due to the
lower salary and benefit expenses ($ 48,641) and lower maintenance cost

22, 371), resulting in a surplus of $ 484, 627 versus the year-to- date budgeted
surplus of $ 344,482. Maintenance expenses are expected to increase in coming

months as the property is subject to HQS shortly. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OWNED

Operating revenue finished this month slightly over budget by $ 86, 030 ( 4%). 
There were 15 vacant units in November, which includes Rosefield Village and
A. B. Diament for a total of 10 units. Please note that the vacant units referred
here means the unit is vacant at any time in the month, so these numbers may
not match the property reports. Out of 15 vacant units in November, 3 units of
these are permanently offline at Rosefield. The actual year- to- date vacancy loss
is still lower than the year-to- date budget by $ 45, 402. The net tenant rental
revenue is, therefore, $ 73, 091 higher than the year-to- date budgeted net
revenue. 

The operating expenses are under budget by $ 250, 654 ( 15%). This is mainly due
to the saving in the salary and benefit expenses of $ 155, 505 and lower other
administrative expenses by $ 33, 117, resulting in a surplus of $ 730, 541 versus
the year-to- date budgeted surplus of $395,440. 

INDEPENDENCE PLAZA

Operating revenue is over budget by $ 230, 991 ( 19%), mainly due to the higher
year-to- date tax increment revenue than the budget by $ 158,069. There will be a
year-end reconciliation to determine if there is any over or under payment to
adjust. There were 5 vacant units in November, which still resulted a saving in
the year-to- date vacancy loss by $ 44,669, compared with the year-to- date
budget. 

The operating expenses are under budget by $ 48, 944 ( 8%). This is mainly due to
the saving in the salary and benefit expenses of $ 62, 344, offset by higher
maintenance contract cost due to higher unit turn around ($ 26,817), still resulting
in a surplus of $ 743, 580 versus the year-to-date budgeted surplus of $ 466, 298. 

27 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 5 of 7

Maintenance expenses are expected to increase in coming months as the

property is subject to HQS. 

AHA/CDBG/ HCD/OTHER MANAGED PROGRAMS

This section includes Housing Community Development, CDBG, Successor
Agency, Development and other Programs. The reimbursement programs are
under contract with the City for CDBG, HOME and other affordable housing
programs. Reimbursement billings are processed by the City. There is no any
current revenue to cover the costs for the Successor Housing agency, so the
funds received from the City in August of 2012 is utilized to fund the budgeted
activities. 

Operating revenue is under budget by $ 263,453 ( 63%). The professional service

revenue ($ 100K) was paid by ICD in December. There is a time lag in the CDBG
billing too. The operating expenses are under budget by $ 231, 618 ( 43%). This is

mainly due to the saving in the salary and benefit expenses for the amount of
161, 262, and other administrative expenses of $ 74,801, resulting an overall

deficit of $ 148,627, compared with the budgeted deficit of $ 161, 436. 

OTHER FINANCIAL ISSUES

GASB -68

As a local government agency, AHA has to maintain its books by standards set
by the Government Accounting Standards Board ( GASB). Each year the GASB
sets guidelines for accounting practices, identified by number. Effective FY 2016, 
AHA must operate by GASB rule 68, which is commonly known as GASB -68. 
This new rule, GASB -68, requires all government agencies ( States, Counties, 
Cities and Special Purpose Local Governments) to report pension liabilities which

have historically been reported on a pay as you go basis by all government
entities. Since AHA is a member of the CaIPERS retirement system, AHA is
required to report each year on any unfunded pension liability. 

According to the CaIPERS Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2014 for the
Miscellaneous Plan of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, the
estimated balance of Authority' s Unfunded Accrued Liability ( UAL) as of June 30, 
2016 would be $ 1, 600, 594. This is lower than the previous estimate of

1, 874, 684. According to the Senior Pension Actuary at CaIPERS Actuarial
Office, there is no penalty if the liability remains unpaid, but the plan charges
7. 5% on any existing unfunded liability. 

Although the Board has approved a payment of $ 1, 954, 024 to pay down the
liability, staff delayed the payment as previously reported in order to obtain
further information from CaIPERS. Staff made a payment of $ 1, 000, 000 on June
8, 2016 to avoid the 7. 5% interest charge on outstanding liabilities. This partial
payment was made due to the concern that if the Unfunded Accrued Liability
UAL) balance decreases more, as we have observed for the past year, by not

making the full payment up front, we would not take the risk of overpaying the
28 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 6 of 7

UAL. The staff will continue monitoring the UAL balance to make
recommendations of either paying down or paying off the balance. If the total
amount recommended to pay off exceeds the previous approved pay off of

1, 954, 024, staff will return to the Board for approval. 

CaIPERS has released the actuarial valuations report with the measurement date
of June 30, 2015 for the whole risk -pool, which they made available to everyone
online. The difference this year is that they are not providing individualized
reports with the required disclosures readily available ( like they did last year.) 
The staff will review the report and make any new recommendations, if
necessary, to the Board, once the updated balance of Unfunded Accrued Liability
UAL) is calculated and confirmed. For the audit of the current fiscal year, a third

party consultant will be hired to calculate the GASB -68 Unfunded Accrued
Liability and prepare the AHA individualized Actuarial Valuation report. 

GASB-45/ OPEB

The Government Accounting Standards Board ( GASB) has mandated disclosure
of other post -employment benefit (OPEB) liabilities for all government employers

beginning in 2009. During fiscal years prior to 2012 the Authority' s employees
were actually employees of the City of Alameda and not employees of the
Authority itself, therefore there was no OPEB obligation or expense recognized in
fiscal years prior to 2012. During fiscal year 2015 the Authority administered this
program on a pay- as-you- go basis and actual costs were expensed as incurred. 
To comply with GASB 45, the Authority estimated the present value of the
projected benefits of the OPEB program using the Alternative Measurement
Method as permitted by GASB Statements Numbers 43 and 45. 

The goal of GASB 45 is to match recognition of retiree medical expense with the

periods during which the benefit is earned. The entry age normal cost method
effectively meets this goal in most circumstances. The plan currently has no
assets. 

AHA issued a Request for Proposal ( RFP) for an independent assessment of
OPEB liabilities for the analysis on the post -employment health benefits and
make recommendations of possible improvements in regards to AHA Actuarial

Funding Policy and the benefit structure of AHA. Nicolay Consulting Group
NCG) has been selected to provide the analysis and prepared the detailed

actuarial report to be incorporated into the audited financial statement. Nicolay

Consulting Group is presenting the Actuarial Valuations Report to Board of
Commissioners at the January Board Meeting. 

OTHER ISSUES IMPACTING FINANCE DEPARTMENT

AHA issued a Request for Proposal ( RFP) for an independent assessment of
financial systems and controls review. Nan McKay and Associates, Inc. has
been selected to provide the comprehensive review of key financial systems and
controls including: banking practices and controls, accounting practices and
controls, financial reporting, software system, fraud prevention and controls, etc. 
Nan McKay will conduct an on- site review and face-to- face interview on January

29 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 7 of 7

10th to January 12th. The final written report including an executive summary, 
description of current systems and controls and prioritized recommendation will

be available no later than 8 weeks after the site visit. 

The six-month tenure of the temporary controller has come to an end and she
has been reassigned to another employer. During this time she assisted with
preparing the supporting schedules for FY 15- 16 Audit and preparing the
adjusted journal entries to support the FDS submitted to HUD. She also prepared

the accounting procedures for financial month- end and year-end closing and
audit; daily cash reconciliation and monthly bank reconciliation; new vendor set
up and validation policy. In addition, she has worked with the Finance
Department staff to expand the implementation of additional internal control
procedures for the Finance Department' s operation. Staff will be making a
recommendation to the Board on permanent staffing for the Finance Department
following the Nan McKay visit. In the meantime temporary staff will be used as
necessary. 

BUDGET CONSIDERATION/ FINANCIAL IMPACT

At the bottom of each budget variance report, the balance is shown by either a
surplus or deficit. An adjustment for any deficit is made by transferring from
accumulated operating reserves. Generally, surpluses are added to operating
reserves while deficits are reductions to operating reserves. 

RECOMMENDATION

For information only. 

Respectfully submitted, 

VbvuCt,\J

Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director

VC/ MW

Attachments: 1. Budget Variance Reports
2. Section 8 HCV Tracking Report

30 of 154



1/

11/2017
1:

45PMINDEPENDENCEPLAZA (8100) BudgetComparisonPeriod . Nov2016
1,

582,0811
1,

500,633
aToP. M.1 xN NMf

22,716130,827
n80IAOO O

0

Np
w01 11 nO ^ 0'y

216,5731
x Y1 Nc n 1QpTn

86,902419,93029,508114,33036,75053,655ITotalTenantServicesandBenefit( 
7,

916111,1871
3,

271129%
1

690155,935116,245129%
1

134,243
OC0M

O
1

aNH

aN

M

MOOWIMIa1

0
N

0ODIf1

F

olNNM 01VN1 MalN PppIflV) ANi' GD01

19,512
3,

21332,579
1,

544,494
ri
Vl

235,1061
1

pnCD p4 7 f 0CrO O0YI M 01hNN

26% 53% 
76% 115

35% 30% 
O 115apH4N01NyOl 10N yO 1+ 1 M MM. 4N1!7N.. P. yO pO 0 Ol A.. N

r

M

titX10

1

184
3,

30548,944564,259 -279,93597,961 -
2,

653
1

743,580466,298277,2821
10... co co Mmi. . N. I

V
4

NCOa . a 0. co01 a TO co MHf1, 4.10OpM10

N. Ifl4 nN

0

12,845227,830
2,

239
00N1 1i G

a M. MCO . 445 $ jMMN

6194223,32456,062273,640
AtN1i 'diN 01M M1eiN NNp01 MSOM M 4,

8521
3,

33236,209174,971659,2001625,2641
a N
OD 1NN

V CD

OM+
10N1 01 ~ yi

271
1,

199,869
OM1 ^ f\ NN

Q1+ P. 8,

064
1,

15516,880594,596
Oa111ppVp

45,82411,03798,438258,965
y0ca., 

15,27812,21080,54326,55311,966
enCO atri Mi

24,268152,584
sa+ 

40 MMiMi0 NYat
h$ 

V 01
pO n 01

O. U1 Mi1

p1

Oai
0^ co q

w

tV014 b' VN N 7 e. N 7 ArO 10Ma NM P N Ma O V1M7N ON 1% 1M O' v5% 

25% 
LI1'4 N1 V1 NQ*pN Y1 p 1M . y

MVf01

2553766112,204
01MON1 a1DN N1 r. MM

10,783] 
M M 0pN 0 VlODMMM MI N NNMONa 01MN1 0 01aaN04'... 01 01N Oin ' 7' 0 V1n M01N 1,

385
1,

553
fO ... 4N10V) . r4. M 111 V1MOO 100M 0 01 01 Mpp .. 01V10. 4N(. ti

a

F NN eN OpV1u1

NN 1,

626268
2,

715128,708
berM

IOn1
Ch .1

N
01aN N V Na N I' 1. 04N . 1 0 0MI acoON^ N ina b 0004 10 7,

24034,994
OD O
M N

r

256,893112,845
1,

893
2,

569239,586333
pOt 1,

586241,560
P1, ti 1,

371231
3,

376140,912
r

dD04 CAONP10n. O1ff MODm ti OO aO' M1,

2251705
N001MINN M palT MIV1 N 001

5,

85536,547
11100O bco' VOl

OD O

na N01N M O Vpp1OqD 101t com^ 
N

oncen
N

CO M

1 N

GeneralExpensesInsurance - debilityInsurance - PropertyInsurance - VehideTotalGeneralExpensesTotalOperatingExpensesNOIbeforeDebtServicesDebtServicesINetIncomeRegularMaintenanceMaintenance - SalariesMalntEmployeeBenefitsMaintenanceMaterialsMaintenanceContractCostTotalMaintenance
Y

p

TenantServices - SalariesTenantServicesEmployeeBenefitsPoliceServicesTenantServicesActivities
yj°- 

OCXIC aF' t. C

AdminEmployeeBenefitsTemporaryMelo - AdministrativeLegalExpenseAuditingFeesOtherAdminExpensesTotalAdministrativeExpenseGrossTenantRentalRevenueTaxIncrementPaymentsfromthe
Cz

Zppw V

RentFreeUnitWriteOffNetTenantRentalRevenueMaintenanceChargeslateChargesTotalTenantRevenueOtherIncomeTotalRevenue
31 of 154



1/

11/2017
1:

45PMRevenueInterestandInvestmentIncome
1

017821 -7821 -100%
1

1,

1471
3,

9101 -
2,

7631 -71% 
9,

3821NetIncome
1

3611 -32,286132,6471 -101%
1 -

148,6271 -161,436112,8091 -
8%

1 -

387,448
1

8i
p

T0ta1Revenue
I

43,276183,9081 -40,6321 -48%
1

156,0851419,5381 -263,4531 -63%
1

1,

006,8861
IIN

Ommimr 

Itel v. N .+ 

19,510
5,

000
CO CON10

aN N

0

O

CO

O0

X01

OOOOXrt

TNN

0

N

10 000

efl iM

ITotalMaintenance2301471 -1831 -389%
1

68512361 -4491 -190%
I

566
N

1: 
m

pp 1

n1111

M

44. 

NIAIrtN

Li

p

it

n01N

N

HCD/CDBG/SuccessorAgency/DEV/OtherProgramsBudgetComparison - HCD/CDBG/SVCCeSSOrAgency
is

X000
e:

Y

Ii:;: 
2,

9561 -36% 56 -
3% 

80167% 233,05143% 
tQ

1

731
0 N1. 1

001 NV' 

236
0 0

01nN

92,26746,615
8,

129
2,

083
O O

g11MwO

ON1 1 0-. n
0

tmpStg14.+ N

1

N 0

Im+a110+
1

111

111111
M'1

36,211306,020
VI

m0
N NN1Nfl

II:
g. 

II:;;:
r, 

55,793137,736168% 
VM m V' 

22,2021
5,

571125% 107,81465,74661% 
Mm

471
0

47
0 0

N M

O 9

221
O01mul Mmm N

44742,829
f

Maintenance - SalariesMaintEmployeeBenefitMaintenanceMaterialsMaintenanceContractCost
SxEE
1h

ae

AdminEmployeeBenefitTemnnraryHelo - Administrative
c

rn$ 

E` 3 5

cXW

E

LandFee/GroundLeaseProfessionalServiceRevenue
32 of 154



1/

11/2017
1:

46PMAnnualBudget
ONMWO1MMn

tnnWW40M M40

4000omfM.'. M

N40N. 0(' 5
10 inf N 115 0 n ~ O

4.. 4401
NON n OO40ti P00i

b--- If8NOnrc
M

Y! 

N

3,

074,733
1,

190,658
V0 . r M40a7..000 NM401140N OM4Na.- N40l 0.4p O. tMON

OM

N40p0pp4 OO40 nGDNN4- 
p

OI
OM1V. NI4 of . 4

A

44* a4gN gdoyy. N igN N N Y1

2aYaR2R

N 4Q M M 24N a 40 0 0N 2R 2EbtN N

A0OmdY
400Of oaO 1 N p4,-- mO - pVpf1 E . 4 pMMM yei

48,066366,084417,824
2,

400493
p004p0p 44001G.4 4y 1f1pN

5

tlrMfl242,269
01

y
5,

170) 
1,

938505) 170,125
4400l QfN pN V 1 n-1 04Y01 4/V 1 Qp pS { ap01 IA

45,370
J1 (

9,

194) 
IVoa

dY

Budget
3§ Iy NN

ppfMpp1
N

411 4N0el

783,333625,264
5,

002,313
4,

806,606240,330) 51,055) 48,066) 
4,

467,154
1

040 1pt1D

4,

484,742
0 IMO

b

M 

Q.

p1
Ni

ppp

4.-

p1
V

81761,398495421,097
pOpMN

Iyei

1M/
1 ppQMpN 8YfOno pry1 a1n coN

N

I.M I

p'I
111

OpnpD

Q N

0 411G  , co . 4vv
4*iRN

23,7821
N0M0N Ni

4,

871,543
O1O1ainO00 a 4aOON 5,

877,456
ONNM0000MWO0 4O. M

98759,46019,000250,972
N4N1OJ0

O' 04. 404N

a040041M. 410
0004A

t. 04in M 4411
Iff04

ofO

493,635379,728162,473
M 1/ 1MNa 4n
Mg0

nwY
MnaD .NIn. f0prel Ipti N

HCD/COBG/SuccessorAgency/DEV/OtherProperties
N

hpO

N

No
N O4p40O

64,3821
5,

39311,085
2,

13936,211
0m

1

163
0

HousingAuthoritytheCityAlameda
1

UnauditedBudgetVarianceReportIForthefourmonthFiscalPeriodEndingHoverYear -Date (YTD) ActualIncomeandExpenditures
Y6

Tr. 
N

O

M

00

coin
o

4 g ONNNN
Off O n ..4

O

737,240
O O CO

OO ONN CO 40a0 MCO1n

a. 

Mv
rn ppaIAN00N. 4t0

11,966
5,

830
3,

424268152,584
00 a

co

1f

ON
N4 Qp1t001M a

t0 pIO ONOM OffOV

11,03798,438IndependencePlaza
OMntO

yn4o

rn ,o., 

1 a00 NOin V

19,554) 
9,

465) 
1,

425,761
3,

906190
0

Na

ih

en0co' 

N

r04

T. VN

40N40MMMM
N. 

N

01

O1

04 n CO 40 OffM

YINOl.n 00n 100
N .. . 0 a

T09'
TI

8L4'
9T Off014000V M00

pM
NO

4NN
01

255,805
pupff1 N040NtnN W

30,227233,008AHAOwnedYTDActual
7,8o

Cn04pN 04400D0 Of4001f1est...... 

460) 395) 
2,

410,89911,520
1,

53012,123
2,

436,072
1

o0004.0
mili. 

N N. 004nOoi Otito

28,6321
9,

994
4,

398
2,

782426145,742
N O04MN.. Of

40 V

0

N4

15 00

N.4

NY1

M

105,70872,90430,73712,793638Parrot & EagleVillageYTDActual237,324790,455
04nNNON

40 0
4n CO00pp

0 M0

O M
O

N N N M

a

Off84
M

NN

W

meC

C

MaintenanceMaterials
WuaN
QryZiNA

Cced=e
F0

y Laq N
u

0

WC C
00. 5'- 

Oy14

01go

e

g

CC

TenantandSocialServices - Activities
Y1W

A

H

F

Ny

H92C SEE
w« a

N

0 al V) yy

tuiC C

yd

y0
W
C

TemporaryHelp - AdministrativeLegalExpenseAuditingFeesOtherAdmin. ExpensesTotalAdministrativeExpense
0 a
M

r 8>f 0V

v0VI

C.....-' 6CC
w 4' 

TaxIncrementPaymentsfromCityGrossPotentialRentVacancyLossRentFreeUnitWriteOffNetRentalIncomeMaintenanceChargesLateChargesCommercialRentsTotalTenantRevenue
H0LLy >

IppL

cEos> 
a

0Gx

OtherIncomeTotalRevenue
33 of 154



1/

11/2017
1:

46PM
I

OM00IA
poj

nn0

QN' 
0-IN

O

OI
8O80N

pp
pOp MNnN

ON

Oa+ 
O

484,628730,541743,58038,019 -148,627
1,

848,141785,388
1,

062,753135% 
1,

884,932AnnualBudgetTotalActualBudgetVarianceVarianceFY16-17 ;
a

1,

004,1591
1,

196,620
I

192,461
I

16%
1

2,

871,888
I

ForthefourmonthFiscalPeriodEndingNovember30, 2016
I

I

1

Year - Date (YTD) ActualIncomeandExpenditures—
F

Year -to -DateYear -Date %
4 N N W 0 N f il

4IAM Ov nppIfl Nv co' nn' b

aa} 42,644
1 N

d

n

N' 1 a

Mv
v a v

455,958
Oo

Cou

ir) 0N Ntco Io1h

53,848
3,

559,358
N N. N. 

MN

HousingAuthoritytheCityAlamedaUnauditedBudgetVarianceReportHCD/CDBG/SuccessOrAgency/DEV/OtherProperties
o rnppp IOOM nOntN 2,

9771
NN10
N

co

YTDActual
Nt0

4 F, OI On
4nD

g

II0M
O

Cy01

Ndnad33ccw

YTDActual
I

CDN
N. wr'I

in o

1 N

844,194
N

AHAOwnedYTDActual552,142
PI NagoO4

14,0201
a I t0N IDnpOti ON ON a0ioN mtDI•N1

Parrot & EagleDescriptionVillageYTDActualTotalMaintenance186,0721GeneralExpenses
rnnnn

N ID IO1 IO I/ I

TotalGeneralExpenses
9,

208526,017DebtServices
1

41,389TotalOperatingExpensesOtherExpensesPre -developmentCostTotalOtherExpensesNOIBeforeDebtServices
r- 

NetIncomeOtherMiscellaneous
I

Insurance - LiabilityInsurance - PropertyInsurance - Vehicle
34 of 154



1/

11/2017
1:

PMAHAOwned
I

BudgetComparisonPenod - Nov2016ppSrn  
1.1 Ig1 Y 6,

041,3691302,06968,14860,414
nel m

1.1

uN + 
in

rOtherIncome13,079
6,

126
6,

953113% 33,08930,631
2,

458
8% 

73,515TotalRevenue505,427476,626801
6% 

2,

469,161
2,

383,13186,030
4% 

5,

719,514Expenses: 
1

1 _

1

1

1

1

1

1

I

ni
Nalniaaa111'

g3
O. fV N + 1 i ry

TotalAdministrativeExpense
1

109,4021111,3271
1,

9251
2%

1

470,8351556,635185,800115%
1

1,

335,9251
0000g0

4$$' 8.

22
n O Q N aD

TotalTenantServicesandBenet' 67218941
7,

222127%
1

102,2201134,470132,2501
1

322,727
1

TotalUtilities116,34854,179 -169 -115% 255,805270,897r15,0921
6%

1

650,153
el9iggaan
b N

II/ 

YO1 1~Oi

CIST3a

TotalOperatingExpenses328,495331,668
3,

173
1% 

1,

407,689
1,

658,343250,65415%
1

3,

980,0251Pre -developmentCost
0

0

0

0% 

2,

000
0 -

2,

000
0%

1

0

NOIBeforeDebtServices
1

176,9321144,9581 -31,9741 -22%
1

1,

059,4721724,7881 -334,6841 -46%
1

1,

739,489
0ifl01 co

O 

O in.. 0h. O h. O 0 a, fNN 0; N O aDb 10M• n NM N M O01H M MM

1b+
1 SN 3% 

276% 
0% Y, 

40

gin
MMf 4Ai ryV1u N

29,65523,790
n

ryn
N NNOwI 5,

3571
2,

3451
YndD b

38,85533,528
O Y0. 4
4

1M+
f

4NO
N WIN It

N

N

73,091
8,

458
1,

530
SI viiriO) 

e 8fbNN2 4a0 . a 8ifN

329,348395,440
A 24$ U.pt1.1N. Ifl

rO
NAY a' a". a0nN b

299,071123,69710,09316,194
NOMIN CpIL. O. 

s

p1. 
1. 1

16,95855012,12935,338
MO1 1̂111 IN Q.^. NNN0

zN aD

1. 1. N

111pgr. F1 . 1

2,

337,808
3,

062
0 Sb 17jNenN

M InMN ^ M

202,99585,91230,227
ppp0 -. nl NN

M

CW
M00O1 COf . 1101 ap10NN10

11,60141,895
p4040MNNqN ..4i0001101N0 01 YM1 NIV .' 1 7,

93866,736
oN11 § QaO4 N T0141NN aDN 01.N10. O. 1. .1.N

p . nN
ctO1
N

1 . 1

O appM N N1.1 a fNM b1 N P YO. q 10 Y1M .. pr MM M Pb NN 1 apY1 yyyy 0v pN Y1 p0N b N

82832,802
0

870
N ON

O1D01O

Oi. 01.1N N0NbN. 403 01Nfl01N iti0 Mf; 0. 11. 1O. O aNVI O
N b1.~1000. O0* 1.1N NR. N. ON

0o
eg

0: 

N O4III M ONNAO. 
a
aa7i

OdaN

01+11 2,

426
7,

068
ON014, NN 2,

0191
3,

239
a a401g

0000NNNN
S 

5,

679
5,

034
10' N enN N

Q Nd0b .... b .. 4
N 2,

804365
111I

0003. 0..0
1t9 0 ~ NN NxxNN* 04. 40..0i 1. f Q. 0N N

Yf
aYNa0i. 
O N N

5Q 

rt.T. s1. o. 0
r. N 0 O 01.1 b

489,628
0

260
2,

460492,348
0g OV

RegularMaintenanceMaintenance - SalariesMaintEmployeeBenefitMaintenanceMaterialsMaintenanceContractCostTotalMaintenance
x6x NW

C

Insurance - PropertyInsurance - VehldeITenant/SodalServices/PoliceTenantServices - SalariesTenantSvcsEmployeeBenefitPoliceServicesTenant -RelocationCostsTenantServiceActivities - ContiAdministrativeAdministrativeSalariesAdminEmployeeBenefitsTemporaryHelp - AdministrativlLegalExpenseAuditingFeesOtherAdmin. ExpensesGrossTenantRentalRevenueTenantHAPSubsidyGrossPotentialRentVacancyLossRentFreeUnitWitteNetTenantRentalRevenueMaintenanceChargesLateChargesCommercialRentsTotalTenantRevenue
35 of 154



1/

11/2017
1:

49PMBudgetComparison - HousingAssistancePayments ( HAP) PassThroughbudgetIIIIIIIIIMIIIIIIIMIIIIIIIIIIITIIIMIBIEIIIIIIILPeriod - Nov2016PTDBudget.` *ratlikeTotalHUDGrantHUDOperatingGrants
2,

292,3241
2,

321,5211 -1971 -196110,412,665111,607,6041 -
1,

194,9391 -10%
1

27,858,249
Fr' 

TotalExpenses
2,

153,358
2,

321,521168,163
7%

1

10,481,810111,607,6041
1,

125,794! 10%
1

27,858,2491138,966
0

138,96600/
0 -

69,145
0

69,145
0% 

0

01 00 000 1

Inn V 0 • co.. N
w Na

Pg

4 Nti

OOa0O§ 

wa' Yg
ti1

o
i4

n O

1p .
inI. 

10,404,39927,448
r. 4Y tiCO0

p' erOoN
N Or n O O n

2,

0821
8,

447
N inco NaDD 11tpN co mN 1ON

p.

p4
MbNpp

N

17,2221
0 01 ONaOVIN O NNNN°). 

0NaNln

1 QIA CD N 40N YfM1N 3,

278
2,

153,358LV+ RentOwners - BessieColemanPORT -In (
A/

R

Billings) HousingAssistancePayments - Land!orHousingAssistancePayments - FSSUtilityAllowanceTenantsHousingAssistancePaymentsNetIncome
36 of 154



1/

11/2017
1:

50PM
op

yCa1
6

BudgetComparisonPeriod . Nov2016
N0. Np 1+ 1 NCOO. N 1D. 4N .....• N NC.

1N
1 NN

m

2,

237,69712,559
2,

250,256224,176694
7,

50412,0391
6,

499pi.
O

W . N+ a 1° ON I M OaN NN 01 IffN

N

10rlti

aN1Wp

ninO

NV1N

W1• ito

In

n

RegularMaintenance
I

I

I

1

1

I

I

I

I

1N CO
N 01N

f 111

N ON

TotalMaintenance33,642147,339113,69729%
1

186,0721236,697150,625121%
1

568,0721
OO Op N~ in  N Mti ppO Qp NNW

TN T Pge,g. liRtiN. aigNN LT966E1Rp** gg* XNW W
ggfRiRte, 

tiNNN N

Ip.
I NN' Oi iR* N3 t g ***

say$ 

1 nO01Wf12

2

N0IN 1 00 21+ 1 W H u1N ryO4 1in1CO ryN ONN NN
N

f ON MID CONO01
N N YIN NNpp N0I fN 1 YI Yfp ./ O M I 1. 1P NOI QI IDE0 Of WN OIlON W Y1 NCIO M NYfM 0O 1I1N NOYIPN LAT CONNN 0NM O. Mr 1OO . 1O YINW Wq p 0 IAary pfA. NdNp fV

N

ljNY
pm

N

28,648
N

90,52841,367
01 MN 10O PN

COM
MON CO MMOv. NN 2M NM VI0. N ONM co MryO Nw CO

pp1

ON aNryNry1D2 v

p4
N N01pNp . 1N . 4 121NOw

IN+
1O. W O0101 a MN NM NN 10p

2

np
N N 2p (y Nf 1pmDp . 1OM1 pf M 5,

016
2,

708
01 O1 0W PN N1v. 

tllLN bN

Opp1
Y

484,62772,90430,737
O1AptN . D

297
120120Nw 10 1 OpCl

01 O
W a nNI renO. 4N-1 w M

81,51028,632
9,

994
4,

398
2,

782
f NN u. a

237,324790,455
1,

027,779pppp
CO H

0

996,578
8,

356680
OpNMINN

N

gj

N

7RiR

O a10 sN n pN h NYI ry1M aN N
2R RiR7R7RiR iR 

N M MN N 1. p NO MH 10 . 11 eiM N N MN2R 10 N N R0 N Q• N p

31N 3 .Oppg.1
NO, N inR p1pMYI00P N 1,

015
3,

204
IA1p 1+ 1 OO

40
1,

004
X01IanN . i 111MO

r1
w

894361
4,

746
8,

685
3,

93910,049
0

2,

01015,99815390
N . 20p O11 . r1N aN

T10y

132
2,

206
qNN 1 aP 1 N app10'Gi

18,106
8,

273
NNV' i. 

18,681
7,

724625
81 YI 7f+l 00N . i 2,

275
0 N 3N aNfOV NNOI'

ll
8NN1,1

10,049
2,

639
2,

010186,283192
0

186,475
1,

047
NNN

O. N M10 NN N  Nl N111N

228
8,

713pN
W .. 4O COmoitriVI

OM. 
1 4N Na 2i 2,

275
0 n~ NN VDN N1p HO. OIA ... 1

0

732
4,

871133,9791
1+ 12a

00 NOM
N 01

1e.
I03NN 1D1v

0

202,28190
0 O

N104 M1.. Nn
N

Maintenance - SalariesMaintenanceEmployeeBenefitsMaintenanceMaterialsMaintenanceContractCost
q

Insurance - VehicleTotalGeneralExpenses
a
g

NOIBeforeDebtServicesDebtServicesNetIncomeTenantServices - SalariesTenantServicesEmployeePoliceServicesTenant -RelocationCostsTenantServiceActivities - ConTotalTenantServicesandExpenses: AdministrativeAdministrativeSalariesAdminEmployeeBenefitTemporaryHelp - AdministrativtLegalExpenseAuditingFees
e E

RevenueGrossTenantRentalRevenueTenantHAPSubsidyGrossPotentialRentVacancyLossRentFreeUnitWriteOffNetTenantRentalRevenueMaintenanceChargesLateChargesTotalTenantRevenueOtherIncomeTotalRevenue
37 of 154



HCV/Section
8

Operations ( NOHAP) BudgetComparison
bN

N

1

HUDGrant & AdminFees140,719139,172
1,

547
1% 

805,499695,862109,63716% 
1,

670,0681OtherIncome
0

411 -41 -100% 19205 -186 -91% 491TotalRevenue
I

140,7191139,213r
1,

506
1%

1

805,5181696,0671109,451116%
1

1,

670,559
n vri

xi(+ v

TotalAdministrativeExpense
r

155,3201183,135127,815115%
1

737,2401915,6821178,442119%
1

2,

197,627Tenant/SocialServices/Police
I

I

I

I

I

I

1

I

I

oclfn

TotalTenantServicesandBenefits
1

4,

3001
4,

53012301
5%

1

18,229122,6511
4,

42220%
1

54,362
Mn v

23,36426,778
o000

TotalOperatingExpenses
1

161,1491191,0921943116% 767,4991955,4651187,9661
1

2,

293,104NetIncome -20,430 -51,87931,449 -61°!
o

38,019 -259,398 -297,417115% -622,545
00000000NN C% anM I. g** NN1 rM N n a

Mi O1. 3,

804
4,

863
1 01 I. 0iry11 .+ 

89,66654,812
1rl N4 14 n CO01M

NU) 
N
ti

n 1/ 1CO
01 N

0 0 0 0

N pWj1 . 4' Al

519,457204,208
001 010 I: 4 N b NH it; y

ti W1

146
1,

074
O7 VDM0101 NI(1 10

429,791149,396
00%N('% 00 . aN N N 14O1 ON06

0000

O W NO 100111 INA

II" 
0

230
O n.. s 000 0W ap1p

W Nti

345
5,

441
n

000 0

N CONN7 hN ZON 1,

947
2,

232
01 1. 1EOiD ODf• 1 OO v 3,

392
5,

441
CO . aa. NOO1N

000 0

465
LOT OY011 O1. 

95,46428,835
3,

737
0 in1 V'. 1pN NCONp

kaL
C

Tit, 
gal

PoliceServicesTenant/SodalServicesTotalUtilities - MaintenanceTotalMaintenanceMaterialsTotalMaintenanceContractCostTotalMaintenanceExpenses: AdministrativeAdministrativeSalariesAdminEmployeeBenefitTemporaryHelp - AdministrativeLegalExpenseAuditingFeesOtherAdminExpenses
38 of 154



u

Ctt

44- 1

enc
O C N

U

tts

o x VPooas

o c

4!t CA

C

O

UnitCategory
00V 00

0100 00

v- 9

0100v, ao

w' 1
oTo

Actual -VoucherCurrentBudget -Voucher
p0 y00

0 eIn • 00

cq e

pPI o: 00

M.. M00

ActualHAPExpensevs. BudgetHAPExpense
O v1 0 ON
rvi

0z

01

CurrentBudget -Voucher
73

8 v

0 MN ON N0 0

N N

o v - N N
V 00

0000, N

3
N N00 00

N40 NNO .• N N
00

000 ONON N

O

NV

00

00

00

N

H

H

H

sir

00

sO

00

00

00

NT

Off

d9

01

C' O 

UtilizationofHAPFunding
z 0 g; Q

N

39 of 154



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

40 of 154



Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda
701 Atlantic Avenue - Alameda, California 94501- 2161 - Tel: ( 510) 747-4300 - Fax: ( 510) 522-7848 - TDD: ( 510) 522-8467

To: Honorable Chair and

Members of the Board of Commissioners

From: Vanessa M. Cooper
Executive Director

Date: January 18, 2017

RE: Approve Outside Employment of Executive Director, Per 2014 Employment
Contract between the Board of Commissioners and Vanessa Cooper

BACKGROUND

The Executive Director' s contract permits outside employment up to 75 hours with the
approval of the Board of Directors. The contract ( section 3. 2 in part) reads... 

It is agreed that even during non -business hours Cooper shall not engage in any regularly
conducted business activity for profit without first obtaining approval of the Authority's Board
of Commissioners. Notwithstanding this restriction, it is understood that Cooper may take up
to 75 hours ( 10 days) per year for private consulting activities, teaching or other work, 
provided (a) such activity or work does not substantially interfere with the performance of
Cooper's job duties as Executive Director, and (b) such activities or work does not create a

conflict of interest for Cooper with respect to her job as Executive Director. " 

DISCUSSION

Executive Director Cooper has been asked to teach one class in the Spring Semester
2017 as part of the Masters in Urban and Regional Planning Program at San Jose State
University. The Class is URBP223: Housing Economics and Policy. Over the past few
years she has served on occasion as an unpaid guest lecturer in the same class. 

A primary focus for the class is affordable housing development and policy, including
Section 8 & CDBG/ HOME programs, low income housing tax credits and other aspects
of federal, state, and local housing policy. 

The class time is 2. 5 hours a week ( currently scheduled for Monday evenings from
7. 30- 10pm for 15 class sessions.) The total class time and related tasks is not expected
to exceed the 75 hours provided for in the contract. 

General Counsel has reviewed this memo and finds no apparent conflict of interest for
the Executive Director or Agency in approving this request. 

41 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 2 of 2

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact to the agency. 

RECOMMENDATION

Approve the Executive Director's request for outside employment. 

Respectfully submitted, 

VAAD( 6i1)41 a
Vanessa Cooper

Executive Director

VMC: dc

42 of 154



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

43 of 154



4-74

Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda
701 Atlantic Avenue - Alameda, California 94501- 2161 - Tel: ( 510) 747- 4300 - Fax: ( 510) 522-7848 - TDD: ( 510) 522-8467

To: Honorable Chair and

Members of the Board of Commissioners

From: Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director

Date: January 18, 2017

RE: Approval of Goals for the Executive Director' s 2017 Performance Evaluation

BACKGROUND

On September 16, 2015 the Board, Staff and Public met to discuss performance goals

and the process for evaluating the Executive Director. 

DISCUSSION

Per her contract, the Executive Director will be evaluated annually by the Board at or
close to the anniversary of the Executive Director' s hire date of September 29, 2014. At
the September 2016 evaluation the Board added two goals to the prior year's goals. This

memo serves to bring those back to the Board for final approval. 

Goals for September 2016-2017

1. As the Executive Director, establish and maintain key community and industry
relationships to ensure that AHA is well placed to take advantage of opportunities

for development, increased leasing, increased regulatory flexibility and other
mutually beneficial activities that support and maximize the impact of AHA's
mission in Alameda. 

2. Assess and address relevant administrative, compliance, personnel and financial

issues in order to maintain the financial, legal, regulatory and organizational
standing of AHA. 

3. Implement the applicable Two- year Work plans in accordance with the deadlines

set out in the plans. Inform the Board at least every six months of progress. 
Where significant changes occur in the interim, inform the Board of the reason

and expected impact. 

4. Take steps to maintain and build esprit de corps among staff, including providing
professional development and team building opportunities for the staff, Board
members and the Executive Director. 

44 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 2 of 2

5. Lead the Board and Staff through a process to provide a Strategic Plan for

review by the Board at the Fall 2017 Board of Commissioner' s retreat. ( New
Goal) 

6. Undergo a 360 degree evaluation coordinated by a third party with a summary to
be submitted to the Board ahead of their the September 2017 performance

evaluation ( New Goal) 

RECOMMENDATION

This report is for discussion and approval by the Board of Commissioners. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Vey c/ 11) oe
Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director

VMC: dc

45 of 154



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

46 of 154



Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda
701 Atlantic Avenue - Alameda, California 94501- 2161 - TEL: ( 510) 747- 4300 - FAX: ( 510) 522- 7848 - TDD: ( 510) 522- 8467

To: Honorable Chair and

Members of the Board of Commissioners

From: Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director

Prepared Janet Basta

by: Director of Human Resources and Operations

Date: January 18, 2017

Re: Holiday and Office Closure Schedule for 2017

BACKGROUND

In December 2016 a calendar of 2017 Holiday and office closure dates was approved
on the Board consent calendar. Subsequently, it was discovered that the office closure
dates for the month of December 2017 were listed incorrectly. 

DISCUSSION

A revised calendar correcting this administrative error is attached, with office closure
dates of December 1, 15, and 29, 2017. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT

No budget impact is anticipated. 

RECOMMENDATION

For Information only. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Vak.W•5- C° 1AJ • 
Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director

VMC/JCB

Attachments: 2017 AHA Holiday and Office Closure Calendar

fl' 47 of 154



QQ

V) 1- O

O

N N

LL

Co

ti N N

H

N0.) 

co M ON f N

j

T- M

N-- 

N

N

H

H

r c- T- 00N- l() N

N

2

2

co O tidN

NN

N

3U) 

N O D N M

i

a

coV) d' 

O

N N

L1_ Co O N.. N M

H N0.) 

O 0

N OM

j

T- M 1. 0I -- N

N

CDN

Fe
H

O N

tV- 

N N

2

2

O

co co ON NN

q

3U) 

O

in Nr 3) e- CDN

bruary
cor

V) 

ti

O ON

N

LL M

e0- 
ON

N

N

H N O 0 MN

N

j

OLON- N

M

Fe
H

O N

tV- c- N c0N

2

0

O

O COON N. N

q
O

to

eN- 
04

CO

f

January
n ti

e- 

N N

N

ut O

0M- 
ON N

N

H O N C) CON

N

j 00 L') N

M

g CO O N A- M

N

2 N O V. MN OM

M

q O in 4 04

OM

August
5Nv) O e- C) upN

N

L j. co inN

N

L co O N- N

N

a) 

N O

V- 

N M

c° LOF- N N

N

0

0

N. d N coNi

M

V) 

co N N

OM

1

n O

x- 

N N

LL N

ems- 
N N

F- co N- N N

a) 

co O

V- N N

Fn
H

et

co

CO ON

N

0

0

co OX- T- N M
7tD
n

V) 

N O

ti

MN OM

lune
eaV) co O.4- x- N

co

LL N O

r

N M. 

F- O 1- N N
N

co O

V- N N

HH

N

co COON

N

N

2

0

0

O

O N O OI

V) 

M

V) N

ti dN

N

LC

U) t0 e- N N

co

LL O N r N

N

ccO
F- 

N

r- LCN) 

co

j co O N. 

ON N

H

F- N O co N OM

2

0

O

O O NN ON

3n

V) 

M

t,
N

ti dN

N

December
CUA N O 0 N co

LL T- co r N N

HO
N

d N co
N

O c- ON N

H M

O N C3) CON

2

N

O

O inN

3n M O ti dN co

November
con t r7— Or- ON

M

LL M Or Wor wN

O) N

HO
N O

0) 

MN CoO

jO

M LO N N

H M O Co
ti

N N

2

N

O Mc- ON N. N
3N
n

O

Or

C) r coN

October
7) ti

co

N

M

LL

tDN

00 LO

N

O) N

Ld) 

F O NN 0) ON

NI

jO

CO COA- 

ON

N- NJ

H M O Co
ti

Nd' 
0N

2 N O O MN OM

u) 
O

Or

N N

L

September
N O co N M

LL 00 LO NN O) N
r

rooN( NI

CO COA- ON N- NJ

H O N 0) 0N
0

v. apv- r- Lc) N
3

M Or tie- erN

Green (dark) = OfficeClosureKEY: Red = HolidayAHAHolidays2017DayAfterThanksgivingChristmasDay
N N

Z Z 0

m

m mN

o 0
ca

T 0

0 C cCo cva) a) 
J > > 

Presidents' DayMemorialDayIndependenceDay
a> 

m

Uca o

T Tco Co0 0U) N
3 3

Z Z

MartinLutherKingDay
48 of 154



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

49 of 154



Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda
701 Atlantic Avenue - Alameda, California 94501- 2161 - Tel: ( 510) 747- 4300 - Fax: ( 510) 522- 7848 - TDD: ( 510) 522- 8467

To: Honorable Chair and

Members of the Board of Commissioners

From: Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director

Date: January 18, 2017

RE: Accept the Other Post Employment Benefit ( OPEB) Actuarial Valuation

Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

BACKGROUND

The Government Accounting Standards Board ( GASB) has mandated disclosure of
other post -employment benefit ( OPEB) liabilities for all government employers

beginning in 2009. During fiscal years prior to 2012 the Authority' s employees were
employees of the City of Alameda and not employees of the Authority itself, therefore
there was no OPEB obligation or expense recognized in fiscal years prior to 2012. 

During fiscal year 2015 the Authority administered this program on a pay-as- you- go
basis and actual costs were expensed as incurred. To comply with GASB 45, the
Authority estimated the present value of the projected benefits of the OPEB program
using the Alternative Measurement Method as permitted by GASB Statements Numbers
43 and 45. 

The goal of GASB 45 is to match recognition of retiree medical expense with the

periods during which the benefit is earned. The entry age normal cost method
effectively meets this goal in most circumstances. The plan currently has no assets. 

AHA issued a Request for Proposal ( RFP) for an independent assessment of OPEB

liabilities and to make recommendations of possible improvements in regards to AHA

Actuarial Funding Policy and the benefit structure of AHA. 

The Nicolay Consulting Group ( NCG) was retained to provide the analysis and complete
the detailed actuarial report to be incorporated into the audited financial statement. 

DISCUSSION

The attached report provides a net present value of future benefits of $ 2, 640, 000 and
an end of year net OPEB obligation for June 30, 2016 of $ 407, 000. The latter has been

booked as an accrued liability as of June 30, 2016 and will be included in the 2015- 16
audit. The audit is expected to come to the Board for approval in February 2017. A
further discussion will be held with Board before June 30, 2017 to discuss AHA' s

forthcoming obligations under GASB 74/ 75 and to determine the Board' s willingness to

50 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2016
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 2 of 2

prefund the plan. The consultant will be able to answer the Board' s questions at this

meeting and prior to the pre -funding decision. 

BUDGET CONSIDERATION/ FINANCIAL IMPACT

An accrued liability of $ 407, 000 has been booked as of June 30, 2016 and will be
included in the 2015- 16 audit. 

RECOMMENDATION

Accept the Actuarial Valuations of Postemployment Medical Benefits ( OPEB) Report for

fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 

Respectfully submitted, 

VCLIVL
Vanessa Cooper
Executive Director

VMC/ MMW

1. Actuarial Valuation of Postemployment Medical Benefits Report for Fiscal Year

ending June 30, 2016
2. Presentation by NCG for January 18, 2017

51 of 154



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

52 of 154



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF

THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
Actuarial Valuation of

Postemployment Medical Benefits

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016

with results rolled back to July 1, 2015) 

Nicol_ AY
CONSULTING

53 of 154



NICOLAY CONSULTING GROUP

January 10, 2017

Ms. Marie Wang
Director of Finance

Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
701 Atlantic Ave

Alameda, CA 94501

Dear Ms. Wang: 

N ICOLAY
CONSULTING

PENSION CONSULTANTS AND ACTUARIES

30 BUSH STREET. SUITE 500

SAN FRANCISCO. CALIFORNIA 94108- 3633

TEL: 415- 512- 5300

FAX: 415- 512- 5314

Re: Actuarial Valuation of Postemployment Medical Benefits

The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda has retained Nicolay Consulting Group to
complete this valuation of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda postemployment
medical program as of July 1, 2015. 

The purpose of this valuation is to determine the value of the expected postretirement

benefits for current and future retirees and the Actuarial Accrued Liability and Annual
Required Contribution recognized under Government Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 45 ( GASB 45) requirements for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2016
and 2017. The amounts reported herein are not necessarily appropriate for use for a
different fiscal year without adjustment. 

In preparing this report we relied on employee data and plan information provided by
the Housing Authority. The results of the valuation are dependent on the accuracy of the
data and other information provided. These data are not audited by Nicolay Consulting

Group, although they were reviewed for reasonableness. Calculations presented in this
valuation do not reflect any other postemployment benefits than those described in this
report. 

The financial projections presented in this report are intended for internal use in

evaluating the potential cost of the retiree medical program and for the plan sponsor' s
financial statements. Use of this report for any other purpose may not be appropriate

and may result in mistaken conclusions due to failure to understand applicable
assumptions, methodologies, or inapplicability of the report for that purpose. No one
may make any representations or warranties based on any statements or conclusions
contained in this report without the written consent of Nicolay Consulting Group. 

On the basis of the data provided, this report has been prepared in accordance with

generally accepted actuarial principles and methods. The assumptions for termination, 
retirement, mortality and health care claims morbidity rates are those used in the most
recent California PERS Public Agency retirement plan valuations. 

54 of 154



Ms. Marie Wang
January 10, 2017
Page 2

N ICOLAY
CONSULTING

Mortality improvement was reflected based on the most recent tables published by the
Society of Actuaries. Morbidity rates for age -adjusting claims rates are based on the
most recent tables published by CaIPERS. Certain other assumptions were selected

specifically for this valuation, and in many cases, including assumed health care trend, 
reflect changes from that used in the prior valuation. For all other assumptions, we
believe they are reasonable for the measurement of the obligation involved. It should be
recognized, however, that there can be significant differences between actual
experience and the assumptions. Moreover, other sets of reasonable assumptions can

yield materially lesser or greater results. 

Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements
presented in this report due to such factors as the following: retiree group benefits
program experience differing from that anticipated by the assumptions; changes in
assumptions; increases or decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the
methodology used for these measurements ( such as the end of an amortization period); 
and changes in retiree group benefits program provisions or applicable law. Retiree

group benefits models necessarily rely on the use of approximations and estimates, and
are sensitive to changes in these approximations and estimates. Small variations in

these approximations and estimates may lead to significant changes in actuarial
measurements. Because of limited scope, we have not performed analysis of the
potential range of such future differences. 

Based on the foregoing, the cost results and actuarial exhibits presented in this report
were determined on a consistent and objective basis in accordance with applicable

Actuarial Standards of Practice and generally accepted actuarial procedures. We
believe they fully and fairly disclose the actuarial position of the Plan based on the plan
provisions, employee and plan cost data submitted. 

The passage of healthcare reform in March 2010 ushered in a number of changes that
might be expected to impact postretirement medical plans over time. We considered the

possible effects of these changes for the Housing Authority and summarized the results
in this report. 

On December 18, 2015, the President signed the Omnibus Appropriations Act of 2016. 

There are significant provisions in this law relating to the Cadillac tax, the annual fee on
health insurers, and the medical device tax. This valuation reflects this new legislation. 

55 of 154



Ms. Marie Wang

January 10, 2017
Page 3

N ICOLAY
CONSULTING

This report represents a statement of actuarial opinion by the undersigned actuary, who
is a member of the American Academy of Actuaries (AAA) and is qualified to issue that
opinion. Questions about the report should be directed to Gary Cline at (415) 512- 5300
x231 or Eddie Lee at ( 415) 512- 5300 x212. 

Sincerely, 

By: 
Eddie W. Lee, A. S. A., M. A.A. A. 

By: 
Gary E. Cline, A. S. A., M. A. A. A. 

56 of 154



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF

THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Actuarial Valuation of

Postemployment Medical Benefits

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016

with results rolled back to July 1, 2015) 

Table of Contents

SECTION TITLE PAGE

SECTION I Summary of Valuation Results 1

SECTION II Development of Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 

and GASB 45 Disclosures 2

SECTION III Plan Description and Demographic Summary 7

SECTION IV Actuarial Method and Assumptions 10

SECTION V Glossary 20

N ICOLAY
CONSULTING

57 of 154



SECTION I

Summary of Valuation Results

Table 1- 1

Summary of Valuation Results

7/ 1/ 2015

Present Value of Future Benefits

Active $ 2, 360, 527

Retiree $ 279, 141

Total $ 2, 639,668

Actuarial Accrued Liability
Active $ 1, 314,027

Retiree $ 279, 141

Total $ 1, 593, 168

Actuarial Value of Assets $ 0

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability $ 1, 593, 168

Employer Share of Current Year Plan Cost ( Pay -As -You -Go)* $ 2, 964

Annual Required Contribution $ 176,670

Number of Plan Participants

Actives 49

Retirees & Surviving Spouses ( excluding waived) 4

Terminated Eligible Employees 0

Total 53

Discount rate 4. 25% 

Assumed Increase in Per -Capita Claim Costs

Initial Rate

Pre -65 8. 00% 

Post -65 5. 50% 

Ultimate Rate 5. 00% 

Year Ultimate Rate Reached 2030

Excludes implicit subsidy related to retiree premiums ( since unadjusted premiums represent the current cash cost) 

and the implied subsidy related to active employee premiums ( but the Foundation can elect to recognize this as a
retiree cash cost under GASB 45). 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 1 N ICOLAY
CONSULTING

58 of 154



SECTION II

Development of ARC and GASB 45 Disclosures

Table 2- 1 presents the Present Value of Future Benefits ( i. e., liability based on all future
service) and the Actuarial Accrued Liability ( i. e., liability based on past service only) 
broken down by participant status and benefit type. 

The implicit subsidy is the obligation associated with the difference between premiums
and the assumed true per capita healthcare costs for Housing Authority participants. 

Table 2- 1

Present Value of Future Postemployment Medical Benefits

As of July 1, 2015
Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method

Discount Rate: 4. 25% 

Housing Authority Implicit
Portion Subsidy Total

Present Value of Future Benefits

Actives $ 1, 272, 092 $ 1, 088,435 $ 2, 360, 527

Retirees $ 167, 784 $ 111, 357 $ 279, 141

Total $ 1, 439,876 $ 1, 199, 792 $ 2, 639, 668

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) 
Actives $ 740, 913 $ 573, 114 $ 1, 314, 027

Retirees $ 167, 784 $ 111, 357 $ 279, 141

Total $ 908,697 $ 684,471 $ 1, 593, 168

This valuation was completed using the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost method and
assumes a closed 30 -year amortization ( started in 2012/2013) of the Unfunded

Actuarial Accrued Liability using the level percentage of payroll amortization method. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 2 N ICOLAY
CONSULTING

59 of 154



Projected Health Benefit Costs

Table 2- 2 contains a ten-year projection of the Housing Authority pay-as-you- go cost to
provide postemployment medical benefits. 

2015/ 16

2016/ 17

2017/ 18

2018/ 19

2019/20

2020/ 21

2021/ 22

2022/ 23

2023/ 24

2024/25

Table 2- 2

Projected Future Annual pay-as- you-go Cost

Housing AuthorityPremiums
2, 964

9, 459

13,699

18, 362

22,954

27,499

31, 955

36,476

41, 188

45,949

Implicit Subsidy Total

10, 695

20, 98929, 058
37, 306

37, 253

39, 983

47, 174

41, 367

36, 526

40, 479

13,659

30, 44842, 757
55, 668

60,207

67, 482

79, 129

77, 843

77, 71486, 428

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 3 N ICOLAY
CONSULTING

60 of 154



Health Benefit Costs Under GASB 45

The Annual Required Contribution ( ARC) consists of the Normal Cost plus the current

period amortization of the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability. 

Normal Cost is the portion of the actuarial present value of future benefits that is

allocated to a particular year. Another interpretation is that the Normal Cost is the

present value of future benefits that are " earned" by employees for service rendered
during the current year. This valuation is based on the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost
method and an attribution period that runs from date of hire until the expected

retirement date. 

Employers are allowed to amortize the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability ( UAAL) 
over a period not to exceed 30 years. The following Tables are based on amortization
of the UAAL over a closed 30 -year period using the level percentage of payroll
amortization method. The Housing Authority adopted GASB 45 in the 2012/ 13 fiscal
year. The remaining amortization period is 27 years. 

Table 2- 3

Fiscal Year 2015/ 16 OPEB Annual Required Contribution

Discount rate 4. 25% 

Actuarial Accrued Liability $ 1, 593, 168

Actuarial Value of Assets $ 0

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability $ 1, 593, 168

Remaining Amortization Period 27 years

Level percent of pay Amortization Factor (based on a 4. 25% 
discount rate and a 3. 25% annual increase in payroll) 22. 914

Annual Level Percentage of Pay Amort. of Unfunded AAL $ 69, 529

Normal Cost ( based on the Entry Age Normal Method) $ 107, 141

Annual Required Contribution $ 176, 670

Interest on Net OPEB Obligation $ 10, 387

Adjustment to ARC ($ 10, 667) 

Annual OPEB Cost $ 176, 390

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 4 NJ ICO -LAY
CONSULTIN1

61 of 154



Table 2- 4 presents a two- year projection under the assumption that the Housing Authority
continues pay-as- you- go funding during the 2 -year period, the discount rate remains
4.25% and the Normal Cost component of the ARC increases by 5. 0% per year throughout
the three year period. 

Table 2- 4

Housing Authority of the City of Alameda

Two-year Projection of Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

Based on a 4. 25% discount rate, the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method, and
assuming pay-as- you- go funding

2015/ 16 2016/ 17

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $ 1, 593, 167 $ 1, 754,071

Actuarial Value of Assets at beginning of year $ 0 $ 0

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) $ 1, 593, 167 $ 1, 754,071

Remaining Amortization Period

Normal Cost

Amortization of UAAL

Annual Required Contribution ( ARC) 

27 26

107, 141 $ 112, 498

69, 529 $ 79, 130

176,670 $ 191, 628

Annual Required Contribution ( ARC) $ 176, 670 $ 191, 628

Interest on net OPEB Obligation $ 10, 387 $ 17, 303

Adjustment to ARC ($ 10, 667) ($ 18, 367) 

Annual OPEB Cost $ 176, 390 $ 190, 564

Contribution ($ 13, 659) ($ 30,448) 

Increase in net OPEB Obligation $ 162, 731 $ 160, 116

Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year
Net OPEB Obligation - End of Year

Projected pay-as-you- go Cost
Expected Benefit Payments

244,410 $ 407, 141

407, 141 $ 567,257

2, 964 $ 9,459

13, 659 $ 30,448

A substantial change in GASB accounting rules has just been published which is scheduled
to become effective for Fiscal Year 2017/ 18 and beyond. We have not attempted to

quantify the change in actuarial liabilities that may result. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 5 NicOJAY
CONSULTING

62 of 154



Table 2- 5 presents a two- year projection of the Housing Authority funding policy
contributions. The funding policy contributions shown below include ( i) pay -go costs
unreimbursed by the Trust, ( ii) no cash contributions to the Trust, and ( iii) active implicit rate
subsidy contributions that could be transferred to OPEB accounting. 

Table 2- 5

Total Trust and Non -Trust OPEB Contributions for Years Ending June 30, 2016 and 2017

Active Benefit Expense Transfer of Premium Impicit Subsidies and Pay -go Costs

FYE FYE

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017

Cash Contributions to the Trust $ 0 $ 0

Pay -go Costs* $ 2, 964 $ 9, 459

Active Implicit Rate Subsidy** $ 0 $ 0

Cross -Employer Active Implicit Rate Subsidy*** $ 10, 695 $ 20,989

Total OPEB Contributions $ 13, 659 $ 30, 448

ARC Explicit Subsidy**** 
ARC Implicit Subsidy***** 

Total ARC

97,284 $ 105, 707

79, 386 $ 85, 921

176,670 $ 191, 628

Retiree premiums paid by the Housing Authority and unreimbursed by the Trust. 

The active implicit rate subsidy represents a subsidy toward pre -Medicare retiree medical costs paid
via active premiums, since the claims from both groups are combined to calculate a blended premium. 

This amount can be transferred from active employee benefit expense to OPEB expense and counted

as a contribution toward the ARC. 

Cross -employer active implicit rate subsidies are Active Implicit Rate Subsidies coming from other
employers via the premium rates managed by CaIPERS. 

The portion of the ARC attributable to current and future retiree premiums paid by the Housing
Authority. 

The portion of the ARC attributable to pre -Medicare retiree average claims costs in excess of

premiums. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 6 N I C O•i. AY
CONSULTING

63 of 154



SECTION III

Plan Description and Demographic Summary

Eligibility Requirements and Plan Description
The Housing Authority participates in the CaIPERS 2% @55 Public Agency
Miscellaneous Employees pension plan for all its regular employees hired before

January 1, 2013, and 2% @62 for those hired on or after January 1, 2013. 

Employees who retire with a CaIPERS pension ( at least age 50, or age 52 for

employees hired on or after January 1, 2013, with 5 years of service) are eligible for
postretirement medical benefits. 

The Housing Authority contributes the minimum amount provided under Government
Code Section 22825 of the Public Employees Medical and Hospital Care Act ($ 125 per

month in 2016, increasing to $ 128 in 2017.) Retirees must contribute any premium
amounts in excess of the Housing Authority contributions described above. Amounts
paid by the Housing Authority continue for the lifetime of the retiree and any surviving
spouse. 

The Housing Authority does not provide dental, vision or other " GASB 45 benefits" to
retirees. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 7 N ICOLAY
CONSULTING

64 of 154



The Housing Authority participates in the CaIPERS medical program. The 2016 and
2017 calendar year retiree premium rates are shown in Table 3- 1. 

Table 3- 1

Monthly CaIPERS Bay Area Retiree Premium Rates

Pre -Medicare Rates

2016 2017

Plan EE Couple Family EE Couple Family
Anthem Blue Cross 855.42 1, 710.84 2, 224. 09 990. 05 1, 980. 10 2, 574. 13

Blue Shield Access+ 1, 016. 18 2, 032. 36 2,642. 07 1, 024. 85 2, 049. 70 2, 664.61

Kaiser 746.47 1, 492. 94 1, 940. 82 733.39 1, 466. 78 1, 906.81

PERS Choice 798. 36 1, 596.72 2,075. 74 830.30 1, 660. 60 2, 158. 78

UnitedHealthcare 955.44 1, 910. 88 2,484. 14 1, 062.26 2, 124. 52 2, 761. 88

Post -Medicare Rates

2016 2017

Plan EE Couple Family EE Couple Family
Kaiser 297. 23 594. 46 891. 69 300.48 600.96 901. 44

PERS Choice 366. 38 732. 76 1, 099. 14 353.63 707. 26 1, 060.89

UnitedHealthcare 320. 98 641. 96 962.94 324.21 648.42 972. 63

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 8 N icoLAY
CONSULTING;, 

65 of 154



N ICOLAY
CONSULTING

Demographic Data

Tables 3- 3 and 3- 4 contain summaries of the demographic information provided by the

Housing Authority. These employees and retirees were included in the valuation. 

Table 3- 3

Full -Time Active Employees Age and Service Table

as of November 1, 2016

Years of Service

Aqe < 5 5- 9 10- 14 15- 19 20- 24 25+ Total

Under 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

25- 29 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

30- 34 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

35- 39 1 1 1 0 0 0 3

40- 44 0 1 2 0 0 0 3

45-49 3 3 2 0 0 0 8

50- 54 0 1 2 0 0 1 4

55- 59 0 4 5 2 1 0 12

60- 64 2 1 2 1 3 2 11

65-69 0 1 0 1 1 2 5

70+ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 9 12 14 4 5 5 49

Table 3- 4

Participating Retirees Age Table

as of November 1, 2016

Aqe Male Female Total

Younger than 55 0 0 0

55- 59 0 0 0

60- 64 1 0 1

65-69 1 2 3

70+ 0 0 0

Total 2 2 4

MOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 9

66 of 154



SECTION IV

Actuarial Method and Assumptions

In order to project the Housing Authority' s liabilities into the future, a number of
economic, demographic, and baseline cost assumptions are necessary. For this
valuation, we have used assumptions consistent with those specified in the 2014

OPEB Assumption Model" released by the CaIPERS Health Benefits Committee. 

Actuarial Cost Method

The valuation was performed using the Entry Age Normal Cost Method. An Actuarial
Cost Method is a procedure for allocating the actuarial present value of benefits and
expenses and for developing an actuarially equivalent allocation of such value to time
periods, usually in the form of a Normal Cost and an Actuarial Accrued Liability. The
Entry Age Normal cost method allocates the present value of future benefits on a level
basis over the earnings or service ( in this case earnings) of each employee individual

between the hire date and assumed retirement age. The portion of the present value of

future benefits allocated to a valuation year is called the Normal Cost. The portion

allocated to all prior years is called the Actuarial Accrued Liability. 

Valuation Date

The Housing Authority provided census data as of November 2016; therefore the
valuation date is November 1, 2016. This date is the starting point from which current

health premium costs are projected to increase according to the assumed annual rates

of health care cost trend. The Housing Authority census is projected from the valuation
date to the date of the final benefit payment for each employee and retiree on the

census. After calculating future costs for the projected retiree and dependent
population, all liabilities are discounted back to the valuation date to obtain the present

value of future costs. These results were then further adjusted back (" rolled back") to

coincide with the beginning of the fiscal year, July 1, 2015. 

Amortization Methodology
GASB 45 allows amortization of the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability based on a
level dollar approach or as a level percentage of covered payroll. The maximum

amortization period is 30 years. 

This valuation is based on a closed, 30 -year amortization of the Unfunded Actuarial

Accrued Liability as a level percentage of payroll; increasing each year as earnings
increase. 3 years of amortization have occurred; 27 years remain. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 10 N icor AY
CONSULTING

67 of 154



Economic Assumptions

Discount Rate

A discount rate is required to calculate the present value of future benefit payments

which are used to determine financial statement expense. This valuation is based on a

4. 25% discount rate which is the rate the Housing Authority expects to earn on its long- 
term investments. 

Health Care Trend

The rate of increase in per capita health care costs is commonly referred to as the
health care trend rate. We used the annual trend rates shown in Table 4- 1, which have

been updated since the prior valuation. These rates represent our best estimate of the

future annual rates of increase in the medical premium rates paid by the Housing
Authority. 

Table 4- 1

Annual Health Care Cost

Trend Rate Assumption

Year Increase in CaIPERS Regional Premium Rates

Beginning Pre -65 Post -65

January 1, 2018
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2020
January 1, 2021
January 1, 2022
January 1, 2023
January 1, 2024
January 1, 2025
January 1, 2026
January 1, 2027
January 1, 2028
January 1, 2029

January 1, 2030 and later

8. 00% 

7. 75% 

7. 50% 

7. 25% 

7. 00% 

6. 75% 

6. 50% 

6. 25% 

6. 00% 

5. 75% 

5. 50% 

5. 25% 

5. 00% 

5. 50% 

5. 25% 

5. 00% 

5. 00% 

5. 00% 

5. 00% 

5. 00% 

5. 00% 

5. 00% 

5. 00% 

5. 00% 

5. 00% 

5. 00% 

The initial trend rate assumption represents an estimate of short term cost increases

based on recent health care marketplace experience, and taking into consideration the
cost characteristics of plans available to Housing Authority retirees. Annual increases in
national health expenditures have exceeded the general growth in GDP for many years. 

However, there are practical limitations to how long these trends can continue. It is
unrealistic to assume that health care expenditures will be allowed to consume the

majority of the economy. Therefore, over the long term we expect that health care costs
will be constrained by the public' s ability and willingness to pay the higher cost of health
care coverage. This assumption implies that the ultimate trend rate should be related to

the expected long- term growth in the economy. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 11 N1COLAY
CONSULT! NG

68 of 154



Therefore, we assume the ultimate rate to be comprised of real growth in per capita

GDP, long- term growth attributable to technology innovations, and the assumed long- 
term inflation rate. The initial trend is assumed to decrease ratably to this ultimate rate

over time. 

Payroll Increases

In this valuation we assumed a 3. 25% annual rate of increase in payroll. This rate is a

component of the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method and is used in the
calculation of the amortization component of the Annual Required Contribution and in

calculation of the Normal Cost. 

Per Capita Health Plan Costs

Due to the small size of the retiree population, the per capita claims were developed

using the age adjusted premiums for the current CaIPERS population. These premiums
are assumed to include administrative costs. The premiums for CaIPERS are based on

community -rated claims experience by region for all CaIPERS member agencies. 

Administrative Expenses

We did not include any internal administrative expenses in this valuation, as it has been
assumed that expenses are included as part of the health premium. 

Age -Adjusted Costs

Current retirees were valued based on their current enrollment. The annual amounts

shown in 4- 2 were developed as a weighted average of the 2016 and 2017 premium

rates. The weighted average is based on the current enrollment pattern of Housing

Authority active employees and retirees. These amounts were used in the valuation of
current active employees. 

The gender distinct age morbidity factors for pre- and post -Medicare morbidity were
developed by CaIPERS based on 2013 data. CaIPERS developed these tables for use
in complying with ASOP 6. Table 4- 2 illustrates the age -graded premiums based on the
premiums and the male and female morbidity factors that were provided by CaIPERS
for HMO plans. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 12 N1COLAY

CONSULTING

69 of 154



Table 4- 2

Age -Adjusted Costs at Selected Ages

Aqe Male Female

50 $ 8, 692 $ 9, 804

55 $ 11, 646 $ 11, 246

60 $ 14,417 $ 12, 312

65 $ 3, 012 $ 2, 823

70 $ 3,494 $ 3, 237

75 $ 3, 851 $ 3, 850

80 $ 4, 137 $ 4, 341

85 $ 4, 243 $ 4, 537

Demographic Assumptions

In estimating this obligation, a number of demographic assumptions are needed. The
retirement, mortality and termination rates used in this valuation were used in the 2013
California PERS pension valuations. 

Withdrawal

We used withdrawal rates that match those used in the 2013 California PERS Public

Agency retirement plan valuations. Sample rates for Miscellaneous employees are
shown in Table 4- 3 ( e. g., an employee hired at age 30 with 5 years of service is
assumed to have a 7. 11% probability of leaving Housing Authority employment in the
current year). 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 13 N ICO AY
CONSULTING

70 of 154



Table 4- 3

Public Agency Miscellaneous Employees Withdrawal Rates

Entry Age
Service 20 25 30 35 40 45 50

0 0. 17420 0. 16740 0. 16060 0. 15370 0. 14680 0. 14000 0. 13320

1 0. 15450 0. 14770 0. 14090 0. 13390 0. 12710 0. 12030 0. 11350

2 0. 13480 0. 12800 0. 12120 0. 11420 0. 10740 0. 10060 0. 09380

3 0. 11510 0. 10830 0. 10150 0. 09450 0. 08770 0. 08090 0. 07410

4 0. 09540 0. 08860 0. 08180 0. 07480 0. 06800 0. 06120 0. 05430

5 0. 08680 0. 07900 0. 07110 0. 06320 0. 05540 0. 01160 0. 00970

6 0. 08290 0. 07510 0. 06700 0. 05920 0. 05140 0. 01030 0. 00840

7 0. 07900 0.07100 0. 06310 0. 05520 0. 04710 0. 00900 0. 00720

8 0. 07490 0. 06700 0. 05910 0. 05100 0. 04300 0. 00770 0. 00600

9 0. 07100 0. 06290 0. 05480 0. 04690 0. 03890 0. 00660 0. 00490

10 0. 06680 0. 05870 0. 05070 0. 04270 0. 00710 0. 00550 0. 00380

15 0. 05030 0. 04240 0. 03470 0. 00320 0. 00230 0. 00140 0. 00040

20 0. 03700 0. 02900 0. 00210 0. 00130 0. 00050 0. 00010 0. 00010

25 0. 02290 0. 00110 0. 00050 0. 00010 0.00010 0. 00010 0. 00010

30 0. 00050 0. 00010 0. 00010 0. 00010 0. 00010 0. 00010 0. 00010

35 0. 00010 0. 00010 0. 00010 0. 00010 0. 00010 0. 00010 0. 00010

Disability
Because of the anticipated low incidence of disability retirements we did not value
disability retirement. 

Retirement Rates

We used the retirement rates that match those used in the most recent California PERS

retirement plan valuations. 

Table 4- 4a illustrates the rates used for miscellaneous employees participating in the
CaIPERS 2% @55 pension plan ( employees hired prior to January 1, 2013) and Table
4- 4b illustrates the rates used for miscellaneous employees participating in the
CaIPERS 2% @62 pension plan ( employees hired on or after January 1, 2013). 
Selected rates are shown below. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 14 N ICCLAY
CONSULTING

71 of 154



Table 4- 4a

Annual Rates of Retirement

CaIPERS 2% @55 Public Agency Miscellaneous

Years of Service

5 10 15 20 25 30 35

50 0. 0140 0. 0180 0. 0210 0. 0250 0. 0270 0. 0310 0. 0350

51 0. 0120 0. 0140 0. 0170 0. 0200 0. 0210 0. 0250 0. 0280

52 0. 0130 0. 0170 0. 0190 0. 0230 0. 0250 0. 0280 0. 0320

53 0. 0150 0. 0200 0. 0230 0. 0270 0. 0300 0. 0340 0. 0390

54 0. 0260 0. 0330 0. 0380 0. 0450 0. 0510 0. 0590 0. 0680

55 0. 0480 0. 0610 0. 0740 0. 0880 0. 1000 0. 1170 0. 1320

56 0. 0420 0. 0530 0. 0630 0. 0750 0. 0850 0. 1000 0. 1130

57 0. 0440 0. 0560 0. 0670 0. 0810 0. 0910 0. 1070 0. 1210

58 0. 0490 0. 0620 0. 0740 0. 0890 0. 1000 0. 1180 0. 1340

59 0. 0570 0. 0720 0. 0860 0. 1030 0. 1180 0. 1380 0. 1560

60 0. 0670 0. 0860 0. 1030 0. 1230 0. 1390 0. 1640 0. 1860

61 0. 0810 0. 1030 0. 1240 0. 1480 0. 1680 0. 1990 0. 2240

62 0. 1160 0. 1470 0. 1780 0. 2140 0. 2430 0. 2880 0. 3240

63 0. 1140 0. 1440 0. 1740 0. 2080 0. 2370 0. 2810 0. 3170

64 0. 1080 0. 1380 0. 1660 0. 1990 0. 2270 0. 2680 0. 3020

65 0. 1550 0. 1970 0. 2380 0. 2850 0. 3250 0. 3860 0. 4350

66 0. 1320 0. 1680 0. 2030 0. 2430 0. 2760 0. 3280 0. 3690

67 0. 1220 0. 1550 0. 1890 0. 2250 0. 2560 0. 3040 0. 3430

68 0. 1110 0. 1410 0. 1700 0. 2040 0. 2320 0. 2740 0. 3090

69 0. 1140 0. 1440 0. 1740 0. 2090 0. 2380 0. 2820 0. 3170

70 0. 1300 0. 1650 0. 2000 0. 2400 0. 2720 0. 3230 0. 3640

71 0. 1070 0. 1370 0. 1640 0. 1980 0. 2250 0. 2660 0. 2990

72 0. 1100 0. 1400 0. 1690 0. 2020 0. 2300 0. 2720 0. 3070

73 0. 0850 0. 1090 0. 1320 0. 1580 0. 1790 0. 2120 0. 2390

74 0. 1000 0. 1290 0. 1560 0. 1860 0. 2120 0. 2510 0. 2820

75 1. 0000 1. 0000 1. 0000 1. 0000 1. 0000 1. 0000 1. 0000

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 15 N lcc) tAY

CONSULTING

72 of 154



Table 4- 4b

Annual Rates of Retirement

CaIPERS 2% @62 Public Agency Miscellaneous

Years of Service

Abe 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

50 0. 0000 0. 0000 0. 0000 0. 0000 0. 0000 0. 0000 0. 0000

51 0. 0000 0. 0000 0. 0000 0. 0000 0. 0000 0. 0000 0. 0000

52 0. 0103 0. 0132 0. 0160 0. 0188 0. 0216 0. 0244 0. 0272

53 0. 0131 0. 0167 0. 0202 0. 0238 0. 0273 0. 0309 0. 0345

54 0. 0213 0. 0272 0. 0330 0. 0388 0. 0446 0. 0504 0. 0562

55 0. 0440 0. 0560 0. 0680 0. 0800 0. 0920 0. 1040 0. 1160

56 0. 0303 0. 0385 0. 0468 0. 0550 0. 0633 0. 0715 0. 0798

57 0. 0363 0. 0462 0. 0561 0. 0660 0. 0759 0. 0858 0. 0957

58 0. 0465 0. 0592 0. 0718 0. 0845 0. 0972 0. 1099 0. 1225

59 0. 0578 0. 0735 0. 0893 0. 1050 0. 1208 0. 1365 0. 1523

60 0. 0616 0. 0784 0. 0952 0. 1120 0. 1288 0. 1456 0. 1624

61 0. 0619 0. 0788 0. 0956 0. 1125 0. 1294 0. 1463 0. 1631

62 0. 0968 0. 1232 0. 1496 0. 1760 0. 2024 0. 2288 0. 2552

63 0. 0888 0. 1131 0. 1373 0. 1615 0. 1857 0. 2100 0. 2342

64 0. 0941 0. 1197 0. 1454 0. 1710 0. 1967 0. 2223 0. 2480

65 0. 1287 0. 1638 0. 1989 0. 2340 0. 2691 0. 3042 0. 3393

66 0. 1045 0. 1330 0. 1615 0. 1900 0. 2185 0. 2470 0. 2755

67 0. 1045 0. 1330 0. 1615 0. 1900 0. 2185 0. 2470 0. 2755

68 0. 1045 0. 1330 0. 1615 0. 1900 0. 2185 0. 2470 0. 2755

69 0. 1045 0. 1330 0. 1615 0. 1900 0. 2185 0. 2470 0. 2755

70 0. 1254 0. 1596 0. 1938 0. 2280 0. 2622 0. 2964 0. 3306

71 0. 1254 0. 1596 0. 1938 0. 2280 0. 2622 0. 2964 0. 3306

72 0. 1254 0. 1596 0. 1938 0. 2280 0. 2622 0. 2964 0. 3306

73 0. 1254 0. 1596 0. 1938 0. 2280 0. 2622 0. 2964 0. 3306

74 0. 1254 0. 1596 0. 1938 0. 2280 0. 2622 0. 2964 0. 3306

75 1. 0000 1. 0000 1. 0000 1. 0000 1. 0000 1. 0000 1. 0000

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 16 N icoLAY
c ONSUITINC

73 of 154



Mortality
The mortality rates used in this valuation are those used in the most recent California
PERS pension valuations. These rates provide a starting point for the projection of
future mortality rates. The mortality rates for each future year were determined based
on a generational mortality projection using Projection Scale MP -2014. This scale
consists of a set of Annual Mortality improvement factors as a function of age and sex. 
The resulting projected mortality rates were applied to each employee and retiree. 

Table 4- 5

Sample Mortality Rates

prior to the application of Projection Scale MP -2014) 

Active Employees

Ade Male Female

55 0. 228% 0. 138% 

60 0. 308% 0. 182% 

65 0. 400% 0. 257% 

70 0. 524% 0. 367% 

75

80

85

90

Retired Employees

Male Female

0. 416% 

0. 436% 

0. 588% 

0. 993% 

1. 722% 

2. 902% 

5. 243% 

9. 887% 

0. 599% 

0. 710% 

0. 829% 

1. 305% 

2. 205% 

3. 899% 

6. 969% 

12. 974% 

Spousal enrollment

We have assumed that 75% of active employees will enroll their spouses at retirement. 

Retirees were assumed to continue their current enrollment. Children of future retirees

were not included in this valuation. 

Age Difference

Females are assumed to be three years younger than their spouses. 

Health Plan Participation

We have assumed that 75% of future eligible retirees will elect participation in the

Housing Authority' s postretirement medical program, both at early retirement and
Medicare eligibility. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 17

74 of 154



Health Care Reform Considerations

Health care delivery is going through an evolution due to enactment of Health Care
Reform. The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act ( PPACA), was signed March

23, 2010, with further changes enacted by the Health Care and Education Affordability
Reconciliation Act ( HCEARA), signed March 30, 2010. This valuation uses various

assumptions that may have been modified based on considerations under PPACA. 
This section discusses particular legislative changes that were reflected in our

assumptions. We have not identified any other specific provision of PPACA that would
be expected to have a significant impact on the measured obligation. As additional

guidance on the Act continues to be issued, we' ll continue to monitor impacts. 

Individual Mandate

Under PPACA, individuals ( whether actively employed or otherwise) must be covered
by health insurance or else pay a penalty tax to the government. While it is not
anticipated that the Act will result in universal coverage, it is expected to increase the
overall portion of the population with coverage. We believe this will result in an

increased demand on health care providers, resulting in higher trend for medical
services for non -Medicare eligible retirees. ( Medicare costs are constrained by
Medicare payment mechanisms already in place, plus additional reforms added by
PPACA and HCEARA.) While we believe that the mandate may result in somewhat
higher participation overall, this issue is moot since we assume such a high participation

rate upon retirement. 

Employer Mandate

Health Care Reform includes various provisions mandating employer coverage for
active employees, with penalties for non-compliance. Those provisions do not directly
apply to the postemployment coverage included in this valuation. 

Medicare Advantage Plans

Effective January 1, 2011, the Law provides for reductions to the amounts that would be
provided to Medicare Advantage plans starting in 2011. We considered the effect of
these reductions in federal payments to Medicare Advantage plans when setting our
trend assumption. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 18 N ICOLAY
CO NSU LT1NC.; 

75 of 154



Expansion of Child Coverage to Age 26

Health Care Reform mandates that coverage be offered to any child, dependent or not, 
through age 26, consistent with coverage for any other dependent. We assume that
this change has been reflected in current premium rates. While this plan covers

dependents, we do not currently assume non -spouse dependent coverage other than
for firefighters. We believe the impact this assumption has on the valuation is

immaterial due to the lack of retirees that have had or are expected to have non -spouse

dependents for any significant amount of time during retirement. 

Elimination of Annual or Lifetime Maximums

Health Care Reform provides that annual or lifetime maximums have to be eliminated

for all " essential services." We assume that current premium rates already reflect the
elimination of any historic maximums. 

Cadillac Tax ( High Cost Plan Excise Tax) 

The PPACA legislation added a new High -Cost Plan Excise Tax ( also known as the

Cadillac Tax") starting in calendar year 2020. For valuation purposes, we assumed
that the value of the tax will be passed back to the plan in higher premium rates. 

The tax is 40% of the excess of ( a) the cost of coverage over ( b) the limit. We

modeled the cost of the tax by calculating ( a) using the working rates projected
with trend. We calculated ( b) starting with the statutory limits ($ 10,200 single and

27, 500 family), adjusted for the following: 

o Limits will increase from 2020 to 2021 by 4. 25% ( CPI plus 1 %); 

o Limits will increase after 2021 by 3. 25% ( CPI); and

o For retirees over age 55 and not on Medicare, the limit is increased by an
additional dollar amount of $ 1, 650 for single coverage and $ 3, 450 for

family coverage. 

Based on the above assumptions, we estimate that the tax will apply as early as
2020 for some of the Housing Authority' s pre -Medicare plans. In addition, we
estimate that the tax will not apply to any of the post -Medicare plans. 

Other Revenue Raisers

The Health Care Reform includes a variety of other revenue raisers that involve
additional costs on providers ( such as medical device manufacturers) and insurers. We

considered these factors when developing the trend assumptions. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 19 N ICOI AY
CONSULTING

76 of 154



SECTION V

Glossary

Accrual Accounting — A method of matching the cost of an employee' s service, 

including long term obligations such as OPEB, to that employee' s period of active
service. 

Actuarial Accrued Liability ( AAL) — The Actuarial Present Value of all

postemployment benefits attributable to past service. Note: the AAL is sometimes

referred to as the Past Service Liability. 

Actuarial Cost Method — A procedure for allocating the actuarial present value of
benefits and expenses and for developing an actuarially equivalent allocation of

such value to time periods, usually in the form of a Normal Cost and an Actuarial
Accrued Liability. 

Actuarial Present Value — The value of an amount or series of amounts payable or

receivable at various times. Each such amount or series of amounts is: 

a. adjusted for the probable financial effect of certain intervening events ( such

as changes in compensation levels, Social Security, marital status, etc.) 

b. multiplied by the probability of the occurrence of an event ( such as survival, 
death, disability, termination of employment, etc.) on which the payment is
conditioned, and

c. discounted according to an assumed rate ( or rates) of return to reflect the
time value of money

Actuarial Valuation — The determination, as of a valuation date, of the Normal Cost, 

Actuarial Accrued Liability, Actuarial Value of Assets and related Actuarial Present
Values. 

Actuarial Value of Assets — The value of cash, investments and other property

belonging to a plan. These are amounts that may be applied to fund the Actuarial
Accrued Liability. Note: assets must be segregated and placed in a Trust in order
to be considered OPEB assets

Amortization Payment — That portion of the Annual OPEB cost which is designed to

pay interest on and to amortize the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability. 

In the year that Statement 45 becomes effective an employer is allowed to

commence amortization of the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability, over a period
not to exceed 30 years. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 20 N ICOLY
CO NSULT1AN ci

77 of 154



Annual Other Postemployment Benefit Cost ( OPEB) cost - An accrual -basis
measure of the periodic cost of an employer's participation in a defined benefit

OPEB plan. The annual OPEB cost is the amount that must be calculated and

reported as an expense. 

When an employer has no net OPEB obligation ( e. g., in the year of implementation) 
the annual OPEB cost is equal to the Annual Required Contribution (ARC). 

In subsequent years the Annual OPEB cost will include: 

the ARC ( equal to the Normal Cost plus one year's amortization of the

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability); 

one year' s interest on the net OPEB obligation at the beginning of the

year using the valuation discount rate; and

an adjustment to the ARC. This adjustment is intended to provide a

reasonable approximation of that portion of the ARC that consists of

interest associated with past contribution deficiencies. GASB Statement

No. 45 specifies that this adjustment should be equal to an amortization

of the discounted present value of the net OPEB obligation at the

beginning of the year. The amortization should be calculated using the
same amortization method and period used in determining the ARC for
that year. If the net OPEB obligation is positive the adjustment should be

deducted from the ARC. 

Note: As long as the net OPEB obligation is zero, there will not be any
interest charge or adjustment to the ARC. However, if an employer does

not contribute the full amount of the ARC, a net OPEB obligation will

emerge. 

Annual required contributions of the employer ( ARC) - The employer' s periodic

required contributions to a defined benefit OPEB plan, calculated in accordance

with the parameters. 

Defined benefit OPEB plan - An OPEB plan having terms that specify the benefits to
be provided at or after separation from employment. The benefits may be specified
in dollars ( for example, a flat dollar payment or an amount based on one or more

factors, such as age, years of service, and compensation), or as a type or level of

coverage ( for example, prescription drugs or a percentage of healthcare insurance

premiums). 

Defined contribution plan - A pension or OPEB plan having terms that (a) provide an
individual account for each plan member and ( b) specify how contributions to an
active plan member's account are to be determined, rather than the income or other

benefits the member or his beneficiaries are to receive at or after separation from

employment. Those benefits will depend only on the amounts contributed to the

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 21 N icAY
CONSULTING

78 of 154



member' s account, earnings on investments of those contributions, and forfeitures
of contributions made for other members that may be allocated to the member' s
account. For example, an employer may contribute a specified amount to each
active member's postemployment healthcare account each month. At or after

separation from employment, the balance of the account may be used by the
member or on the member' s behalf for the purchase of health insurance or other

healthcare benefits. 

Employer's contributions - Contributions made in relation to the annual required

contributions of the employer ( ARC). An employer has made a contribution in
relation to the ARC if the employer has ( a) made payments of benefits directly to or

on behalf of a retiree or beneficiary, ( b) made premium payments to an insurer, or
c) irrevocably transferred assets to a trust, or an equivalent arrangement, in which

plan assets are dedicated to providing benefits to retirees and their beneficiaries in
accordance with the terms of the plan and are legally protected from creditors of the
employer(s) or plan administrator. 

Entry Aqe Normal Actuarial Cost Method — An actuarial cost method under which
the Actuarial Present Value of the Projected Benefits of each individual included in
the valuation is allocated on a level basis over the earnings or service of the

individual between entry age and assumed exit age(s). The portion of this Actuarial
Present Value allocated to a valuation year is called the Normal Cost. The portion

allocated to prior years of service is called the Actuarial Accrued Liability. 

Healthcare cost trend rate - The rate of change in per capita health claims costs

over time as a result of factors such as medical inflation, utilization of healthcare

services, plan design, and technological developments. 

Investment return assumption ( discount rate) - The rate used to adjust a series of

future payments to reflect the time value of money. 

Net OPEB obligation - The cumulative difference since the effective date of GASB

Statement 45 between annual OPEB cost and the employer' s contributions to the

plan, including the OPEB liability ( asset) at transition, if any, and excluding ( a) short- 
term differences and ( b) unpaid contributions that have been converted to OPEB- 

related debt. 

Most employers will have no net OPEB obligation at the beginning of the year in
which Statement 45 is implemented. 

If an employer contributes the annual OPEB cost to the plan each year, and there

are no actuarial or investment gains or losses then the net OPEB Obligation will

remain zero. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 22 N ICOLAY
CONSULT1NG

79 of 154



Normal Cost - That portion of the Actuarial Present Value of benefits and expenses

which is allocated to a valuation year by the Actuarial Cost Method. Another
interpretation is that the Normal Cost is the present value of future benefits that are

earned" by employees for service rendered during the current year. 

OPEB assets - The amount recognized by an employer for contributions to an
OPEB plan greater than OPEB expenses. 

OPEB expense - The amount recognized by an employer in each accounting period
for contributions to an OPEB plan on the accrual basis of accounting. 

Other postemployment benefits ( OPEB) - Postemployment benefits other than

pension benefits. Other postemployment benefits ( OPEB) include postemployment

healthcare benefits, regardless of the type of plan that provides them, and all

postemployment benefits provided separately from a pension plan, except benefits
defined as special termination benefits. 

Plan assets - Resources, usually in the form of stocks, bonds, and other classes of
investments, that have been segregated and restricted in a trust, or in an equivalent

arrangement, in which ( a) employer contributions to the plan are irrevocable, ( b) 

assets are dedicated to providing benefits to retirees and their beneficiaries, and ( c) 
assets are legally protected from creditors of the employer(s) or plan administrator, 
for the payment of benefits in accordance with the terms of the plan. 

Present Value — See Actuarial Present Value. 

Present Value of Future Benefits — The Actuarial Present Value of all future benefit

payouts. These are divided into the Present Value of Future Benefits attributable to

past service ( also known as the Actuarial Accrued Liability) and the Present Value
of Future Benefits attributable to future service. 

Projected Unit Credit Cost Method — An actuarial cost method under which the

projected benefits of each individual included in an Actuarial Valuation are

separately calculated and allocated to each year of service by a consistent formula. 

Substantive plan - The terms of an OPEB plan as understood by the employer(s) 
and plan members. 

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability ( UAAL) — The excess of the Actuarial Accrued

Liability over the Actuarial Value of Assets. 

Valuation date — The date as of which the Postemployment benefit obligation is

determined. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Valuation Date: November 1, 2016 Page 23

80 of 154



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

81 of 154



0

L
o z

in

c c
ca O

a. 

CCI
CU

W - 

O
in

d' 
c 
V_ m

v) 

W itC O

2 0 L.. 

cn

LD +
a

CUni 1- 1
v9

CC .§ 

edbacktoJuly
1, 

2015) January18, 2017BoardMeeting
0
U

z

Nona[ ciel1I
It

82 of 154



E

0
4J

J) 0
1-- J U

c - 0

CD v
1

D
c C. 

0 CC
U

D

CU
CC

CU O
CU

q D

0 > 

PlanLiabilitiesFundedStatusandAnnual
I

KeyValuationAssumptionsandMethodsKeyAssumptions
I

KeyActuarialMethodsASOP
6

ImplicitSubsidy
A

NewLiabilityExplicitVS. ImplicitAALDoesn'
t

IncreaseCashCostExpectedFuturePremiumsandSubsidies
c

0

L -- 

CU

N
C

0
U

LID
c

c

Q

6 06 0
U

z

XIEIZEOBEIIIM
83 of 154



84 of 154



c

o
a) 

U

0

U

CU

Q
X

0

13
W

CN

CU

0

co- 
U

W

A' 
Q) 

SanFrancisco
CU

cZ0

L CD - 0

n
a+ c

c6

Can L C
c O ml

O
tan0 +N-+ — 

c

O Q) L7_ 

U • - O D

UU

D . E
03 - ct3

co C OD L
CU c ca

D c . 
cu

v
cu O Lr) 

ro

4A s v
co

4A
CO

O - 0  •- 
c

Q — - L

O0 v) CU y_ 

O •> U
co

0
Li - 

1) N Q O

0 0

co L c13 G) 
C 4

3 OC3 C
Z 0 z 0

0
c

co

c

m

co

co

a) 
U

a) 

4-) T

O
U

13

c
0

CU

0

U

0

c

CU

0
L- 

CD- 

0- 
LL

Q0 - 

Q

O

co

CU
1) 

1) 
N

ca

U
z (N1

Y

Z

z

85 of 154



AHA'
s

Employee/RetireeProfileectedNovember, 2016BasedoncensusdatacoedretireesatNov. 2016
0

1) 

49activeemployeesatNov. 2016
AL. ] / 

TX
a) 

W

c
4) 

W

J

W

O

C

Q) 

0 • W

O a) 

0) — 

N
N

0)
cu

Q a) 

0) O

O O L

O O cu
m N

igibleretireinnext10years
6% 

moreemployeeswi
00 j

a) a) 

E _( c, 

T

o CN

0) 0) 
uJ J bk) 

V

cu

O -

o - o

o

cam / cam

LL

UJ LU

m
uf)-

o• - a - 

4J O
V) O (/) N

J (

N > r -I
1

L L S— 

co co co
cu > 

5 > C

Ln c Ln co
cn cov) 
a) —, N cu

cY
Oco

cp- 
a) a) a) C

cc _ o cc O

l

O
U

z

0L1
UJ

N1riM
86 of 154



g O
T W

1

Y Lt

O - c _ c U
1--' = . C CT
la) L. I. J 0.0 2

c - c

L
0_ 

U
cac O

O 0 p `+- °' V) 
i- J a) E a- E 2

biO CL
X00 . 7) 

ca
a) 

E> CU U CO

O C tr +-; • tv0

u 0 >. v) CIO
N Q) 

J +, , 

4OE = O E

cuo
cc L...L_ 

L- 

c . 4..) 
O

4
O

a U

U • , o au a) a, 

0
e'

i< v.) 

a O p G(,) 

cc _ c N

a3 4- 1CL

c6 p , c O — E 0
U

z

UIDIZEUI1IZCt
87 of 154



14J

an °

aA
E a) 

c c
1) -- 1

c

E
4- L_ 

0 CU ca O

4D a, f13 L. 

Q)) v cu
cu >. 

ca ,, O ca ca

Cr ` n O
N cin ( Un

0) Q
Q O 4= 

Ca C a, 
CO

c tap

C- 4 J

4- 1

ate, 
N • _ 

1_ i._ 

In) a, CU
c a) 0

C o a) E auo° 
a, 

ca Q ca

O a, U a, >- 

i

U U UC

CO 1 E N 1 C JO

f) >. o'
la' 

L_ 
m 0 Col

Q a, 
m m Q, CNI

Q E Q Q o9

L7
a, - 

L7
L7 1_ m

O
0 co

04- 
c

a, c

c

C

E

U

coU

a, 

E

4J

0) 
E

0

E
a, 

z

Z
0

88 of 154



f'L • 

CO

a.

0
0

a

co
i

00
LO

W

V) 

Q
L9

CU

c

O

V) 

c

a) 
0_ 

a) 
o

0

c

O

Lf) 

CU
0
0

co
0

o
a) 

E
4- J

a) 

E
cu

4J
a) 

0
O
0_ 

0

a) 
o

U

4J

c
a) 
V) 

a) 

0

4) 

a) 

cu

O

o
a) 
CA

CO

a) 
c6

0

c

O

ca

D
0

CO
U

CU
s

H

Q
T

Q

c6
s
4J

V) 

E

E
a) 
0_ 

a) 
n

4- 

4- 

0
4- 

O

CL

Z

a) 

co

0

V
a) 

D

a) 

cu

CD
L

O
4- 

c13
0_ 

O

o
a) 
a) 
c

co

L

0

E

D

0

co

t/) 

O
4J
0_ 

E

CO0
C
co

c

O

co
0_ 

U

L_ 

co
o_ 

U
4--) 

a) 

f) 

a) 

co

4J

CU

E
a) 

a) 
4J

CU

E

NE4EMLIMtl
89 of 154



SummaryofKeyAHA'
s

financia
LO

0

LL

O
0
O

1

N
O

V l

O

L.r.) 

O

LL
c

O
0

00

m
E
0

Thisisdueto: 
Q) 

c  a) 1

C
O 4-) 

E -› o Y
co •— U

o LO . i5 o

O • 
so0

Z LA OD

V h A J 4— CU

D D 
0

t

f

a3 o COv) Q 4-)< 
co m_ o c c X < 

E o — c o
ca oO c

co - Q • — O

U 0 ON < < 

pQ
I I I - C _ _ — 0

H < < c6

0
U

z

90 of 154



C
U

z CK•

I.
I

Y0ly1I
D

91 of 154



ValuationResults—PlanLiabilities
3

N

Thousands] 
1.4

CCDQ
0

i

CBCL

CCt3
Cl- 

4 - 04- O
La) 

E
D

z

N

rn

a) 

U

NI

rI

mLn

m

Ct3

PVofFutureBenefits
tKi

O
z

0NN

LD Cr) 
N

a) L

a) 

m

0

LO
N

CD451

F-- 

Maynotaddduetorounding
tn

a) a--+ Ea)- 0
O

4- ( 0

0

CU

0 O _ 

CO Le - LL
Cl. 

4-' CCI
W Q

U

CO

Q

cCa
LL

O

QJ O4- 
76 ( 1) 
4-

0Q
E) a) U

z

z

z

0
v

92 of 154



co

ValuationResults—PlanLiabilities (Continued) 
E

IC1

o

O

1— 

O
z

00

lO

N

o

co

mLD

bN

Nm

N00

v
cc

c

Evc

ryuCcoC
L! 1c -I0N
0mOJc
0

cB

O_ 

co

04 - 

co

0a- 14- 0
ro

Q) c

a) 

N

4- Q) ca) 
4— O

NOU 4-+ co7-

3Q  
Q O

f0

0 > 

J -c4J

O

73V
V N

n3Q
f . 0

V ( 

Q Q

rn

0

z
Ks]

Ji.3I1
M

Lt

93 of 154



cav

c'3UN
4- 0

O

CU CU
O c

fQ

ValuationResults—PlanLiabilities (Continued) LThousands' 
c0

1- JcohA
0
00

LLJ0

c

N

O . 5

U t
N

O Y CI
CD s

o

0 w 21

QJ

w cu 4— 
c Oc

E
N

Q) ( D
Ln U
QJ C a--, 

ca c
N ( o Q) 

Ca Q) 
r -I • 1-, 

O O co
0 C/ 1
z ( a

O .... 
V

c

O 0 O co
4-7, O 4 c
ao L0 bR3u0
Q — N

O ` h _ QL
m >. p O
LU N

O ` 13 W 0
4--,.- 

o. 0_ 

Zz 2 Oo

v 0_ — c
C 0. G) c6

0

U

z

Anilk16111111111M
94 of 154



ValuationResults—FundedStatusandARC
0N
i

ccatn
0-c
H

r•-• 

ActuarialAccruedLiability
OI

0I

OI

N O
M

r -I

L! iLli
00 irk

N
rn 0

ri -(
n- 

FundedStatusNormalCost
c- i

O

bnc

CzO
0

00

co

0C
co

N

1- 40NrLL
0
0

00Nrn
C:60

0

U- 

8O

Yc
O

a00

4
c4- 

wa
vs
0

CO0
w

cO

L a__+ ca C
Q) OU
C Q) 
CU c

L •^ C

LL
U L

CD Qom) 
C Q) 

tto

L co

13

OI) U
C Q

13v V
Q

1) _ C O
4- - O
N  4- 0

U
V

V - 0

Z w1- 

4- 0 •— N
O aa) 

To
z

i

Z

0

4— 

N

U

C

U

00

4- a) Ca) m
J

LO

v

O

c

Cc'3
E

c

Q

Xa) 
4— 

95 of 154



C a) 
o 2

co64--) 
cRi

v) 
co

c0
lmj

a) o

v) 
v)

Q
MM*

D

96 of 154



KeyAssumptions
r"I

N

0N

ssum •tion
00

CU

4-J

0UN *-- 

Pre -65: 
8.

00% InitialTrendRates: Post -65:: 
5.

50% Pre&Post-65: 
5.

00% UltimateTrendRate: 
0

0O

PEMHCAMinimum: GASBTable
1

CaIPERS2014ratesWithdrawalRatesRetirementRatesCaIPERS2014rateswithScaleMP -2014UltimatehealthtrendrateforPreandPost -Medicareisreachedby2020and2030, respectively. 
W N. c! 

AUCIERKINAIZIN
97 of 154



KeyAssumptions (Continued) 
A

ssum •tionPostMedicare
v

0Z

75% willenrollspousesSpouseCoverageYes -Beginning2015/16
C6v

Excludecurrently <
5

yearsEmployeesvalued
N

ICOLAYSi7LYUJNY
i

tr

98 of 154



KeyActuarialMethods
LA

0

N

ON

r -I0

1
N O

OU
2

O 471
z

tan v
Q
CO

w

PVBwasusedasifAAL) 
O ( ri
m r -I O

O

CU N 13
Q N
C 0 OO

O N ( 1) fop
coN - 4- 0

1111 tan cQ) 
O 471
c L

eL
Q) 

CU0_ CT3aJ cu

Amortization
4- O

0

Q
Q. 

4- 3U
CU

0Uc

0

Z

99 of 154



StandardofPracticeNo. 
6 (

ASOP
6) 

NewrequirementtoreflectimplicitsubsidiesinaccountingliabilitiesEffectiveforFiscalYearsbeginningafter
3/

31/15Whatisanimplicitsubsidy? 
O cI) 
CU L

aA CU Y
0 ( a

CD O
O

U N N

Z, n aJ

7:5
ToU

a)( a E
t3

m - o

a) 
ru

4-,(
0

a) n v

a E
tan

a = m

cu E °. 
L

Cl.) S_ c

N Q ( B

4-' 

ate--+ 
o co

N4- 
L

co a) O

bA E
a-, 

a - J • 
N N

Uco coOU
L

Ncn

Oa) 4 -,a

0c13
CD

Q
U . 0— a) 

N (
0 }' ( 6
U L

a) 

0_ E
CU C 73

c0 a, 0) _ 
a. U 0 n4 O

O

0
v

z 00

L [

C

100 of 154



ValuationResults—Explicitvs. ImplicitAAL
4J

U

Q

E

4- 0

V

XW

c

N

0

CD

LO

N

00N
r—i mNLnI). 

rnNN

r -i
r-1
r—I

CT) 0

Maynotaddduetorounding
E

U

Q1cu
117, 

N v

O

N
v o
L U

Q QJC 10cB
co L- 

v

L

a v

coL
N

i
co O

O
c

v' 
4J

N

ca E
O

cn L0_ 

L C

0C O
E

Q  
cu Q) 

c/ 1 N
N

O 0
V V
4-' 4-' 

v• _ •u

X E
W

heCiti• ofAlameda
FSE

0

z

iLi7i<Y1I
1

iL[? 
101 of 154



0

Z

z

1- 

0

ncrease
c

CU
0

73. 

4--) 

Q

E

Age -AdjustedPremiumsedicareEligibleRetirementAge
2 LL 2 LI - 
O O

2 2 O O - d
2 2 a a. u

0 0 0
N O

v-4 c- 1 ci

0co

o o 0 0

0 0 0
D cf N

co

0co

IN

0N
I

O

t

0

a . 

V

m

0

N

ON

v 0

C  N
a. 0 lD

I) a1 O
L >

L. 
N

4--- , 
U E o

c z

v

u v m ,, 
CD v s? V) 

ID bp > 

NL

Q) 

N >  Q) 
co .

co O

S_ _ o -- 0> 0_ 

o

O =
N

B
N

a ' ( D >- 

CD CDN U SZ i
Q) _ . o .- O

CU N

N N 1 Q
yam

2 ._v) 4- -)) N 0
ma--+ . N L QJ
Nop

U O41 O co
o u 0 `- 

ro

v v

o  
Q) U a) 4) CU

U _ _ _ 

I-- < H H f- 

employers
102 of 154



ExpectedFuturePremiumsandSubsExpectedFuturePayments
0

99

0-  

9- 

0 00 0 0 00

n SO M (- NI

spuesnoyl

TotalAdj. PremiumsTotalPremiumsTotalBenefit
CC1

E

InO EU

N
Q_ 

N a
NO QJ

O J O }, 
Q - p J 4 - 
E N O

UJ CC v o
N

O

E( - 7- N
N

O _ '
E O E

CO v o E
U .— Q D .— 

X L N _ 0 C
O > - .

E— 

O v O
v) Q v U

JUJ t1A O
E c O }, w
v - v a
Q. -o +-, " N

v 00

4O N 20 > 
3; 

4JUO
O - -:(

73

U - A N

cei-+ V) D.N . v) 
L >_ >". O v) 

4O -
0 - 0 E4 -j

V) to t/) v) U
i

103 of 154



co

o c

0
4-- EO cn

E ( ->< 
a) 

CD a--) 
c

C N CU
a--) a) _ C

CU _ C a -- i

t:11J N C
CO ocu
C U L

CU c n

N E a3U
c v) 

ca O

O 0_-o 75

ca+-) 0
S- _ C
awQ) 

o o
0 la 0 • 7) 

0 C U

U
CU

CSA
0

CID 0 OD
C• -

Li- 

la 73 _c -o
c v) c

CO : 

M 4— U 4- 
Q) CU

4- i

a) a_ 0 a_ 

CU

C

n
4- 

c

4- 

0

0

OD
0
U

CUL - 
CU

CU
04- 
CU

N

O
N

O
CO

CU

0

L_ 

0

0

00

0
N

LL
c

accruedIiabi
CK.

I

i.

1u1
i 

L

104 of 154



ca

a = 
m '

471, 
W co
a. 

O tz

ca
V

m

rtz
a) 

T. k.0
rmi

CD
11

oc  

aN

E

CO
Y d

x< 

E
0

Z r-

OIIIUWIINIO
105 of 154



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

106 of 154



J

Housing
ibel- 

Authority of the City of Alameda
701 Atlantic Avenue - Alameda, California 94501- 2161 - Tel: ( 510) 747- 4300 - Fax: ( 510) 522- 7848 - TOD: ( 510) 522- 846, 

To: Honorable Chair and

Members of the Board of Commissioners

From: Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director

Date: January 18, 2017

RE: Accept the Annual Review of Investment Policy

BACKGROUND

In February 1996 the Housing Commission adopted by resolution a revised Investment
Policy for the investment of program funds provided by the U. S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development ( HUD) and to allow for less restrictive investment of non -HUD

program funds. 

Both State law and HUD require housing authorities to adopt and comply with sound cash
management and investment policies and procedures. Additionally, State law requires that
all local government agencies review their investment policy at a public meeting of their
governing boards once each year. 

DISCUSSION

California Government Code Section 53646 requires that the Authority Finance Director file
an annual investment policy with the Board of Commissioners. It also requires that the
Finance Director file a quarterly report with the Board of Commissioners on the status of all
investments, including compliance with the adopted investment policy and a certificate that
the expenditure requirements for the next six months can be met. 

California Government Code Section 53600. 3 provides that each person or governing body
investing public funds is a Trustee and, therefore, is a fiduciary subject to the Prudent
Investor Standard. It further provides that the primary objectives when investing public funds
are the safety of principal, preservation of liquidity and the return of an acceptable yield, in
that order. The bill also prohibits the use of specific investment vehicles and limits the use

of others, including reverse repurchase agreements. 

HUD also mandates that housing authorities establish cash management procedures and
comply with requirements governing the type of instruments in which they may invest. 

The types of investments permitted under the State and Federal legislation are not different
from the types of investments currently held by the Housing Authority. All Housing Authority

107 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 2 of 2

investments are insured, government backed or fully collateralized securities that ensure
the safety of the principal, preserve liquidity and provide an acceptable yield. 

The attached redline version has been reviewed by AHA's Investment Advisor PFM and
AHA's General Counsel. 

FISCAL IMPACT

Does not apply. 

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Commissioners accept the report on the Investment

Policy. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director

VC: MW

Attachment

108 of 154



INVESTMENT POLICY

Updated January 2017

SCOPE: 

This investment policylnvestment Policy ( the " Policy") applies to all liquid assets of the

Housing Authority of the City of Alameda,- (the " Housing Authority" or the "Authority"). These
funds are accounted for in the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements, which includes

the Housing Choice Voucher program and SRO Program. 

PRUDENCE: 

capital as well as the probable income to be derived. The standard of prudence to be used

by investment officials shall be the " prudent perseninvestor" standard ( California
Government Code 53600. 3) and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall
portfolio. When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or
managing public funds, persons acting on behalf of the Housing Authority shall act with care, 
skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, including, but not
limited to, the general economic conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a

prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the
conduct of funds of a like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and

maintain the liquidity needs of the agency. 

Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures and the investment policy
and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual
security' s credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectations are
reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. 

OBJECTIVE: 

When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling and managing
public funds, the primary objectives, in priority order, of the investment activities, shall be: 

1. Safety. Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. Housing
Authority investments will be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the
preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. To attain this objective, diversification is

required in order that potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income

generated from the remainder of the portfolio. 

2. Liquidity. The investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the Housing
Authority to meet all operating requirements which might be reasonably anticipated and
shall always have the ability to convert sufficient securities in the portfolio to cash to meet
contingency needs. A portion of the portfolio may be placed in money market mutual
funds or LAIF which offer same-day liquidity for short-term funds. 

Investment Policy 1
109 of 154



INVESTMENT POLICY

3. Return on Investments. The investment portfolio will be designed with the objective of

attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into
account the investment risk constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio. 
California Government Code 53600. 5) 

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY: 

Authority to manage the investment program is derived from Section 401( E) of the
HUD/ PHA Annual Contributions Contract and California Government Code Sections 53601, 

et seq. Management responsibility for the investment program is hereby delegated to the
Executive Director, who shall establish written procedures for the operation of the

investment program consistent with this investment-policylnvestment Policy. 

Procedures should include references to safekeeping, PSA repurchase agreements, wire
transfer agreements, collateral/ depository agreements, banking services contracts, as
appropriate. Such procedures will include explicit delegation of authority to persons
responsible for investment transactions. No person may engage in an investment
transaction except as provided under the terms of this poliGyPolicy and the procedures
established by the Executive Director. 

The Executive Director is responsible for all transactions undertaken and will establish a

system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate officials. The Executive Director

is a trustee and a fiduciary subject to the prudent investor standard. ( California Government
Code 53600. 3) 

The Executive Director may delegate day-to- day investment decision making and execution
authority to an investment advisor, subject to Board selection and approval of that advisor
and written agreement with the advisor. The Authority must be able to revoke the investment
advisor's authority at all times and without notice. Eligible investment advisors must be
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission ( SEC) under the Investment

Advisors Act of 1940. The advisor will follow the Policy and such other written instructions
as are provided by the Authority. 

ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: 

All participants in the investment process shall act as custodians of the public trust. 

Investment officials shall recognize that the investment portfolio is subject to public review

and evaluation. The overall program shall be designed and managed with a degree of

professionalism that is worthy of the public trust. 

Officers and employees involved in the investment process will refrain from personal

business activity that could conflict with the proper execution of the investment program, or
which could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions. 

Investment Policy 2 110 of 154



INVESTMENT POLICY

AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS: 

The Executive Director will select financial institutions on the basis of credit worthiness, 
financial strength, experience and minimal capitalization, that are authorized to provide

investment services. No public deposit shall be made except in a qualified public depository
as established by State laws. 

For brokers/dealers of government securities and other investments, the Executive Director

will select only broker/dealers who are licensed and in good standing with the California
Department of Securities, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the National

Association of Securities Dealers or other applicable self-regulatory organizations. 

Before engaging in investment transactions with a broker/dealer, the Executive Director will
have received from said firm a signed Certification Form. This form will attest that the

individual responsible for the Housing Authority' s account with that firm has reviewed the
Authority's Investment Policy and that the firm understands the policy and intends to present
investment recommendations and transactions to the Housing Authority that are appropriate
under the terms and conditions of the Investment Policy. 

If the Housing Authority Board has appointed an investment advisor, the investment advisor
may use its own list of authorized broker/dealers to conduct transactions on behalf of the
Housing Authority. Eligible brokers/dealers must be registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission ( SEC). The brokers/dealers will follow the Policy and such other
written instructions as are provided by the Authority or Advisor. 

AUTHORIZED AND SUITABLE INVESTMENTS: 

1. The Housing Authority is empowered by HUD Notice PIH 96- 33 ( reinstated by PIH 2002- 
13) to invest HUD funds in the following: 

a. United States Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds; 

b. Obligations issued by Agencies or Instrumentalities of the U. S. Government; 

c. State or Municipal Depository Funds, such as the Local Agency Investment Fund
LAIF) or pooled cash investment funds managed by County treasuries; 

d. Insured Demand and Savings Deposits, provided that deposits in excess of the

insured amounts must be 100 percent collateralized by securities listed in " a" and " b" 
above; 

e. Insured Money Market Deposit Accounts, provided that deposits in excess of the
insured amount must be 100 percent collateralized by securities listed in " a" and " b" 
above; 

Investment Policy 3 111 of 154



INVESTMENT POLICY

f. Insured Super NOW Accounts, provided that deposits in excess of the insured

amount must be 100 percent collateralized by securities listed in " a" and " b" above; 

g. Negotiable Certificates of Deposit ( CDs) issued by federally- or state -chartered
banks or associations. Not more than 30 percent of surplus funds can be invested
in CDs; 

h. Repurchase/ Reverse Repurchase Agreements of any securities authorized by this
Section. Securities purchased under these agreements will be no more than 102

percent of market value; ( See special limits in HUD Notice 96- 33 and CGC 53601. 0.) 

J. 

Sweep Accounts that are 100 percent collateralized by securities listed in " a" and " b" 
above; 

Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies investing
in the securities and obligations authorized by this Section ( i. e., Money Market Mutual
Funds) Such Funds must carry the highest rating of at least two ( 2) national rating
agencies. Not more than 20 percent of surplus funds can be invested in Money
Market Mutual Funds; 

k. Funds held under the terms of a Trust Indenture or other contract or agreement, 

including the HUD/ PHA Annual Contributions Contract, may be invested according
to the provisions of those indentures or contracts; 

I. Principal only STRIPS; and

m. Any other investment security authorized under the provisions of HUD Notice PIH
96- 33. 

2. The Housing Authority is empowered by California Government Code ( CGC) Sections
5922 and 53601 et seq. to invest non -HUD funds in the following investments
instruments authorized for California local agencies under the provisions of California

Government Code ( inducting-CGC-Sections 5922. and 53601): 

a. Bonds issued by the City of Alameda; 

b. United States Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds; 

c. Registered state warrants or treasury notes or bonds issued by the State of
California; 

d. Bonds, notes, warrants or other evidence of debt issued by a local agency within the
State of California, including pooled investment accounts sponsored

Investment Policy 4 112 of 154



INVESTMENT POLICY

by thc Statc of California, County Tro surics, othcr local
agcncics or Joint Powcrs 7lgcncics; j

e. The California Local Agency Investment Fund (" LAIF") and other pooled investment
funds sponsored by the State of California, County Treasuries, and other local
agencies or Joint Powers Authorities; 

e -f. Obligations issued by Agencies or Instrumentalities of the U. S. Government; 

fig Bankers Acceptances with a term not to exceed 180 days. Not more than 40 percent
of surplus funds can be invested in Bankers Acceptances—and no more than 30

percent of surplus funds can be invested in the bankers acceptances of any single
commercial bank; 

g: h. g . Prime Commercial Paper of " prime" quality of the highest
ranking or of the highest letter and number rating as provided for by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization ( NRSRO) with a term not to exceed 180
days and thc highcst rating issucd by Moody' s Invcstors
Scrvicc or Standard & P or' s Corporation ( S& P)., Commercial

paper cannot exceed 10 percent of total surplus funds, provided, that if the average

maturity of all Commercial paper does not exceed 31 days, up to - 825 percent of
surplus funds can be invested in Prime Commercial paper. Additionally, the Housing
Authority may purchase no more than 10 percent of the outstanding commercial
paper of any single issuer. ; 

h: i. Negotiable Certificates of Deposit ( CDs) issued by fcdcrally a nationally or
state -chartered banksbank, a savings association or associations. a federal

association ( as defined by Section 5102 of the California Financial Code), a state or
federal credit union, or by a federally licensed or state -licensed branch of a foreign
bank. Negotiable Certificates of Deposit shall be rated in a rating category of "A" or
its equivalent or better by an NRSRO. Not more than 30 percent of surplus funds can
be invested in CCs Negotiable Certificates of Deposit; 

Repurchase/ Reverse Repurchase Agreements of any
securities authorized by this Section. Securities purchased under these agreements
will be no less than 102 percent of market value. Reverse repos cannot constitute

more than 20 percent of AHA' sthe Authority' s portfolio. Reverse repos are also
limited to 92 days unless the minimum spread between the rate on investment and

cost of funds is guaranteed in writing. ( See special limits in CGC 53601.) 

k. 1 . Medium -- term notcsNotes, not to exceed five ( 5) years of u . 

S . corporations organized and operating within the United States which are rated
a rating category of "A"" or its equivalent or better by Moody' s or S& P. an

Investment Policy 5 113 of 154



INVESTMENT POLICY

NRSRO. Not more than 30 percent of surplus funds can be invested in mium

Medium-term notes; Notes.; 

k. Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management
companies investing in the securities and obligations authorized by this Section ( i. e., 
Money Market Mutual Funds). Such Funds must carry the highest rating of at least
two national rating agencies. Not more than 15 percent of surplus funds can be
invested in Money Market Mutual Funds. In addition, no more than 10 percent of
AHA' sthe Authority' s portfolio may be invested in any single mutual fund. 

m. Funds held under the terms of a Trust Indenture or other contract or agreement may
be invested according to the provisions of those indentures or agreements; 

n. Collateralized bank deposits with a perfected security interest in
accordance with the Uniform Commercial Code ( UCC) or applicable federal security
regulations; 

o. Any mortgage pass- through security, collateralized mortgage obligation, mortgaged
backed or other pay -through bond, equipment lease -backed certificate, consumer
receivable pass-through certificate or consumer receivable backed bond of a

maximum maturity of five ( 5) years. Securities in this category mshall be issued
by an issuer rated " nn" in a rating category of "A" or its equivalent or better by a
national rating service . for the issuer' s debt as provided by an NRSRO and
rated in a rating category of "AA" or its equivalent or better by an NRSRO. No more
than 20 percent of surplus funds can be invested in this category of securities; and_ 

o. 71ny other investment security authorized under the pr visions
of CCC 5922 and 53601. 

p. United States dollar denominated senior unsecured unsubordinated obligations
issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction
and Development, International Finance Corporation, or Inter -American

Development Bank, with a maximum remaining maturity of five years or less, and
eligible for purchase and sale within the United States. Investments under this

subdivision shall be rated in a rating category of "AA" or its equivalent or better by an
NRSRO and no more than 30 percent of surplus funds can be invested in this

category of securities. 

The Authority will limit investments in any one non- government issuer, except investment
pools and money market funds, to no more than 5% regardless of security type. 

The Board of Commissioners may, at times, further reduce the selection of types of
investment to be used by the Advisor or Executive Director by a formal vote. 

Where this Policy specifies a percentage limitation for a particular security type, that

Investment Policy 6 114 of 154



INVESTMENT POLICY

percentage is applicable only on the date of purchase. Due to fluctuations in the
aggregate surplus funds balance, maximum percentages for a particular issuer or

investment type may be exceeded at a point in time subsequent to the purchase of a
particular issuer or investment type. Securities need not be liquidated to realign the

portfolio; however, consideration should be given to this matter when future purchases

are made to ensure that appropriate diversification is maintained. 

Credit criteria listed in this Policy refers to the credit rating at the time the security is
purchased. The Authority may from time to time be invested in a security whose rating
is subsequently downgraded. In the event a rating drops below the minimum allowed
by this Policy, the Executive Director will review and recommend an appropriate plan
of action to the Board no less frequently than quarterly. If the Authority has an
Investment Advisor, the Investment Advisor will notify the Executive Director and
recommend a plan of action. 

3. Also, see CGC 53601 and Attachment A to HUD Notice 96- 33, " HUD Approved

Investment Instruments," for a detailed summary of the limitations and special conditions
that apply to each of the above listed investment securities. CGC 53601 and Attachment
A -_are attached and included by reference in this Investment Policy. 

4. Undq,r the provisions of CGC 53631. 5, the Housing Authority will not invest any funds
covered by this Investment Policy in inverse floaters, range notes, interest -only strips
derived from mortgage pools or any investment that may result in a zero interest accrual
if held to maturity. 

COLLATERALIZATION: 

1. The percentage of collateralization on repurchase agreements will conform to the

amount required under CGC 53601 ( i)( 2). 

SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY: 

1. All security transactions entered into by the Housing Authority will be conducted on
delivery -versus -payment ( DVP) basis. 

2. All securities purchased or acquired will be delivered to the Board of Commissioner of

the Authority by book entry, physical delivery, or by third -party custodial agreement. 
CGC 53601) 

DIVERSIFICATION: 

It is the policy of the Housing Authority to diversify its investment portfolio. The Authority will
diversify its investments by security type and, within each type, by institution. Assets will be
diversified to eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over concentration of assets in a specific

Investment Policy 7 115 of 154



INVESTMENT POLICY

maturity, a specific issuer or a specific class of securities. Diversification strategies will be
determined and revised periodically. In establishing specific diversification strategies, the
following guidelines will apply: 

1. Portfolio maturities will be matched against projected liabilities to avoid an over

concentration in a specific series of maturities. 

2. Maturities selected will provide for stability and liquidity. 

3. Disbursement and payroll dates will be covered by the scheduled maturity of specific
investments, marketable U. S. Treasury Bills or Notes or other cash equivalent
instruments, such as money market mutual funds. 

MAXIMUM MATURITIES: 

To the extent possible, the Housing Authority will attempt to match its investments with
anticipated cash flow requirements. 

purchase. However, the Housing Authority may collateralize its repurchase agreements
using longer dated investments not to exceed one year to maturity.Where there is no
anticipated cash flow requirement on an investment, no investment shall be made in any

security, which at the time of the investment, has a term remaining to maturity in excess of
five years, unless the Board has granted express authority to make that investment no less
than three months prior to the investment [CGC 536011

funds

INTERNAL CONTROL: 

The Housing Authority shall establish an annual process of independent review by an
external auditor. This review will provide internal control by assuring compliance with
policies and procedures. 

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS: 

The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of obtaining a rate of return
throughout budgetary and economic cycles, commensurate with the investment risk
constraints and the cash flow needs. 

REPORTING: 

The Executive Director shall submit to each member of the Board of Commissioners a

Investment Policy 8 116 of 154



INVESTMENT POLICY

quarterly investment report. The report will include: 

1. A complete description of the portfolio, the type of investments, the issuers, maturity
dates, par values and the current market values of each component of the portfolio, 

including funds managed by third party contractors. 

2. The source of the portfolio valuation. In the case of funds invested in the LAIF, FDIC

Insured accounts or county investment pools, current statements from those institutions
will satisfy the above reporting requirements. The report will also include a certification
that: 

a. All investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full

compliance with the Investment Policy; and

b. The Housing Authority will meet its expenditure obligations for the next six months. 
CGC 53646( b)] 

3. The Executive Director will maintain a complete and timely record of all investment
transactions. 

Investment Policy 9 117 of 154



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

118 of 154



Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda
701 Atlantic Avenue - Alameda, California 94501- 2161 - Tel: ( 510) 747-4300 - Fax: ( 510) 522-7848 - TDD: ( 510) 522-8467

To: Honorable Chair and

Members of the Board of Commissioners

From: Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director

Submitted by: Marie Wang, Finance Director
Victoria Johnson, Director of Housing and Community Development

Date: January 18, 2017

RE: Accept the Five Year Cash Flow Report

BACKGROUND

At the April 22, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting, PFM Asset Management
was awarded a contract for investment services. At the January 20, 2016 Board of
Commissioners meeting, a three year cash flow projection was presented to the
Board of Commissioners, demonstrating the various reserve sources of cash, 
cash for investment, and future cash commitments. 

The Board of Commissioners authorized the Executive Director to transfer $ 15

million of Housing Authority reserve funds from the Local Agency Investment Fund
LAIF) to the initial investment of $ 2 million in CD' s and $ 13 million to specified

investment accounts managed by PFM Management, LLC. 

This staff report provides the updated five year cash flow projections for the

Housing Authority reserve funds deposited in the Local Agency Investment Fund
LAIF) and the investment accounts managed by PFM Asset Management, LLC. 

To date, no funds have been invested in CD's and these funds remain in LAIF. In

order to facilitate the Board' s discussion, some description is also provided on the

second sheet for the 6- 10 year time horizon. As with all projections, the longer the

time frame, the less firm the projections are. Staff will bring this cash flow forecast
to the Board at least annually for review. 

DISCUSSION

Attached to this report you will find a two page spreadsheet titled " Available

Investment Analysis". On the first page, there are five broad boxes titled

Restricted Reserve of Funds", " Cash/ Investments", " Projected Unrestricted

Revenue/ Funds", " Estimated Needs for Existing Funds", and " Estimated Needs for
Projected Funds". 

The first box titled " Restricted Reserve of Funds" is to identify the restricted funds
and the designated reserves set aside from the investment ( LAIF) for an identified119 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 2 of 4

purpose. The Section 8 fund is strictly restricted either for the FSS escrow account
or for the HCV programs operation. It is not to be used for any investment purpose. 

The next box titled " Cash/ Investment" identifies the $ 28.3 million dollars available

as of 12/ 31/ 16. Line 1 identifies $ 2, 313, 630 cash in the U. S. Bank checking
account for on- going daily operations. Line 2 LAIF Investments identifies

12, 941, 322 in cash, and Line 3 PFM identifies $ 13, 049, 656 in cash and

securities, which could be made available for longer term investments. The total

amount of investment is $ 25, 990, 978. 

The third box titled " Projected Unrestricted Revenue/ Funds" identifies the future

upcoming revenue and fees of $ 3, 350, 000 collected from the sources of Alameda
Landing, Stargell, Del Monte and Eagle. We expect additional cash revenue in the
future, but we have only shown the funds that are already secured. 

The fourth box titled " Estimated Needs for Existing Funds" identifies the estimated
time that the funds are likely to be needed and the individual existing sources of

25, 990,978, that needed funds would be drawn from. 

The fifth box titled " Estimated Needs for Projected Funds" identifies the estimated

time that the funds would be needed and the future sources of $3, 350, 000 that the
funds would be drawn from. 

The chart on the second page titled " Projected Cash Needs" identifies projects

currently in process and those expected to proceed in the next five years. The
forecasted Capital Improvement Projects needs for years six through ten and

thereafter are also included. This schedule was developed after various

discussions with the management team regarding AHA' s capital needs and
development needs

Cash Flow

Generally cash is generated from operations, loans, grants and special
circumstances such as the funds transferred to AHA from the Successor Agency. 
Cash is disbursed generally first for operations and then for the principal on AHA
loans, then for Capital Improvement Projects and Development Projects. 

Occasionally there is a special situation such as the repayment of the unfunded
pension liability to CaIPERS. 

The chart below illustrates how cash typical flows into and out of AHA: 

Add: 

Revenues from Rents and Grants

Subtract: 

Operating Expenses

Equals: 

Net Cash from Operations

120 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 3 of 4

Subtract: 

Other Non -Operating Cash Items
Examples: a. Principal payments on AHA debt

b. Capital Improvement Projects

c. Deposits to Building Replacement Reserves
d. IP set aside reserves

e. Donation to City Park

It is important to note a few caveats. First, the cash flow shows over $ 6m to be

used for development projects and the gap funding in the first five years. It also
shows $ 6m to be used for other ( TBD) projects ( likely Independence Plaza and
one other) that will start in the 10 year time frame. The projection only provides for
minor capital upgrades in other AHA -owned projects in the next ten years, 

sufficient to meet health and safety requirements, keep the units operational and
habitable. These aging properties include: Esperanza, Anne B. Diament, Parrott
Village and Gardens, China Clipper and all small developments under 20 units. 

Staff expects that shortly after the 5- 10 year period, major rehab work will be
needed at several of those sites and will need to be done by refinancing or by
accessing equity or loans from a third party, such as LIHTC or state affordable
housing funds. However, the source of such affordable housing funds, even in the
closer time frame, is currently uncertain. Second, CaIPERS has recently
announced a reduction in its expected rate of return from 7. 5 to 7%. Although

CaIPERS has not yet given further direction to member agencies, it is reasonable

to expect that annual employer contributions will increase, and, potentially, that the
calculation of outstanding liabilities under GASB 68 may change. ( For the 2016- 17
audit, AHA will hire an actuarial firm to complete the retirement liabilities.) Third, 

the Board will need to decide whether to pre -fund the other post -employment

benefits (OPEB) contributions by June 30, 2017. The outstanding $407, 000 liability
has been booked in the agency's books as at June 30, 2016. 

FUND INVESTMENT

AHA's investment policy requires the agency to diversify its investments. As of
December 31, 2016, $ 13 million was available in cash with Local Agency
Investment Fund ( LAIF); and $ 13 million was available in cash and securities in

the US Bank account and managed by PFM Investment LLC. Although the
Investment Policy provides for a wide range of investments, in January 20 2016, 
the Board restricted investment of these funds to the following three sources: 
United States Treasuries, and Federal Agencies; California Local Agency
Investment Fund (" LAIF"), and Certificates of Deposit (CDs) issued by federally or
state -chartered banks or associations. At this time PFM has also been given

direction that any change in investments must be brought to the Executive Director
for written approval prior to execution. The Board of Commissioners also approved

2 million dollars in January 2016 to be deposited in Certificate of Deposits ( CD). 
Since the interest rate in LAIF has been higher than the interest rate of the one

year certificate of deposit for the major reputable banks, as of December 31, 2016, 

no funds have been deposited to CDs yet and the funds have remained in LAIF. 

121 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 4 of 4

PFM first received the cash for investment in February 2016. Once the Board has
accepted a final cash flow projection, PFM will return to the Board in next 1- 3

months to provide the first 12 -month report on the performance of the investment

of the $ 13m ( quarterly reports have been provided in the interim). PFM will provide
a range of investment proposals to meet the investment policy and Board -accepted
cash flow report. Staff will set aside 45- 60 minutes for that discussion. In the

meantime, funds will remain invested in the same selection of instruments - United

States Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds; Obligations issued by Agencies or
Instrumentalities of the U. S. Government; California Local Agency Investment
Fund (" LAIF"), and Certificates of Deposit ( CDs) issued by federally or state - 
chartered banks or associations. Funds for reinvestment may also be held
temporarily in money market accounts. At that same Board meeting, staff will also
provide an analysis of return on the portfolio and fees paid. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The attached report indicates expected uses of agency funds for capital and other
projects. The approved budget includes the fees paid monthly to PFM for fund
management and bank charges. 

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Commissioners accept the Cash Flow Report. 

Respectfully submitted, 

4. 
Vanessa . Cooper

Executive Director

VC: MW

Attachments: 1. Investment Analysis Spreadsheet

122 of 154



00z

v1 -- r 'o . o
r ON rn v

M 00 00 N Ino
M N •-• M

a

0

ON

ri

M 00N v1NV -106 t. N \ C
O 00 r
N 00 Vo
d' d' 

N O
N V

00

0w47to

OoONr

00

O

ON00
V1

J

SOrn
tforn

0' 

00

r

et00
O

NO

00r

O^ 

N

rr

M

00Itr

00O` rO

aO

ct, 

OO

O00

ON00

r

w

0

rO
C7

00

001

R

R4) ER

00 ONN Ov O
N O M

M M

F

z

123 of 154



CONLOzyf
R. 

Six -TenYearsFY22-27
C= C

OC

M

5

M

FiveYearsFY21-22
OOOOO

1

3,

000,000
3,

000,000
1

13

7

FourYearsFY20-21
OO^ OOO^ O

C

O

ThreeYearsFY19-20IwoYearsFY18-19
oO OOOoCDInr OO

i7,

E r 6,

000,00012-18MonthsFY17-18
1,

550,000
CO

CCC
7 Y

If

s.^, 

6-

12MonthsFY17-18
OOOOCO C.T. 

If

O

f` l MN

CZ

If. 7

1-

6

MonthsFY2016-17
7 7

CE
OOO
COC

I CCO
2,

300,0001
O

If. r 4,

500,000
000'
000'
9 Mt` 

29,100.(1110
1

CashNeeds (Uses) Pension
l

nfunded
I.

iabilit ( ('aIPIRS) 
I

1

Lz.CC.EuC LGztR
RCd

Development2437Eagle -LoantoLPRosetieldVillage - LoantoLPNorth
1

lousing - pre -developmentandLoanto
1.P

T131) DevelopmentProjects - TotalDevelopment
1

Operations -Reserves
C

124 of 154



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

125 of 154



Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda
701 Atlantic Avenue - Alameda, California 94501- 2161 - Tel: ( 510) 747-4300 - Fax: ( 510) 522- 7848 - TDD: ( 510) 522-8467

To: Honorable Chair and

Members of the Board of Commissioners

From: Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director

Prepared Victoria Johnson, Director of Housing and Community Development
by: 

Date: January 18, 2017

Re: Rosefield Project Update; Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the Submission
of an Application to the State of California Veteran' s Housing and
Homeless Prevention Program; Authorize the Commitment of up to $ 4. 4
million in AHA loan funds; Authorize the Executive Director to Execute
Related Documents

BACKGROUND

Since early 2015 staff has been working to prepare an improvement plan for the
buildings at Rosefield Village. It was initially expected that extensive structural repairs
could be made and that the buildings could be preserved through substantial
rehabilitation. Based on this plan, the Board authorized the submission of an

application for tax- exempt bonds in November 2015 and for Affordable Housing and
Sustainable Communities funds in February 2016. Soon thereafter, two structural
reports were received that indicated that the nine pre -fabricated buildings that were built

in approximately 1976 and put into service in 1979 have reached the near -end of their
useful life. Hence the AHSC application was withdrawn and the bond application was

not submitted. 

In April 2016 the Board authorized staff to proceed with an alternate plan to seek

additional funding opportunities and to submit a bond application prior to June 15, 2016. 
By submitting prior to this June date, the project is able to take advantage of a
preliminary bond reservation that can preserve the ' Difficult Development Area' ( DDA) 
status for up to two years and thereby obtain a 30% tax credit basis boost. This also
makes it possible to finance the project through non- competitive 4% credits. Without
the DDA, the project will have to enter the competitive 9% tax -credit pool and would

have to be designated as either senior or family. Since then, staff has worked with the
financial consultant (Community Economics) to evaluate other funding opportunities and
to consider multiple financing schemes. 

126 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 2 of 3

In October 2016 the Board authorized staff to proceed with a 66 unit plan and to select
an architectural firm to provide design services for the project. 

Since the project was first discussed with the Board in 2015, staff has held four resident
meetings to discuss the overall plan and staff has also has also conducted individual in- 
depth personal interviews with each household to ascertain individual needs in terms of
relocation. Although it could be somewhat easier to complete the redevelopment

project in phases with respect to tenant relocation, the design team recently informed us
that this may not be possible due to the potential need for site -wide soil remediation. 
The final decision related to phased versus single phase work will be driven by soil test
results and will be equally applicable for any redevelopment plan. 

Once the final decision is made to move forward, staff will outreach to the neighboring

commercial) property owners. There are no residential property owners adjacent to the
property, except the AHA owned sites. A 300 foot notice to all neighbors will be mailed
when the site plan is submitted to the City. 

A summary of prior Board approvals related the Rosefield Village project is attached
Exhibit 1) and a binder of the corresponding reports is available before and at the

meeting for review. These items are also available online at www.alamedahsg. org. 

DISCUSSION

At this time, staff seeks an updated Board recommendation whether to pursue the

existing work plan and if so, approval to commit additional resources to project
development. The alternative option is to postpone project redevelopment until a later
date. 

Option One

Staff will continue to work to realize the goals of the project as defined in the June 2016

bond application. This includes: a lot -line adjustment that will separate the existing
historic) structures from the multi -family units; the creation of a 2 acre parcel that will

include the rehabilitation of 6 ( formerly) Eagle Village units and the construction of 60
new units with a bedroom mix of 34 one -bed, 24 two -bed and 8 three-bedroom plus

community room, offices and outdoor amenities. The overall AHA site ( including the
adjacent existing structures) will include 74 units. 

In November the Housing Authority was awarded an allocation of 45 VASH vouchers
and in December the State published a NOFA for funds under the California Veteran' s

Housing and Homelessness Prevention Program ( VHHP). AHA will submit a response
to the VASH RFP that is to be issued by staff on January 12, 2017. If the VASH and
VHHP are awarded to the project, then 21 or 22 of the 66 units will be restricted to serve

eligible veterans and their household members. In addition to the services provided by
LIfeSTEPS for all units, additional support services will be provided by the VA to support
the 22 homeless veteran households throughout their tenancy. The other possible
funding sources that will be required to make the project succeed are County bond
funds and AHA funds to be loaned to the project with repayment subject to cash flow. 

127 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 2 of 3

Last year' s plan to secure AHSC funding was unsuccessful because the application to
rehabilitate was withdrawn after the engineering reports were received. This year' s plan
to secure HCD funds is also not assured because VHHP funds are awarded

competitively. However, there are some advantages in applying this year such as the
availability of VASH and County bond fund funds, which are not certain in future years. 
A copy of the financial projections is attached as Exhibit 2. It should be noted that the
VASH ( as project based vouchers) support the 15 year mortgage loan that is key to
financial feasibility. Despite the high volume of effort required to prepare and submit an
application, staff is prepared to complete the process and to move forward if the award
is made. 

The deadline for drawing down on the 4% bond funds is June, 2018. Contingent upon
an award of VHHP and County funds, the timeline for the project would be as follows: 

January 2017 - Apply for 20 VASH vouchers; begin site plan design
February 2017 - Apply for VHHP funds through State HCD
April 2017 — Submit to Planning for Site Plan approval; Board approves Relocation Plan
June 2017 — Announcement of VHHP awards; apply for County bond funds; submit to
Planning for Design review Approval; Engage Relocation Advisor (allows 12 month total
relocation period) 

November 2017 — City Council TEFRA hearing; submit updated bond application
December 2017 - Submit non- competitive tax credit application; Finalize Building Plans
January 2018 — Solicit for tax credit investor and construction/ perm lender
March 2018 — Tax Credit and Bond Allocation awards

June 2018 — Close Construction Loan and Construction Commence

As with all affordable development nationwide at this time, there is some uncertainty
due to potential changes in federal policy and very limited state and local funds. 
Potential changes are not yet clear, although the uncertainty in itself has already
impacted the LIHTC markets. Option One cannot be guaranteed and requires a certain

amount of streamlining of the design process in order to meet the deadlines and rules
out options that might allow increased density. 

Option Two

Project work could be paused at this time to allow for further evaluation of

redevelopment options, site capacity and funding plans. The underlying ( original) 
zoning for the site is 40 units per acre and this could allow 80 ( rather than 66) total units
if the project were designed more densely. It is expected that this would require a four- 
story design with podium parking. This would be a more expensive project and the
VASH subsidy ( and hence the VHHP) may not be available in the future, so the final
product could serve a higher average income population. It might be feasible to develop
as a mixed -income project, and if AHSC funds continue to be available, there could be

an opportunity to apply in a future cycle. At this time, and until the regulations for project
based vouchers are revised', no additional PBV other than VASH will be available to

target very -low income households or to support project financing. Even if the limit on

Note HUD had committed to issue these HOTMA regulations under the current Administration. 128 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 2 of 3

PBV issuance is raised under the new regulations, there is no guarantee that HUD will

provide additional funds to pay for more PBV or allow one time reserve money to be
spent on a 15 year PBV commitment. AHA is currently utilizing 18% of its annual budget
authority and has 20% of its Budget Authority designated for PBV (20% is currently the
cap). If the current bond reservation is not utilized by June 2018 the DDA will expire. 
Without the DDA, and if the project is developed with tax credits it will need to be

designated as a family or a senior project. If a family project is chosen, at least 25% of
the units will need to be three- bedroom and if senior, all household members must be

62 or older. Based on prior legal action upon the demolition of affordable housing in
Alameda, there would likely be considerable local pressure to replace family housing
with family housing. 

It should be noted that three units have already been taken out of service permanently
and additional ( sometimes urgent) repairs will be required to maintain the habitability of
the property if the redevelopment project is delayed. The ongoing expenditure for
repairs may cost between $ 100, 000 and $ 200, 000 per year to meet minimum HQS. In
general, the physical conditions will continue to deteriorate for current residents until
redevelopment. 

AHA could also consider working with an outside development partner rather than self - 
developing through an RFP process. This could reduce initial burden on staff, and a
development partner might put forth some of their own funds, but AHA would lose some

control and would give up the potential to earn to the developer fee. Some significant, 
staff responsibilities would remain in managing the contract and ensuring that AHA's
best interests are met in the execution of the project, including long term control of the
land and the property. The property would still be subject to affordability restrictions and
compliance and AHA should insist on being included in the partnership and having the
right to acquire the project after the tax credit period. 

AHA is always subject to changes in State and federal housing programs and policy to
make development decisions. Generally, the more of AHA's own funds that the Board is
willing to commit, the more options are available. However, it is important to remember
that several other AHA units need rehab and major capital projects in the coming few
years including Esperanza, China Clipper, Anne Diament and Parrot Village and
Gardens. Not all of these projects have been included in the 10 year capital plan

presented in this Board packet. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The Board has previously authorized a $ 1 million loan to Island City Development for
pre -development expenses and accepted a CDBG loan of up to $ 1 million to rehabilitate
the existing adjacent units. As of 11/ 30/ 16 $ 165, 338 has been expended for the bond
application fee, professional services, and engineering and design fees. All funds
loaned to ICD are tracked separately and are documented with a Promissory Note. 
When the project closes with construction financing, most pre -development expenses
are reimbursed and may revolve to be used on other development projects. 

129 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 2 of 3

The proposed development budget reflects an AHA commitment of $4. 3 million in loan

funds that will repaid through net cash flow over time. The AHA or Island City
development will also be eligible to earn developer fee of $ 1. 6 million. 

RECOMMENDATION

Staff seeks Board direction regarding the Rosefield project as described in the above
two Options. If Option One is selected, staff seeks Board adoption of the attached

Resolution authorizing the submission of an application to the State of California
Veteran' s Housing and Homeless Prevention Program; approval of the commitment of

4. 3 million in AHA loan funds and to authorize the Executive Director to execute

related documents. 

Respectfully submitted, 

VCIMAL>.. (44-/ • 
Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director

VMCNJ

Exhibit 1 — Rosefield Village Prior Board Agenda Items
Exhibit 2 — Proposed Development Budget with VHHP

130 of 154



EXHIBIT
1 — 

LISTOFRECENTROSEFIELDVILLAGEBOCAGENDAITEMSNOTESTake
2

unitsoutofservice; 3rdunithasalsobeenvacatedandtakenoutofserviceInitialDevelopmentplanandbudgetbasedonfeasibilityofrehabilitationApplicationbasedonrehabilitationof46unitsandadditionof10totalunits (56total) InitialCDBGprojecttorenovate738EagleAve, includingcreatingonenewunitFinalEngineeringReportsnotyetreceived; Alternativescenariospresentedbasedonpossiblerenovationorredevelopment; AHSCprogramproposedasprimarygapfund. Subsequently, AHSCprogramfundinghasbeencurtailedandotherAlamedaprojectswerenotfundedBoarddirectiontoprovideveteran'
s

unitswheneverfeasibleBoardretreatTITLEItem
3-

E: 

InformationonRosefieldVillage — 727BuenaVista, Units
D

and
E

Item
3-

C: 

Approve
a

LoantoIslandCityDevelopmentforPre -developmentCostsatRosefieldVillage; AuthorizetheSubmissionof
a

Tax -ExemptBondApplicationtotheCaliforniaDebtLimitAllocationCommittee (CDLAC); AuthorizeExecutiveDirectortoExecuteRelatedDocumentsItem
7-

I: 

RosefieldVillageProjectUpdate; Adopt
a

ResolutionAuthorizingtheSubmissionof
a

JointApplicationwiththeCityofAlamedatotheStateofCaliforniaAffordableHousingandSustainableCommunitiesProgram; AuthorizetheExecutiveDirectortoExecuteRelatedDocumentsItem
7-

E: 

RosefieldVillageProjectUpdateandApprovalof
a

CDBGLoaninanAmountupto $
1

MillionOptionalTourofRosefieldVillage (Tourstartsat703AtlanticAvenue, Alameda, CA) — 
6:

00-
6:

30
p.

m. 

Item
7-

C: 

RosefieldProjectUpdate; AuthorizetheExecutiveDirectortoExecuteFundingApplicationandRelatedDocumentsAssociatedwithBoardApprovedRedevelopmentPlanItem
2-

E: 

AuthorizetheSubmissionofanApplicationtotheDepartmentofHousingandUrbanDevelopmentforVeteran'
s

AdministrationSupportiveHousing (VASH) Vouchers; AuthorizeExecutiveDirectortoExecuteAllRelatedDocumentsItem
3-

E: 

DiscussionofRealEstatePipelineandUseofAgencyFundingtoRehabandExpandtheRealEstatePortfolioDATE2015-08-192015-11-18
n

4OO
t.D

ON

oil

vs

ON

2016-04-202016-08-17
OO
vs

O
N 131 of 154



EXHIBIT
1 — 

LISTOFRECENTROSEFIELDVILLAGEBOCAGENDAITEMSNOTESUpdateonbondapplicationsubmittedinJune60newunitsplus14totalexisting) PreliminarysiteplanningreviewTITLEItem
7-

D: 

RosefieldVillageProjectUpdate; DelegateAuthoritytotheExecutiveDirectortonegotiateandExecute
a

Contractfor
A&

E

Services
6:

00
p.

m. — 

PresentationandDiscussionofRedevelopmentandDesignOptionsatRosefieldVillageDATE
0) 

Oi

l0iON

2016-12-21
N4- 00N
CT

d

132 of 154



Alameda Oouwnp AunaN • Row6. 0 V.. p. 11/ 27/ 2016

A 1 B 1 0
1 Ron9ek Mon. truabn

23 Sowms or Funds
5 P. m Loan

0 8. 060n 6 Trench. 0 loan
1 AHA loan . t GAP

SC9 41.11501101 oompaw660r u6r. 965C. Isi7
1VNHP par 20 110611694. pats
11 Coady Bond bunds

11 0080. NOPWA, ANP, aro. 

13 waned IOsr. bper Fee - payable In 12 years
54 GP equity • net t0 .. y 31. 6m
155 Inv. aor Capbl COntnbuS00e

166777 TOTAL SOURCES
166

TOTAL

2, 976, 3004. 304. 26604, 655, 0775. 000. 0001 000, 000000. 0001. 300. 00012. 956. 00632, 793, 646

1 E 1 F

5. 50* 15 yaw tome

5 50% 15 yam/ term

net Ow fee nam dw souses' 

ConWuttcn sabot oats

snots knot 10M 4.3.

31conpruckonben

O 1 6

1. 000. 29. 37568411, 600,066 NA, 01) BO, County, AR SC. 001
17, 7751116

19 Construction ben
20

17, 776316 3 50* 

13 mo comet• 61

2124 USES OF FUNDS
2425 LAND COS./ 0N

MAepr4land pluswasp bawd Oouaneon
2Environmental70.aw 0err. oaten
26 C« rya Cale
29 Legal 6 Owing Cops

30 Tobl lark Cep a Wa4. 
311 Resew loan nlwwt
52 06364 knotworks. sod demo
33 Total Acqu4mnn Cop

34 NEW CONSTRUCT ION

35 SII. Wort366 Structures37 Gaal R. anm. rls
36 007920la O1. rM. e

59 070612. 100 Profs
n Tap Naar Conatnrclan Cop
tt RENANLITATION
tl S6. Nark . n6 Nantas

43 Shamans44 PV avatar, 45 Camera R. o1nm. ms
4 Contactor Insurance S Sone

47 C0n0eaor Ov. m.. d S Prot. 

40 Total Rehab Cop. 

4 ARCHITECTURAL FEES

50 001101151 SW. Mpon
51 Taal AIO14. clul14 Cops
53 Sawn and En00. 60400

54 CONSTR. INTERESTS FEES

56 Const Loan Inaba

56 abler ban was
5I Cwp1Wbn pan h. and eases. M COI

56 Tab. 50 Sabana; 60 7,.4 and R. wkap
61 Tole Consbualon hews! and Fns
61 PERMANENT FMANCINO
83 loan Fns @l% 
64 Cab of Bondbsuna

05 Tie and R. mldep

66 lapel80MrTO Tap PFm. pea Financing Cop. 
80 LEGAL FEES

20 tweet LavalOnnotL Pak tit Apa[. nl2f 00,61 . tinter Legal

72 E 101108 0y COs. 

R73 RESERVESCarob*, 0an4p Reserve mo

Copsabo60

Roane756Tbro6on novena •/. naled by hnsta
n TMp Rn. ra. Cosa
26 Taal Appeals. Costs
799 Total Cope97alon Contingency Cost. 

M. OTHER61 Tab CMI Aa/ A10CM0Man9 ton
Cw* uctson management 1 a. v. bl9 sage mo5a7p

6.7 Fwveonans
64 Local O. vpopm. nl 1107./ 1 Fns

e5 Punk Processing F. n
66 Mahal Shah
67 / As rteag6 Loan up
66 RELOCATION
69 Furralwys

90 Soft Cop ConbM. rcy
91 Taal Ol0a Costa
93 Taal Project Cost

63 DEVELOPER COSTS
W pvppar0nlnudPrat

n. u8an47000* Fnp Apes
96 80801 AArnbsea9on

97 Broker Ewa past by oln. r

9e Cwstbca l Manageresses 04«. 011! 

60 oda. 100 Total Developer Cop. 
101101 TOTAL PROJECT COST
103 bykbo. n Con

104 legal - SykornnOraniFpbn

105. Aud1OS t • Syndic -Nan
106 & k9. Loon Iran
106 Tap Syndicators Cost. 

109 TOTAL PROJECT COSTS INCL SYNDICATION

500% 

in C01

Consuaton

TOTAL COST BASIS 4% CREDIT P. rad Cab

025000

200.000126.000

19. 09.027970451776. 761776. 70127. 000. 000

0

0

00025, 0000
O 100. 000223, 000

10300.011973. 451770761776. 761

660.000 600000

220.000 00060

1. 100. 000300. 000 300000

19, 40317973. 451778. 761778, 76122, 000000

000.000210. 0001. 100. 000300. 000
601. 777 860360 601. 7770

O 0 0

O 0 0

40, 000 4,000 4.000

175,000 175.003 173. 000

O 0

696,777 696,777

0462, 2535, 0005, 000041, 253
0

30. 000 30300

30. 000407. 764 00407, 76410, 000 10. 000
10. 00* 2, 220.000 2110.000

41, 35480000 00.000

15.000 15.000

200. 000 200.000

600.000 000.000

15.00035/ 300250.000 0

75.000 75. 000

200.000 200.003

1. 511, 35419, 193, 140 17130. 360

462.253

04617] 53030. 00030. 000
010. 0002110. 000

50% 0. laa. b. w0ne
bond ban 30. 955. 35017. 775. 6165747* 

498. 427

Cops of Bond Inuna

pant ownwl coal and arm

bone owns* caw Iwo anew0c fees

eaves fenwool . p9Mge1nan6at9 - 24 101lia
com0w.tion ban M ® .751

cant IeOOM WW1

polmlan No 111

antconsultantI. gol oats met bond Swag
TOTAL 20, 000, 00050. 00050. 00010. 00037, 50010, 00020. 000150,00050, 00029. 75355. 00010, 00010. 000462, 253

41, 35400. 00015. 000200. 000600. 00015. 00035000150000 R. rM bol. bee now const
75.000200, 0001, 51165420775, 304

3. 500. 000 3. 500.003 500. 000 walcn So to knp GP assay under rob

3. 500. 000 3500.000 500, 000

37693,10 30, 730, 350 20175.364

4.500 40, 500

20. 000 2.000

40. 000 4.000

O 0

100, 500 100500

32793648 30, 720. 0110 29175604

133 of 154



A 000.4. Nouw9 A, bory R8. 410. 4188• 90 11272010

1 6 1 C 1 0 1 E 1 N 1 1
11SCBE0IT CALCULATIONS

1../ 9:40 .49,78 Wu 0

115 Nov CorWivcbn 6. 444 30. 730.350 bv00r of proud ban or 6444 bn1

W, % UNITS LOW INCOME 100% 

ti] E+9ib BWM 50,711.350

118 REOUCE FOR 10007.9'79points10,710.350 0

110 Boost 101004)'000 on Web 00117 30810.455 1105. 30DA 7017

1X1i21 F. 0.M1Cr. 61. 8481 wood 82 580.00 1170303 311% 

222 SIM. 07. 44

131 PV 00. 01L115126ir110 Equity Nem F. 4. n1C004t 12.056800 1. 020 eo:.+y. er.. n

Edgy Nem Slate CIa1 0 0063

EOUI7 hem PV a.%1 0

TOTAL EOUITY TO PROJECT 12.960, 006

12930

1 01206900

9.. h bri 0.0 Abm. 90 Ceunly
34 1BR 263.290 6, 961, 800

24 2BR 317.0)0 7, 522, 400

6 30R 400020 3.252, 224

0 413R 452. 600 0

is 79826.464

Ph4 P. r. 49 04911 20% 3,966,297

Phu Imps 6171 203800

Pb. Enemy 5% 7777 991, 324

Phu E11v. b, 10% n0 0

Ka peter 714 no 0

Phu 0488044604 0

1% 4070146. 04 0r45%462700'. 3333% 13, 217, 658

1% 6.0101 . 00 br 3650%.. 16. 16% 3. 601, 015

ROM. vroom 8444 41. 605. 576

Corp. 18 40120011063 30, 730. 350

IOYWER OF 300 TWO 30, 7503550

134 of 154



Alameda Hoorn Au. lorh • 54346N 0,649. 111275016

910111213141516171819
21n
I4' 

TS- R - 

353536373839404142433454443b4950515253 54

R 1 L 1 M 1111 0 P ( 0 1 R 5 1
Alameda County

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS

7. 1. 1. 9 3.,. Mor... 70H 201666379 p. 9. 6. 1 ban 6.m47
R. 14 10141 7041 Utlty Gross Annual Max V540P

UM 8a. 4. UMs Cn.49. 0 Mw419y Ann.! 010wan. R. n4 G011134. TC 14616 . r uM 1. 41
1642016a00. 33100 I' 3 243 3. 159 37906 122 366 4. 745 546 225.443 2. 930,759

13840%.454 6 639 3654 43646 122 731 4. 366 731

I 6650%. 1. 0 792 0 0 122 916 0 914

1133 30%. 54 15 975 14. 625 175 500 122 1. 037 16, 455 1, 037

26020% am for V11110 7 266 2016 24, 192 150 438 3066 436 246.474 1. 725,318

26840%. 64 4 728 2. 912 34944 150 378 3572 373

266 50%.4.4 0 947 0 0 350 1, 097 0 1, 037

26380%. 66 12 7, 7677 4. 004 168046 150 1, 317 15, 604 1, 517

383 30%. 60 2 582 1. 164 13. 988 176 760 1. 520 760

38R 40%. 1. 2 838 1, 872 20,064 178 1, 014 2. 026 1. 014

386 50%. 64 0 1. 089 0 0 176 1. 267 0 1. 262

38660% 61x1 4 1, 343 5372 64.464 178 1. 621 6. 084 1, 621

0 0 0 0 0 0

144643. 5. 2BR 1 0 0 0

TO4• 1. 63 45578 582. 936 4. 656, 077

144477 5 7754! 1 mo. n 3,980

4104007 5% 29, 345

COI born * nom bra 557, 551

S. cmn 8 3co1m

20 VASHt ants Prl sta5314 041
IBA 20% any r. 01. 940 13 1, 793 1, 428 222. 768

108 401E am 0 1, 793 1. 082 0

16R50%. 9 0 1, 793 879 0

26R 2011 snmlor WIMP 7 2. 173 1, 735 145, 740

208 40% aft 0 2. 173 1, 296 0

288 50%.., 0 2. 173 1, 076 0

3012 30% 660 0 2. 555 1, 795 0

364 40% 660 0 2. 555 1541 0

38R 50%. 54 0 2. 555 1. 288 0

TOY% 20 368. 508

00.4l00000. 03 5% 78. 425

EW 11om 3.. 03 8 610x. 77. 60 350.063

TOTAL PROJECT EGI

0914M9. xO. ns. s
Services 4. 661. 1

BIM! soar wol40a69 l. o
NETOPERATRIO INCOME

D. SIS. ni.- 1091

DMI Som. - 8308 ban

014, 40 42% Op. 11. 9 6354353
Rnl.. rr. M Row. 

E 4049 Cash

8300 p. uM. e y.. r

1, 736

500. 1054

55 Stow. 4 0• 1, 11( 001 tenant +scam 0

15 6. 60% 1. 20

57rA595. 900,4116e4 0.. r4m s. 0an a 2975.300

15 550% 1211

907. 634415.60026, 000 Jaw 6. 11861 kr VMs una7
4. 000

412, 634

0

791. 720

19. 566

0

11, 000

68, 550

1. 12

135 of 154



44. 00 74444. 4 . 1144 7 88444. 14 '. 77. 9. 71527/ 2016

3

6

70121314isTe171e19

30 y. ar cash now

AA j A9 I Ac 1 AD 1 AE 1 AE I AG 1 AN1 AI 1 04 1 AA

Year 3 5 9

70. 34. 1 Gnu . 084 008 7. 7481. 2 50% 562. 936 597509 612,447 627. 758 643. 452 659.539 676.027 692926 710, 251

S. non 8. rc4844r41 incwr. 75036 366, 508 374036 379646 365, 341 191. 121 396, 966 402, 943 408, 967 415. 122
10.093 250% 3, 990 4059 4. 190 4, 264 4. 371 4. 460 4, 592 4. 707 4. 825

V. 74777 500% . 47.770 - 46760 . 49. 513 - 50, 666 - 51, 47 . 53, 030 - 54. 178 . 55331 - 56. 510

EGI 907. 634 926.824 946.441 966.495 986, 697 1, 007. 956 1. 029.354 1961, 291 1. 073.667

loss An184109. 3. 1,. 91. 9. 71. 7 350% 415. 800 430.353 445. 415 461. 005 477. 140 493. 540 511. 124 529014 547. 529

Less 1444444703047407 350% 75,000 17.635 90. 342 63, 154 86.064 69, 078 92, 194 95. 421 98, 761

Less bond mo4444, 2144 4. 090 4000 4, 000 4. 060 4, 002 4, 000 4,000 4, 093 4. 000

NM 0001 094,. 1.. 4 Inc0m4 412. 634 41454e 416654 418. 337 419. 793 421, 040 422, 365 422, 856 423395

loss D. S. 44w • G. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

447404515. 44. • 5. 76088 6. 7 791. 726 291, 738 291, 728 291, 728 291. 728 291, 720 291. 729 291, 729 291. 725

Loss ANSC 4214 19556 19, 556 19. 556 19556 19, 558 19558 19, 566 19,556 19, 556
1. 04985Gcomo71/ 2. 744.. 33, 000 33. 000 33. 000 33000 33. 000 33. 000 33. 000 33.000 33. 000

5. 42lbw 69. 550 70. 582 72. 400 74053 75. 509 76. 756 77. 783 76, 572 79, 114

DGR 1 22 1 23 1 23 1 24 1 24 125 1 25 125 125

136 of 154



NImM1 Noupp Mmo. 1y • 70116. 0 V1491 116272016

737- L10it1311_ 15161715499

1 1 41.1 1 An 1 A0 1 1.r 1 90

10 12 13 15

726.001 746207 764, 660 763. 964 603,554 623, 673

421. 316 427. 669 431.054 440. 596 117, 204 43.912

4.945 5069 5. 166 5. 326 5, 155 5. 596

47.715 66,947 60.207 - 61. 495 $ 2612 41,159

1. 096.500 1. 119,996 1. 143935 1, 166.49 1. 193. 434 1119021
566.693 566.527 607.055 626. 302 650.260 973, 053

102. 217 105.795 109.496 113, 330 117, 291 121, 42

1. 000 4. 000 1. 000 6000 4.000 1, 000
423.673 423,976 423.362 422. 777 427. 644 420. 566

0 0 0 0 0 0

291. 723 291, 726 291726 291. 726 291. 720 291. 728

19, 556 19,656 19. 566 19. 556 19, 559 19, 556

33. 000 33. 000 33. 000 33.060 13. 000 33. 000

79. 392 79, 392 79. 009 76.493 77. 531 78282

126 126 125 115 125 125

137 of 154



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Resolution No. 

AUTHORIZE THE SUBMITTAL OF AN APPLICATION TO THE CALIFORNIA STATE

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FOR FUNDING

UNDER THE VETERANS HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS PREVENTION

PROGRAM ( VHHP); THE EXECUTION OF A STANDARD AGREEMENT IF

SELECTED FOR SUCH FUNDING AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO; AND ANY

RELATED DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO PARTICIPATE IN THE VHHP PROGRAM. 

WHEREAS, the State of California, Department of Housing and Community
Development ( the " Department") has issued a Notice of Funding Availability (" NOFA") 
under its Veterans Housing and Homelessness Prevention (" VHHP") Program dated
December 14, 2016 as authorized pursuant to The Veterans Housing and Homeless
Prevention Act of 2014 ( the " Act") as codified at Military and Veteran' s Code section
987. 001 et seq., and pursuant to the most recently adopted guidelines ( the " Guidelines") 
promulgated by the Department pursuant to the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda ( AHA) is authorized to
do business in the State of California and is empowered to enter into an obligation to

receive State funds for the acquisition, construction, rehabilitation, or preservation of

affordable multifamily supportive housing, affordable transitional housing, affordable
rental housing, or related facilities for veterans and their families; 

WHEREAS, AHA wishes to obtain an award from the Department for a VHHP

loan for the acquisition, construction, rehabilitation, or preservation of a Veteran' s - 

restricted affordable rental housing development ( the Project") located in the County of
Alameda; and

WHEREAS, AHA is eligible to be a Sponsor pursuant to the criteria set forth in

the Guidelines and NOFA. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED, that AHA is hereby authorized to submit
an application to borrow an amount not to exceed $ 4, 750,000 ( the "VHHP Loan") for the

Project pursuant to the NOFA. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, If the application is approved, AHA is hereby
authorized to incur an obligation for the VHHP Loan. That in connection with the VHHP

Loan, AHA is authorized and directed to enter into, execute, and deliver, a State of

California Standard Agreement, and any and all other documents required or deemed
necessary or appropriate to carry into effect the full intent and purpose of the above
resolution, in order to evidence the VHHP Loan, AHA' s obligations related thereto, and

the Department' s security therefore; including, but not limited to, a promissory note, a
deed of trust and security agreement, a regulatory agreement, a development

138 of 154



agreement and certain other documents required by the Department as security for, 
evidence of or pertaining to the VHHP Loan, and all amendments thereto ( collectively, 
the "VHHP Loan Documents"). 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, AHA is further authorized to request

amendments, including increases in amounts up to amounts approved by the
Department, and to execute any and all documents required by the Department to
govern and secure these amendments. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Vanessa Cooper as the Executive Director or

her written designee are each separate, individually, and independently hereby
authorized to execute: an application for the VHHP Loan, the VHHP Loan Documents, 

and any amendment or modifications thereto, on behalf of AHA. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall take effect immediately
upon its passage. 

ATTEST: 

Vanessa M. Cooper Arthur Kurrasch, Chair

Executive Director/ Secretary Board of Commissioners

Adopted: 

Date: 

139 of 154



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

140 of 154



Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda
701 Atlantic Avenue - Alameda, California 94501- 2161 - TEL: ( 510) 747- 4300 - FAX: ( 510) 522- 7848 - TDD: ( 510) 522- 8467

To: Honorable Chair and

Members of the Board of Commissioners

From: Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director

Prepared Janet Basta

by: Director of Human Resources and Operations

Date: January 18, 2017

Re: Adopt a Resolution to Adopt the Revised Schedule of Authorized Positions

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this resolution is to request adoption of an updated Schedule of

Authorized Positions, and approval to hire staff for vacant positions corresponding to
the proposed changes. 

DISCUSSION

In December, 2016, a report on the 2016 Total Compensation Study was presented to
the Board. Based on the results of the study, management recommended that one
position, the Facilities Project Specialist, be upgraded one wage range level, from 14 to

15. This change has been incorporated into the attached Schedule of Authorized

positions. No other changes in wage range levels are recommended at this time. 

The Director of Housing and Community Development ( HCD) has received notice of the
retirement of the Program Assistant assigned to the Department at the end of March. 

Upon review of department/ program needs, management recommends that the

Program Assistant position not be filled, as administrative needs for the department

have changed over the years, particularly in the past two years when the department
has shifted its work plan from administration of City housing programs to tax credit real
estate development. Instead, it is proposed that a Management Analyst be hired to

support a number of higher level assignments including budget work, analysis and
preparation of funding proposals, procurement management and program and policy
research. This person will also need to complete the basic administration for the

department. Both positions are included on the attached Schedule of Authorized

positions, as recruitment for a Management Analyst will start once the schedule is

approved and there may be some overlap of the two staff. The Program Assistant will

141 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 2 of 3

not be replaced, however, and when the Schedule of Authorized positions is next
reviewed, this position will be removed from the Schedule. Also of note in the HCD

Department, one HCD Program Manager ( range 37) position that became vacant was

hired at a Project Manager ( range 33) level; this change is reflected in the revised
schedule. 

Additionally, one Management Analyst position is proposed for hire for work related to
HOME and CDBG work; the HCD Program Manager previously did this work. The HCD
Program Manager was promoted to the Director of Rental and Community Programs. 
The HCD Program Manager position has been removed from the current schedule and

the Management Analyst would therefore report to the Director of Rental and

Community Programs and is reflected in the Rental and Community Programs
Department on the attached schedule. 

Also in this department, the staffing proposal that will be included in the RFP to the City
this month for the Rent Program includes three Specialist positions ( instead of two) and

no Program Manager, and this change is reflected in the schedule. The rent program

positions are fully funded by grant funds and therefore no analysis of financial impact is
included below. 

Finally, management recommends the addition of a Management Analyst position for
the Administration department. This position is needed to facilitate handling of the
increased number of reasonable accommodation requests that are being received, 
serve as the agency 504 coordinator, provide support to the department on a number of
compliance issues, and provide other needed support to human resources, operations

and technology needs. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Upgrading the Facilities Project Specialist position will increase salary expenses by
approximately $ 1668 per year. Upgrading the Program Assistant to a Management
Analyst will increase salary expenses by approximately $ 39, 960 per year. Note that the
upgrade of these two positions will also result in some additional employer costs, 

including additional PERS contributions which are estimated to be approximately $ 3893
annually. Adding two Management Analysts (Administration and Rental and Community
Programs) will increase salary and benefits expenses by approximately $ 289, 800 per
year; note, however, that this is offset by approximately $ 163, 750 as the HCD Program
Manager position responsible for CDBG and HOME is no longer needed and has been

removed from the Schedule; the net increase is $ 126, 050. 

For the balance of the current fiscal year, the cost of the Management Analyst in Rental

and Community Programs is offset by filling this function at a level 32 instead of 37
Program Manager level) and that the position has been vacant in HCD for some time. 

The cost of upgrading the Program Assistant position to a Management Analyst
position will be covered from savings resulting from delayed hiring of the Asset
Manager position and the savings from hiring a Project Manager instead of a Program
Manager position. The additional Management Analyst position in administration will be

an added salaries and benefits cost. 

142 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 3 of 3

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board approve the attached Schedule of Authorized Positions and authorize

the hiring of staff for any vacant positions created by these changes. 

Respectfully submitted, 

VVJL&7 CU— 
Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director

VMC/jcb

Attachments: 

Exhibit 1: Schedule of Authorized Positions with Salary Ranges
Exhibit 2: Schedule of Authorized Positions

143 of 154



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Resolution No. 

ADOPT THE REVISED SCHEDULE OF AUTHORIZED POSITIONS

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda has determined a need
for an additional Management Analyst; and

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda has identified a need
to replace a Program Assistant position and a Program Manager position with

Management Analyst positions; and

WHEREAS, changes to the Rental Programs staffing are being proposed in the
RFP; and

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda conducted a
compensation study which resulted in a recommendation to upgrade one position; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that effective January 18, 2017, the
Housing Authority will adopt the revised Schedule of Authorized positions dated January
18, 2017 and be authorized to hire staff to fill any vacancies created by these changes. 

ATTEST: Arthur Kurrasch, Chair

Board of Commissioners

Vanessa M. Cooper

Secretary

Adopted: 

144 of 154



Exhibit 1

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

SCHEDULE OF AUTHORIZED POSITIONS with SALARY RANGES

January 18, 2017

Monthly Wage Range

Position Titles Grade Beginning Highest Number of
Positions

Custodian

Custodian

Housing Assistant
Housing Assistant
Accounting Technician
Accounting Technician
Program Assistant

Housing Specialist I*** 
Maintenance Technician I

Facilities Project Specialist

Senior Accounting Technician
Housing Specialist II*** 
Rental and Community Programs Specialist
Maintenance Specialist

Maintenance Technician II

Executive Assistant

Housing Specialist III
Lead Maintenance Technician

Senior Property Manager
Housing Programs Supervisor
Maintenance Supervisor

Accounting Officer
Management Analyst

Project Manager

Asset Manager

Senior Management Analyst

Program Manager

Senior Project Manager

Director of Housing Programs
Director of Property Operations
Director of Rental and Community Programs
Director of HR and Operations

Director of Housing and Community Development
Director of Finance

Deputy Executive Director
Executive Director** 

Resident Manager II

Resident Manager

Assistant Resident Manager

Resident Custodian

7

Y -Rate* 

8

Y -Rate` 

10

Y -Rate* 

12

14

14

15

15

18

18

19

20

22

24

24

26

26

26

28

32

33

33

35

37

37

43

43

43

47

47

50

51

N/ A

N/ A

N/ A

N/ A

N/ A

3, 857

3, 498

3, 951

3, 536

4, 149

3, 590

4, 357

4, 574

4, 574

4, 689

4, 689

5, 043

5, 043

5, 169

5, 295

5, 560

5, 837

5, 837

6, 130

6, 130

6, 130

6, 436

7, 096

7, 273

7, 273

7, 637

8, 018

8, 018

9, 283

9, 283

9, 283

10, 234

10, 234

11, 008

11, 283

18, 148

Hourly Rate
Hourly Rate
Hourly Rate

Hourly Rate

Y -Rated employees are on a separate salary schedule with 8 wage steps
Salary authorized by Board of Commissioners per Employment Agreement
Housing Specialist positions may be filled at either the I or 11 level

4, 689

4, 923

4, 803

4, 976

5, 043

5, 049

5, 295

5, 560

5, 560

5, 699

5, 699

6, 130

6, 130

6, 283

6, 436

6, 759

7, 096

7, 096

7, 451

7, 451

7, 451

7, 823

8, 625

8, 841

8, 841

9, 283

9, 747

9, 747

11, 283

11, 283

11, 283

12,440

12,440

13, 380

13, 715

19, 055

18. 00

10. 61

10. 61

10. 61

1. 00

5. 00

1. 00

2. 00

5. 00

3. 00

1. 00

1. 00

4. 00

3. 00

1. 00

4. 00

1. 00

1. 00

1. 00

1. 00

2. 00

1. 00

1. 00

5. 00

2. 00

1. 00

1. 00

0. 00

1. 00

1. 00

1. 00

1. 00

1. 00

1. 00

1. 00

0. 00

1. 00

1. 00

3. 65

0. 75

0. 75

62. 15

145 of 154



Exhibit 2

Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Schedule of Authorized Positions

January 18, 2017

Department/Position Title ApprovedFTE 2016 ApprovedFTE 2017 ProposedFTE 2017
Administration Department

Executive Director

Deputy Executive Director
Director of HR and Operations

Executive Assistant

Senior Management Analyst

Management Analyst

Senior Property Manager
Housing Specialist I

Finance Department

Director of Finance

Accounting Officer
Senior Accounting Technician

Accounting Technician

Housing Programs Department
Director of Housing Programs

Housing Programs Supervisor

Housing Specialist 111
Housing Specialist I & II
Housing Assistant

Sub -total

Sub -total

See note B) 

Sub -total

1. 000. 001. 001. 001. 001. 001. 002. 008. 00
1. 001. 001. 001. 004. 00

1. 001. 001. 008. 005. 0016. 00

1. 000. 001. 001. 001 001. 000. 001. 006. 00
1. 001. 001. 001. 004. 00

1. 002. 001. 007. 005. 0016. 00

1. 000. 001. 001. 001. 002. 000. 001. 007. 00
1. 001. 001. 001. 004. 00

1. 002. 001. 007. 005. 0016. 00
Property Operations (Facilities and Maintenance) Department

Director of Property Operations ( See note H) 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Senior Property Manager ( See note I) 0. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Housing Specalist I ( See note I) 0. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Maintenance Supervisor 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Lead Maintenance Technician ( See note E) 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Maintenance Technician I & II ( See note D) 7. 00 7. 00 7. 00

Maintenance Specialist 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Custodian 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Resident Manager ( See note A) 4. 65 3. 65 3. 65

Resident Manager II ( See note A) 0. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Assistant Resident Manager ( See note A) 0. 75 0. 75 0. 75

Resident Custodian ( See note A) 0. 75 0. 75 0. 75

Sub -total 18. 15 20. 15 20. 15

Housing and Community Development Department

Director of Housing and Community Development

Housing and Community Development Program Manager
Senior Project Manager

Project Manager

Asset ManagerManagement Analyst ( See note C) 

Facilities Project Specialist ( See note G) 

Program Assistant (

See note C) Sub -total
Rental and Community Programs Department

Director of Rental and Community Programs
Program Manager

Analyst (Management Analyst) 

Rental and Community Programs Specialist
Program Assstant

Sub -total

1. 002. 001. 001. 000. 000. 000. 001. 006. 00
1. 001. 001. 002. 001. 006. 00

1. 002. 001. 001. 001. 000. 001. 001. 008. 00
1. 001. 001. 002. 001. 006. 00

1. 000. 001. 002. 001. 001. 001. 001. 008. 00
1. 000. 002. 003. 001. 007. 00

Total 58. 15 60. 15 62. 15

Note A: Resident employees are contracted employees and are required to reside on-site at assigned Housing Authonty
complexes Each Resident employee has an individual employment contract. Note that 1 Resident Manager position is

being filled on a temporary basis and is budgeted at . 25 FTE. 

Note B: Housing Specialist I and II are combined as a total count to allow flor flexibibildy in staffing

Note C: This position will not be hired until March or April 2017 and wll replace the Program Assistant when that position

becomes vacant in April 2017; both positions are listed here but there will be a net reduction of 1 FTE in Apnl. 

Note D: Maintenance Technician I and II are combined as a total count to allow flor flexibibildy in staffing

Note E: This position is currently vacant It may be filled at the current level or a lower, ie Tecnician II, level. 

Note F: The Rent Programs Department positions are billed to the City of Alameda to support the rent ordinance work; 
current funding commitments are for 9 months beginning Apnl 2016

Note G: This position shifted from the Facilities and Maintenance Dept to HCD in 2016. 

Note H: Previously titled Director of Facilities/ Director of Property Management on the Schedule. 

Note I: These two positions were previously in Administration and Managed Housing. 

146 of 154



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

147 of 154



Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda
701 Atlantic Avenue - Alameda, California 94501- 2161 - Tel ( 510) 747-4300 - Fax: ( 510)522- 7848 - TDD: (510) 522- 8467

To: Honorable Chair and

Members of the Board of Commissioners

From: Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director

Date: January 18, 2017

RE: Accept a Schedule to Create a Strategic Plan: Create an Adhoc Committee of

the Board to Support the Creation of the Strategic Plan; Nominate Two or Three

Members to Serve on the Strategic Plan Adhoc Committee

BACKGROUND

At the Board of Commissioners' September 2016 retreat, the Board emphasized the

need for AHA to draft and adopt a Strategic Plan on or around the September 2017

annual retreat. This plan would identify five or six key strategic goals for the agency for
the next 3- 5 years and would supplement ( and drive) the current "Two -Year Work Plan" 

that is utilized by senior management and the Board to prioritize and track agency
activities and accomplishments. 

DISCUSSION

Producing a strategic plan that addresses the full scope of agency functions requires a
considerable time commitment by the Board and by senior management. In addition to
discussion among Board members on strategic goals for the agency, the Board may
also wish to seek input from the public and key stakeholders and to review strategic
plans created by other similarly functioning Public Housing Authorities. In order to meet
the desired goal of reviewing and approving a Plan at the September Board of
Commissioners retreat, staff has compiled a draft timeline ( below). 

The timeline is ambitious and assumes that the full Board will meet three times on this

issue. The meetings would occur in March and June for three hours each and again at

an all day September Board meeting. In between those meetings, an adhoc committee
of two or three Board members plus senior staff would work on drafting and refining the
plan and completing any additional research that may be necessary. Other meetings as
needed may be included but this might push the timeline out further. It is recommended
that a facilitator be used to help move the process forward and to allow staff and Board
members to participate fully. 

Once the Strategic Plan has been approved in the fall of 2017, staff will work on the

immediate organizational tasks that will be needed to implement the Strategic Plan

goals and incorporate them into an updated Two year plan. In the first Quarter of 2018, 
staff will work to align the 2018- 20 agency budget to support these goals. 

148 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Housing Commission Page 2 of 3

Staff recommends the creation an Adhoc committee of the Board of Commissioners to

work with senior management on the Strategic Plan between the full Board meetings. A

quorum of the Board may not meet on agency business unless it is a public meeting in
accordance with the Brown Act. Adhoc committees of the Board that are truly adhoc in
nature and have less than a quorum of the Board are not subject to the Brown Act

requirements ( including but not limited to public noticing and access). The Strategic
Plan adhoc committee would meet once or twice a month for 60- 90 minutes. 

Participation of committee members may be possible via telephone to accommodate a
range of schedules. 

Date Activity Participants

Janaury 18, 
2017

Board approves timeline for Strategic Plan

and nominates two or three members to

serve on adhoc committee

Full Board

February Staff solicits proposals for a facilitator Staff

Adhoc committee meets once Adhoc committee

Staff circulates sample Strategic Plans for

other PHAs for review as well as a

summary of the discussions at the
September Board meeting

Adhoc committee

March 3 hour kick off meeting with facilitator — 
set goals, expectations and identify areas
that need additional work. 

Full Board and

senior staff

April Adhoc committee meets twice Adhoc committee

May Adhoc committee meets twice Adhoc committee

June 3 hour check in and review meeting with
facilitator

Full Board and

senior staff

Adhoc committee meets twice Adhoc committee

July Adhoc committee meets once Adhoc committee

August Adhoc committee meets once Adhoc committee

September Board retreat with facilitator to review and

potentially approve, strategic plan. 

Full Board and

senior staff

October — 

December

2017

Staff works to develop and incorporate
operational tasks into the Two Year Plan

to implement the new Strategic Plan

Staff

January — 
March 2018

Staff develops 2018-2020 budget to

incorporate strategic goals and

operational tasks

Staff

April 2018 Board approves 2018-2020 budget in

support of the Strategic Plan

Full Board

The timeline above is tentative and ambitious. Delivery of the final proposed Strategic
Plan will eventually depend on securing a facilitator and the availability of the Board
members as well as the level of detail that the Committee decides goes into. It is also

important in adopting this process to take into consideration that there is a possibility of
significant housing policy change at the federal, state and local level in the coming

149 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Housing Commission Page 3 of 3

months. In the event that the Board considers these policy issues significant enough to
delay the Strategic Plan, staff could propose a later start or a slower timeframe to be
adopted at the pleasure of the Board. 

FISCAL IMPACT

This activity is not expected to exceed $ 20, 000 including the facilitator' s costs, and
related meeting and administrative costs. The current approved budget has sufficient
consulting and administrative costs budgeted included to cover this. 

RECOMMENDATION

Accept a Schedule to Create a Strategic Plan: Create an Adhoc Committee of the Board

to Support the Creation of the Strategic Plan; Nominate Two or Three Members to

Serve on the Strategic Plan Adhoc Committee

Respectfully submitted, 

1/44( Aktiko,„ U . 

Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director

VMC:dc

150 of 154



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

151 of 154



Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda
701 Atlantic Avenue - Alameda, California 94501- 2161 - Tel: ( 510) 747-4300 - Fax: ( 510) 522-7848 - TDD: ( 510) 522-8467

To: Honorable Chair and
Members of the Board of Commissioners

From: Vanessa M Cooper

Executive Director

Date: January 18, 2017

RE: Discuss and Provide Direction to Staff Concerning Information About
Development Activities of AHA and Island City Development ( ICD); Discuss
Additional Commissioner Responsibilities in 2017 Including the Formation of a
Standing Development Committee; If Approved, Direct Staff to Return with a
Proposed Scope of Work for the Development Committee No Later than the

March Board Meeting. If Approved, Nominate Two or Three Board Members to
Serve on the Development Committee

BACKGROUND

A Commissioner -originated request has been made to supplement the information

provided to Commissioners about the development activities of the agency and Island
City Development ( ICD) and to create a standing Development Committee of the Board
of Commissioners which would meet quarterly to review development activities. 

DISCUSSION

Current Process: In 2010 the Housing Authority Board approved a Five -Year Pipeline
Plan for housing development and adopted a Development Policies document. The
Plan was also presented to the Alameda City Council. Both the Pipeline Plan and the
Policies were updated by staff in 2015 and were again approved by the Board and
presented to City Council. The 2015 documents are attached for reference (Attachment
A). 

Development projects are generally selected or prioritized in one of three ways. First, if
AHA owns vacant property, a long- range plan to develop new housing will be outlined
and the project will move forward as resources allow. Eagle Avenue and North Housing
are examples of this. The second type of project is the redevelopment of an existing
site that is under- utilized, or otherwise in need of significant rehabilitation. Last, a new

opportunity may be presented from an outside partner, and the Board decides whether
to pursue or to decline the opportunity. Del Monte Senior is an example of this. 
Another possible mechanism is the opportunity to purchase an existing property and
convert to affordable, but this is unlikely in the current market. 

152 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 2 of 3

For all projects, the Board grants a series of approvals following the initial concept as
presented in the Five -Year Pipeline Plan. Approvals typically include: the authorization
to proceed and commit staff time to feasibility studies and pre -development work; 
approval to submit funding applications; a commitment ( loan) of pre -development
funding; approvals of all major contracts with development consultants and partners; 
and approvals of financing terms and financial guarantees needed to close. While a
project is in development, the Board will receive regular progress reports tracking the

project schedule and budget. Additionally, to fulfill the role of the general partner in the
tax credit ownership structure, the Island City Development Board will meet to consider
and approve a similar series of actions that follow and supplement AHA approval. 

It should be noted that all projects considered by the Island City Development Board
must have already received a series of AHA approvals in order to be placed on the ICD
agenda. When ICD was formed, the decision was made that the Board members would

include only AHA Board and AHA staff members, to ensure that all functions of the
affiliated non- profit would be directed by the goals of the AHA Board. The ICD Board
meetings are public meetings and subject to the Brown Act guidelines. Agendas for ICD

meeting have been posted publicly since ICD was formed and moving forward the
agendas and the agenda materials for the meetings will be posted to the AHA website. 

If an AHA Board member attends the ICD meeting and is not a current ICD Board
member, he or she would attend as a member of the public. Government Code

54952.. 2( c)( 4), provides that a quorum of an agency may attend an open and noticed

meeting of another body of the agency so long as they do not discuss among
themselves, other than as part of the scheduled meeting, " business of a specific nature
that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body of the local agency." 

Proposed Development Committee: 

The Board is asked to discuss the following issues: 
What additional information would the Board like to receive regarding
development activities at AHA and ICD? 

Does the Board wish to create a standing Development Committee of the
Board? 

If so, are there two or three members willing to serve on the Committee? 

A quorum of the Board may not meet on agency business unless it is a public meeting
in accordance with the Brown Act. Ad hoc committees of the Board that are truly adhoc
in nature ( formed to address adhoc issues) and that have less than a quorum of the

Board are not subject to the Brown Act requirements including but not limited to public
noticing and access. However, the Brown Act specifically requires that standing
committees, even if composed of less than a quorum of the Board, which have

continuing subject matter jurisdiction are considered " legislative bodies" for purposes of
the Brown Act and are, therefore, subject to compliance with the Brown Act' s public
notice, agenda, public access and comments and other requirements." [ Source

Government Code 54952( b)] 

153 of 154



Honorable Chair and January 18, 2017
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 3 of 3

It is recommended that if formed any Board committee would review high level policy
decisions — it should not replace the role of staff in making operational decisions. 
Meetings would be held at a regularly scheduled time. The meetings likely would last
60- 90 minutes but that could vary dependent on the level of detail required. The minutes
would be included in the next regular AHA Board packet for information only. 

The Board should also consider that there are several additional Commissioner
responsibilities proposed for 2017. Two or three Commissioners are also expected to

serve on the Strategic Plan Adhoc Committee. Commissioner Mc Cahan has agreed to

work with staff to develop a Disaster Recovery/Resilience Plan in 2017. Also, the
current audit contract expires at the end of the audit for fiscal year 2016- 17. The

agency will issue a Request for Proposals ( RFP) for the agency' s auditor. Since the
Auditor reports to the Board, staff asks that at least one Board Member, but preferably
two, serve on the panel reviewing responses to the RFP. This RFP is likely to be issued
in Fall 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT

The Development Committee and enhanced reporting on development issue would
generate some additional administrative costs and require additional staff time at the
Director level. However the current approved budget has sufficient administrative costs

budgeted included to cover this. 

RECOMMENDATION

Provide direction to staff regarding the formation of the Development Committee; If
formed, direct staff to return to the Board in March 2017 with a scope of work for the
Committee. If formed, nominate members to serve on the Committee. 

Respectfully submitted, 

v Akwk, ( ffliv

Vanessa M. Cooper

Executive Director

VMC:vj

154 of 154


	boc-1-18-2017-agenda-packet



